CITY OF
E

CITY OF KOTZEBUE NOTICE

Regular City Council Meeting Agenda
February 01, 2024 at 5:15 PM
City Hall Chambers — 258 A Third Avenue

VII.
VIII.

THE PUBLIC IS ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Invocation/Moment of Silence
Pledge of Allegiance
Adoption of The Agenda
Introduction of Guest and Staff
Citizen Comments
Correspondence

Unfinished Business

a) Cape Blossom Road Update
b) Washeteria Update

For residents who want to participate telephonically call: 1-800-315-6338; access code:

49401#

c¢) Grain Capital Corporation (Cain Building) Discussion

d) Legislative Capital Project Priorities

New Business

a) ORDINANCE 24-01 ENTITLED: "A CODE ORDINANCE REMOVING ALL SPECIFIC
FEE REFERENCES FROM THE KOTZEBUE MUNICIPAL CODE AND PLACING SAME
IN THE ANNUALLY ADOPTED FEE SCHEDULE."

b) ORDINANCE 24-02 ENTITLED: "A CODE ORDINANCE AMENDING KOTZEBUE
MUNICIPAL CODE 2.48.010 NON-EXEMPT SERVICE -- EXEMPT SERVICE"

c) RESOLUTION 24-01, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KOTZEBUE ADOPTING A RETIREMENT GIFT POLICY"



d) RESOLUTION 24-06, "A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
KOTZEBUE APPROVING THE CREATION OF A NEW DEPARTMENT HEAD
POSITION OF PLANNING DIRECTOR NUNC PRO TUNC EFFECTIVE JANUARY 8,
2024."

e) State of Alaska Revolving Fund (SRF) State Fiscal 2024

f) City of Kotzebue Scholarships

g) BDO 2022 Audit

h) AMLIP Signature Card
Xl.  Council Members Comments

Seat C: Joshua Hadley

Seat A: Ernest Norton

Seat G: Johnson Greene

Seat E: Kathleen Sherman

Seat D: Saima Chase

Seat F: Ariana Erlich

Seat B: Derek Haviland-Lie

Youth Representative: Finnian Sweeney
Xll. Executive Session

a) City Manager Annual Review

XIlll. Adjournment
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CITY OF KOTZEBUE
NOTICE

MAYOR SAIMA CHASE HAS
SCHEDULED THE NEXT REGULAR
CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2024 AT 5:15

IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS LOCATED AT
258 A Third Avenue
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THE PUBLIC IS ENCOURAGED TO ATTEND
FOR RESIDENTS WHO WANT TO PARTICIPATE TELEPHONICALLY CALL
1-800-315-6338 ACCESS CODE 49401#

Posted: 01-25-2024
City Hall/ City FB Page
KOTZ Radio
Department Heads
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CITY OF KOTZEBUE
NOTICE

MAYOR SAIMA CHASE WILL INTRODUCE THE
FOLLOWING:

FIRST PUBLC HEARING FOR ORDINANCE 24-01

ENTITLED: “A CODE ORDINANCE REMOVING ALL SPECIFIC FEE REFERENCES FROM THE
KOTZEBUE MUNICIPAL CODE AND PLACING SAME IN THE ANNUALLY ADOPTED FEE
SCHEDULE”

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE, ALASKA:

INTRODUCTION TO ORDINANCE 24-02

ENTITLED, “A CODE ORDINANCE AMENDING KOTZEBUE MUNICIPAL CODE 2.48.010 NON-
EXEMPT SERVICE - EXEMPT SERVICE”

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE, ALASKA:

RESOLUTION 24-01
“A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE,
ADOPTING A RETIREMENT GIFT POLICY”

RESOLUTION 24-06
“A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE
APPROVING THE CREATION OF A NEW DEPARTMENT HEAD POSITION OF
PLANNING DIRECTOR NUNC PRO TUNC EFFECTIVE JANUARY 8, 2024.”

DURING THE REGULARKOTZEBUE CITY COUNCIL MEETING
ON
February 1, 2024 at 5:15 p.m.
AT THE COUNCIL CHAMBER LOCATED AT

258 A THIRD AVENUE
P Y Je J Je e de e v e e e 7 e 3 e e e e e v e ve e e e e e e e e e e e e de de de de e e e e e e o

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND TELEPHONICALLY
1-800-315-6338 / 49401#
For further information or a copy of this ordinance
contact the City Hall at 442-3401

posted: 01-26-2024

KOTZR ADIO, BANK, AC, P.O. DEPARTMENT HEAD, CITY HAL| 4




Legislative Capital Project Priorities

PROJECT TITLE

1.

CAPE BLOSSOM PORT AUTHORITY & DEVELOPMENT

e $2.45 Million in PIDP
e $500,000.00 in State of Alaska Capital Project

WATER & SEWER LINE IMPROVNMENTS
a. Replace Lift Station 9 & 12

L ado \) i
d. Construct New Sewer Force Main
e. Sewer Rehabilitation

f. Lift Station 8 Rehabilitation

WATER SOURCE IMPROVENENTS

MULTIPURPOSE BUILDING

Section IX, Item A.

AMOUNT

$5,000,000

$TBD

$TBD

$6,500,000

LANDFILL CELL APPLICATION, LANDFILL OPEN NEW CELLS, LANDFILL CLOSURE

& POST-CLOSURE CELL C/D
e $750,000.00 from NANA VEI
EROSION SHORE PROTECTION AND ROAD REHAB

e $280,000.00 from VIF
¢ $50,000.00 from Alaska Community Foundation

MUNICIPAL ROAD DUST ABATEMENT / ASPHALT PAVING
BIOMASS PLANT & BALER BUILDING

REFUSE CAR CRUSHER

e Fully funded through VIF at $275,000.00

$TBD

$21,500,000

$10,000,000
$TBD

$TBD



Section IX, Item A.

P.O. Box 46
Kotzebue, Alaska 99752

City Hall
(907) 442-3401

Police Dept.
(907) 442-3351

Fire Dept.
(907) 442-3404

b Public Works
"Gatewuy' o the A (907) 442-3401

February 1%, 2024

Dear Department of Corrections,

The City of Kotzebue would like to extend our gratitude to the State of Alaska for their
continued partnership with us on the community jail funding. As you are aware, the City of
Kotzebue services the Northwest Arctic with a facility for incarceration for 11 different
communities. The facility holds 10 beds with a staff of 5 people while also being the facility for
the Alaska State Troopers. It serves a region of nearly 32000 square miles, and is one of the
largest regional jails in the state.

In 2023, the facility housed xx amount of people. To do this, our budget for the local
municipality was $1.7 million for all expenses associated with the jail. While the increase in
funding last year met more of our needs, residents of Kotzebue are utilizing $xx,xxx.xx amount
of dollars to subsidize a facility that services 10 additional communities.

We are grateful for the partnership we have with the State of Alaska Department of
Corrections and our legislative delegation who have prioritized public safety for our
communities. We would like to request that the DoC allocate funds for FY24 based on the size of
communities serviced and the extent of services provided. We believe the jail is one of many
important parts of community and region safety, and that it should not go underfunded.

Thank you,

Saima Chase, Mayor
City of Kotzebue




Section IX, Item A.

CITY OF KOTZEBUE

GATEWAY TO THE ARCTIC

Capital Project Priorities

2024

INTRODUCTION

Greetings,

It is with joy and pride that | extend our warmest welcome to you all. As the Mayor of City of Kotzebue, |
am truly honored to witness the compilation of countless hours of hard work, dedication and
collaboration that have gone into creating our capital project priorities. It serves as a testament to our
shared history, our vibrant present, and our promising future.

This legislative book is more than a collection of images and words, it is a symbol of our unity,
determination and our unwavering spirit to move the City of Kotzebue forward and into the future. Let
this booklet be a catalyst for further growth and progress. Let us come together to build a better and
brighter future for Kotzebue.

Cape Blossom Road and Port -- a visionary project that has been the topic of discussion for over three
decades is becoming reality with funding support from state, federal and partner crganizations. The
journey was long and challenging but the shared understanding of lowering the cost of living for our
residents has kept that dream alive. As a true Arctic Port, Cape Blossom Port would not only benefit
residents of the City of Kotzebue but also the entire Northwest Arctic Borough. [ am excited with the
partnerships and tireless dedication; we are heading towards a new era of economic prosperity and
boundless opportunities for the entire region.

Thank you for taking the time to meet with City of Kotzebue Council Members and Administration,| ™

With Warm Regards,

Mayor Saima Chase

City Council Members
NtacC
» Mayor Saima Chase mo ._nm .ﬁ

H.\.Rm Mayor Derek Haviland- | Tessa Baldwin
ie

Ariana Erlich
Johnson Greene

Ernest Norton

Joushua Hadley

Kathleen Sherman
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Section IX, Item A.

1. 003355\ Overviens . o i 3
2. CapeBlossemiPort |t s 5
2. Milaker @ Seelic it s s 7
4. Water Source Improvements............ 9

5. Emergency Shelter & Multipurpose
Builchimess it ce. i 15

S Dol 1 Lo TSI 0 R e 13

7. Coastal Protection Phase ll..............

Map of all

4.85" x 8.5"
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Picture




Section IX, Item A.

Description - Gravity sewer
d - Diligent staff

- Below-ground water an * Fewer service interruptions
sewer system - Reduce water losses

* Continuous water - Protect against future climate
circulation for freeze change

protection

Issues - Materials not suited Financial Benefits

- Climate change * Limited stormwater *Reduce maintenance & repair
= Ground motion drainage *Reduce energy consumption
- Groundwater - High maintenance costs | sReduce wastewater pumping

with less Inflow & Infiltration
Solutions * Operational changes sReduce water leaks

- Materials and methods for snow removal sLarger water mains reduce

to withstand ground pumping costs u
motion

Priority #1: Water Loops |

G-inch sections with B-nen pipe)

Swan Lake Loop (2990) & Lagoon Loop — Lo et Lo (e &
(1995):
Issues
* Undersized for length (Swan Lake—2.5
miles/Lagoon Loop—4.5 S)
Frequent emergency repairs on main
and service lines

Improvements
» Replace with 8 HDPE mains and new

HDPE service lines for added resilience P

o

Status:
Preliminary Engineering Report
expected 9/2024
T e e R e e |

Funding Request: s27.5M 7

BALENWIEN

i
® AIMPOWT




Section IX, Item

Legend
0 Replace Lift Station
w— COMCtTCt New Forom Main
= Reploce Grvity Sewer

IMPROVEMENTS

WATER SOURCE

no:._ :.E:#% Imm_ﬁ_,_ mn Wmm.m_mmmnm }

Dam Facts

Vortac Lake has been the backup water source |« pam built in 1966

for Kotzebue.

Decommissioning Vortac Lake would leave
Kotzebue without a secondary water source

»  Approximately 1,000 feet
long and 10 to 122 feet high.
Designed to be a frozen

Safety

Recent safety inspections determined the ground.

dam is dangerous and recommend fixing or

breaching the dam.
Dam is no longer frozen.

A dam failure could take out the City’s raw

water main.

earthen dam supported on
a foundation of frozen

Priority #2: Sewer
Improvements

Priority #3: Stormwater
Management

Issues

+ PVC sewer mains cracking

» Water infiltrating broken pipes

= Rocks getting in lift station pumps
Improvements

* Repair/replace sewer mains with more
resilient materials and methods

Status:
Preliminary Engineering Report
expected 9/2024

Funding Request: s6.5M

Issues
= Snowmelt and flooding
= Entering manholes (see photo
above), possibly broken pipes
= 247 operation of List Station 8
Potential Improvements
* New storm drains

= Operational changes for snow removal
« Increase capacity of LS8 & sewer main

Status:
Preliminary Engineering Report
expected g/2024

Funding Request: s8.8Mm

Full Reservoir: Until the early 2000s, the
reservoir was maintained near capacity,
allowing the City to have a backup water
source.

Erosion & Permafrost Thaw: The high water
levels and climate change (2 5° Frise in
average annual temperature since 1992) has
led to erosion of the dam and natural hillsides.

Lower Lake Level: Vortac Lake no longer

serves as a backup water source. The City
pumps water in the spring and summer
months from Vortac lake to Devils Lake or
WTP to lower lake levels to mitigate the risk
of failure.

Erosion & Permafrost Thaw: The cracking is
assumed to be a result of thaw of both the
dam and the surrounding permafrost.




Section IX, Item A.

#1: Decommission Dam

Kotzebue Mean Average Annual Air
Bathymetric survey of the lake Temperature 1945 to 2021

30 ~ ©o
. & 0.6 Degrees 8 Degrees
Terrestrial survey of the T 28 o e
embankment and surrounding c =
terrain. £ PR T
'™
Geotechnical drilling g
5
» Breach dam 2

#2: Evaluate secondary water 2005
source alternatives 5
Climate change

Test wells would be installed to
mwﬁ«_@wﬁm_ _.“n:mm *ﬂwwmﬂ mﬁ%cnwmm e = Temperature rising 3x faster than before 1992. See table
fhaw bulb under the lake to left.

If the thaw bulb is not viable, the Thawing permafrost threatens the built environment

alternative of repairing the dam (water/sewer mains, dams, buildings, etc.)
would be compared to developing

m z_ﬁ.w,_,.q émwmﬂ .w_ocqom mﬂ_ﬂﬁJ mwmﬁﬂ ¢ Regional communities impacted by flooding, erosion,
Dw%mm._:mxm&_ O and other risks exacerbated by climate change.

Kotzebue serves as hub for emergency operations

The conditions that the dam was designed for are no

—”._. @ C _\mln ﬂomm longer applicable

runuany REYUCHL.

' EMERGENCY SHELTER AND

Regional Vitality and Community Health and
Resilience Culture
e Regional need for emergency 3 Current Recreation Center

shelter building closed since 2018 due
e Regional risk of Floods, Extreme | to unsafe conditions
Weather, and Wildland fires

Currently use school when
needed

° Rec Center is in poor
shape and needs to be

SLd T demolished
xpect to house up to : ;
people for days to weeks from > No public gym available

outlying villages ° Gym, office spaces

- Emergency Operations Center e  No ADA access to City
- Search and rescue meetings .

—
—

Multi-Use Space
- Recreation spaces do double duty for
emergency shelter
Basketball court use as sleeping area
emergency shelter
Workout rooms for children and
EIES
Locker rooms
Kitchen
Storage space
Upstairs offices and meeting space
. Search and Rescue—City public
meetings
) Onsite backup power and



Section IX, Item A.

ULTIPURPOSE BUILDING

Conceptual Figure |stats:

Funding Request:

Floor plan

LANDFILL: CONSTRUCTION

Figure—graphic of Status

what C&D will look

_ Funding Request:

like w/ rest of
landfill

Cell3A—summer 2024
Cell 3B—Current site of
material storage.
Berms, fencing
Connect with 3A.
Maintain drainage

“Trash, and our ability to deal
with it—while not a glamorous
issue—is critical to everyone.”
Lisa Murkowski

- Comply with state and federal
regulations

Financial Benefits
*Reduce costs for construction
and demolition by not having to
ship waste outside of Kotzebue
*Simplify management of landfill
by separating MSW from C&D
*Extend life of landfill




Section IX, Item A.

Maybe pictures of
C&D stuff...

AND DEMOLITION CELL

COASTAL PROTECTION

Undated photo: Barrels being used as shore protection

Phasel

Alaska Dept. of Transportation & Public Facilities
project included reconstructing and paving 4,400 feet
of Shore Avenue, armoring the tidewater side of the
road with a combination of sheet pile and large rock,
installing street lighting, a sidewalk, space for parallel
parking and a bicycle lane.

Issues:

Kotzebue lies on a sandy spit between
the Kotzebue Sound and Kotzebue
Lagoon. The community does not
have natural protections against the
strong Arctic storms and sea ice.

Severe fall storms, more common due
to later ice formation, cause
significant damage to the coastline,
houses, and businesses.

Erosion has reduced road capacity,
created unsafe driving conditions, and
threatened residential and
commercial buildings in this area.

During spring breakup, ice masses

push up over the north shore ™
damaging roads, homes, and =
businesses (see photos on next page)-

STATUS: Completed in 2012
TOTAL COST: $42 M (2011)




Section IX, Item A.

o TEE

Phase Il

Extend seawall to the north and east of Crowley

| Marine Docks to provide the City with protection
from severe storms on the north side of the
community.

The coastal protection design would likely include
both rip-rap revetment structures as well as sheet
pile wall.

Important cultural sites, particularly the Tent City
area, and commercial areas, such as the Drake
barge landing, would not be protected so asto
allow for continued and traditional use of these
areas.

Picture description

Diagram for schedule?
Status:

Funding Request:

Map of Phase 1 and Phase 2 w::.. 0 F

g T g Ly e
O D r WG Ao

QR Code




CITY OF KOTZEBUE, ALASKA
ORDINANCE NO. 24-01

Section X, ltem A.

ENTITLED: “A CODE ORDINANCE REMOVING ALL SPECIFIC FEE REFERENCES

FROM THE KOTZEBUE MUNICIPAL CODE AND PLACING SAME IN THE

ANNUALLY ADOPTED FEE SCHEDULE”

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE, ALASKA:

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Section 4.

Section 5.

This is a Code Ordinance.

The current version of the Kotzebue Municipal
Code (“KMC”) contains many fee references and
penalty provisions that have not been revised or
updated in decades. See, the KMC e-version at
https:/library. municode.com/ak/kotzebue/codes
/code_of ordinances.

The City Council for the past several years has
adopted a comprehensive fee and penalty schedule
that updates, infer alia, the fees and penalties found
in the current version KMC. These updated fees
and penalties conflict with the fees and penalties in
the current KMC.

All the fees and penalties in the current KMC shall
be replaced with an appropriate reference to the fee
and penalty schedule that is adopted annually. A
non-exclusive exemplar of the KMC fees and
penalties to be repealed and replaced with an
appropriate reference to the annually adopted fee
schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated by reference herein. This will be an
on-going process until all such fees and penalties
references in the KMC are replaced accordingly.

Pursuant to the Kotzebue Municipal Code, Section
1.12.030(B), this Ordinance shall become effective
on February 1, 2024.

15




Section X, ltem A.

Ordinance No. 24-01 — Fees and Penalties Removed from KMC and Placed in Annual Fee Schedule
Page 2 of 2

ENACTED this 18" day of January 2024.

CITY OF KOTZEBUE

M

Saima Chase, Mayor

ATTEST:

iithe

Rosie Hemsley, City Clerk

ATTESTATION: I, Rosie Hensley, Clerk for the City of Kotzebue, hereby attest that the above
Ordinance, No. 24-01, was duly presented to the Kotzebue City Council, duly published and that
a valid public hearing was held and that it was duly enacted on February 1, 2024.

Published/Posted: ~ January 11, 2024

Introduction: January 18, 2024
First Public Hearing: February 1, 2024
Passage: February 1, 2024
Attachments:

Exhibit "A" -- Exemplar of fees and penalties to be replaced in KMC [ 22 ]

16




Exemplar of KMC sections to be amended by Ordinance 24-01 [non-exclusiv

KMC
Citations
from
City Planner
for

Ordinance
24-01

Exhibit A to Ordinance 24-01,

Page-ia
[Subject to updatir] 17

RCCM January 18, 2024
22
ditional citations]

Section X, ltem A.




Section X, ltem A.

Exemplar of KMC sections to be amended by Ordinance 24-01 [non-exclusiveé,

11.04.650 Appraisal—Deposit.

Each class I preference right claimant shall deposit with the city clerk the an amount as set forth in the
annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council sum-effifty-dollars to cover the cost of appraisal. Any amount
exceeding this shall be charged to the applicant, and any surplus shall be returned to him.

(Prior code Ch. 14 § 13-31).

15.08.080 Permit—Application—Fees.

Application for a permit shall be made upon suitable form provided by the city building official. Such
application shall he accompanied by fees as follows:

it Amount
Soihgr vent stack (per stack per floor on 1st floor) $1.00
Soil or’sgnt stack (per above 1st floor) .25 %
Each insidagonductor 1.00 Q
Each house owpuilding cover 1.00 b )
Each water closé 1.00 N
Each bathtub 1.00 e‘ 60
Each shower bath 1.00 Q\o oo
Each sink 1.00 ’a»
Each drinking fountain 1.00 o“ N (\Q
Each refrigerator 1.00 o v\
Each sanitary cuspidor 1.00 @ & 6 &
Each urinal 1.00 q\ \o 66 9
Each slop sink : 1.00 Q Q‘L
Each floor drain 1.00

Each sand trap 1.00 6Q0 (\GG

Each bar connection 1.0Q

Each soda fountain 00 60 s (\’a
Each wash rack 1.09 6\
Water distribution pipes > 1.00 0‘

Each lavatory / 1.00

Each water softener 1.00 v\‘

Each boiler 1.00

Each plumbing fixture, receptacle, devje®, or appliance 1.00
which is supplied with water or whjefi receives or

discharges liquids or liquid-bor astes, with or without
discharge into any drainage sfStem with which they may

be directly or indirectly cgfinected; or any rough opening

for future connection

Each sewer permi 1.00
Each sewer sadgfe installation 50.00
Each head gfSprinkler system 25,

15408.090 Permit—Term.

All permits issued under this chapter shall expire by limitation and become null and void one year from date
of issue. A permit may be renewed for an additional period of twelve months for the sum of one dollar, provided

Created: 2021-11-85 16:88:02 [EST]
(Supp. No. 13, Rev.)

Exhibit A to Ordinance 24-01, RCCM January 18, 2024
Pagqs—=—$22
[Subject to updatir] 18 |ditional citations]




Suspende
by Ordinance 92-04
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Exemplar of KMC sections to be amended

J Section X, ltem A.

by Ordinance 24-01 [non-exclusivd,

regardless of ot
new permit shall be re

(Prior code § 10.10.050(a)(part)).

(Prior code § 10.10.050(c)).

15.08.190 Violation—;

Any
puni e by a fine of not more than one hundred dollars or
oth fine and imprisonment.

(Prior code § 10.10.080).

es have been made or are planned to be made in the original plans and specificati
ovisions, will expire automatically after a period of two years. Afte

violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor an

permits,
period of time, a

conviction shall be

by imprisonment of not more th days, or by

17.48.040 Building permit fees.

A.  The buildng permit fee shall be as shown in Table 3-A on page 16 of the Uniform Building Code, 1985 Edition,
published by the international Conference of Building Officials (ICBO), 5360 South Workman Mill Road,
Whittier, California 90601, subject to the follo® vodifications:

1.  That the first one hundred thousanc 2 of any new construction project will be exempt
from consideration;
2.  That the first fifty thousand ¢ 6 tion, remodel, repair or restoration will be
exempt from consideratio’ 0\0 Q
3.  Thatany project for v’ 6 @ ‘an A(1) or (2) of this section shall be
subject only to a te *Q, (b <
L/

B. At the time of applic- @ \ \'o . of sixty-five percent of the total
building permit fe 4 \0 e(, w fee."

C. Atthetimeo” 00 06 ’\\ .1 be made of the remaining thirty-five
percent of " o 0& Q syments for utility charges or deposits.

D. Anyap, \, {\‘K \@ 2 itis in the pian review process may do so upon
notificativ 0 0* .1e plan review fee will be made by the
administratiy 00 $ ,f the percentage of the work completed of the plan
review. The adr, se final.

L/
E.  Followingissuance ¢ \\(’ .plicant who decides to abandon the work for which the permit

was intended prior to . 0@

percent of the building pe Q
(Ord. 85-11, 1986).

17.56.010 Misdemeanor penalty.

; apply to the administrative official for refund of the thirty-five
twenty-five dollar administrative charge.

A person who violates any provision of this title is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction is punishable

by a fine of not more than an amount as set forth in the annu
hundred dollars.

(Ord. 80-14 § 1 (part), 1980: prior code § 13.10.050(a)).

al fee schedule adopted by the City Council. five

(Supp. No-13,Re%)  Exhibit A to Ordinance 24-01,

Pa
[Subject to updatirf 19

Created: 2021-11-85 16:08:09 [EST]

RCCM January 18, 2024
122
ditional citations]




Section X, ltem A.

Exemplar of KMC sections to be amended by Ordinance 24-01 [non-exclusivd,

17.56.020 Civil action.

A.  The city or any aggrieved person may bring a civil action to enjoin any violation of this title, and the violation
of any term or condition of any entitlement approved under this title, and to obtain damages for any injury
the plaintiff suffered as a result of the violation.

B. Inaddition to injunctive and compensatory relief, each violation shall be subject to a civil penalty not to
exceed an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. five-hundred-dolars.

C.  Anaction for injunction under this section may be brought notwithstanding the avéilability of any other
remedy.

D.  Upon application for injunctive relief and
the finding of an existing or threatened violation, the Superior Court shall enjoin the violation.

(Ord. 80-14 § 1 (part), 1980: prior code § 13.10.050(b)).

18.05.130 Enforcement, violations and penalties.

A.  General.

1. It shall be the duty of the public works director, city planner and the planning commission to apply
these requirements and to bring to the attention of the city manager, city attorney, or their designated
agents, any violations of these regulations.

2. Noowner, or agent of the owner, of any parcel of the land located in a proposed subdivision shall
transfer or sell any part of the parcel before a final plat of the subdivision has been approved by the
planning commission in accordance with the provisions of this title and the regulations adopted under
this title.

3. No building permit shall be issued for the construction of any building or structure located on a lot or
plat subdivided or sold in violation of the provisions of these regulations, nor shall the city have any
obligation to issue a certificate of occupancy, if applicable, or to extend utility services to any parcel
created in violation of these regulations.

B. Violations and Penalties. Any person who violates any provision of this title or the regulations adopted
pursuant to this title shall be subject to a fine of not more than five thousand dollars, for each separate
violation. Each day a violation continues shall be deemed a separate violation and will be subject to the fine
on a per day basis, not to exceed an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City
Council five-thousand-dellars-perday, per violation. The amount of the penalty shall be set by the city
manager after consultation with the city attorney. The amount of any fine imposed shall be based upon the
nature of the violation, the public interest sought to be protected and after taking into account the ability of
the person to pay the fine imposed. Any person to whom a fine is assessed may appeal the assessment
and/or amount of the fine to the planning commission.

C.  Civil Enforcement. Appropriate actions and proceedings may be taken in law or in equity to prevent any
violation of these regulations to prevent unlawful construction, to recover damages, to restrain, correct or
abate a violation and to prevent illegal occupancy of a building, structure or premises. These remedies shall
be in addition to the penalties described above. Full, actual, reasonable, attorney's fees and costs for such
civil enforcement shall be paid to the city by the offending party.

(Ord. No. 10-03, § 3(Exh. A), 1-21-2010)

Created: 2021-11-95 16:@8:60 [EST]

(Supp- No- 13 ReY). B xhibit A to Ordinance 24-01, RCCM January 18, 2024

Pag fa22
[Subject to updatiy 20 |ditional citations]



Section X, ltem A.

Exemplar of KMC sections to be amended by Ordinance 24-01 [non-exclusiv

18.014 Fees.

Fees charged for the review and recording of plats shall be non-refundable and shall be paid in full when an
application is submitted to the City. The schedule of fees required by the City of Kotzebue shall be as follows:
Major Subdivision Preliminary Plat: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. $256-88
Major Subdivision Final Plat: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. $100:00
Minor Subdivision Preliminary Plat: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. $356-00
Minor Subdivision Final Plat: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. $188-00

Alteration or Replat, including Vacation of Right-of-Way: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the
City Council, $356-80

Minor Lot Consolidation & Exempted Replats: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council.

$156.60
Abbreviated Plats & Walvers: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. $350:00

Variance Applications—Regular Meeting: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council.

$200-60

Variance Applications—Special Meeting: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council.

$300.00
Vacation: as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. $200.00

In addition, the applicant shall pay the actual, full costs of any recording fees/expenses, professional advice
fees, required under these regulations, and all other fees and expenses incurred in the application process. If a
special or emergency meeting of the Planning Commission is requested or required for the processing of a major
subdivision application, pursuant to Chapter 18.200 of these Regulations, the applicant shall pay any costs incurred
as a result of scheduling and conducting such a special/emergency meeting including, but not limited to, those
expenses mandated by KMC § 17.36.050. Failure to pay or pre-pay these fees/expenses, if so required, shall result
in denial of any related application(s) or revocation of previously-approved application(s).

Created: 2021-11-85 16:@8:80 [EST]
(Supp. No. 13, Rev.)
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6.04.020 - License—Required—Fee.

A. Every dog within the city of Kotzebue over six months old or weighing over twenty pounds shall be
subject to a one-time license fee of-five-dottars:as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by
the City Council.

B. Persons owning five dogs or less shall obtain alicense inthe sum effive-dettars as set forth in the
annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council per dog.

C. Persons owning six dogs or more shall obtain a kennellicense from the city forthirty-dottars in an
amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council.

6.04.030 - Penalty for violation—No license.

Failure to have the license referenced above, in Section 6.04.020, shall result in a civil fine as set
forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council eftwenty-dotars, in addition to the
five-dollar license fee as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. After
ninety days, the city shall startthe collection processto secure a judgment and the monies due the
city with all fees and costs for such action to be borne by the dog owner.

6.04.050 - Unattended animals prohibited—Animals prohibited at schools or parks—
Immediate destruction of loose animals—Destruction of mad or vicious animals.

A.No animal may run at large within the city. No person having charge or control of an animal may
permit the animal to run at large within the city.

B.The owners of animals shall not permit the animals to be present outdoors, whether at large or
restrained, withinthe boundaries of any school or any playground owned or maintained by the city.

C.Noanimalshall be tethered outside any place open to the public, such as stores, public facilities
or buildings open to the public.

D.If, after diligent effort, the animal control officer, as defined in Section 6.04.010.B., is unable to
capture an at large animal, whether licensed or unlicensed, the animal control officer may
immediately destroy the animal. If an animal so destroyed is found to be licensed, the owner shatl
be promptly notified.

E.Any person wishing to have his animal(s) destroyed by the animal control officer may do so upon
payment effifty-deltats as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council to the
animal control officer, accompanied by a signed affidavit stating that the animal to be destroyed
has not bitten a human or another animal within ten days.

F.The animal control officer is authorized to destroy, summarily, any dog loose and at large in the
city if the dog does not carry and exhibit a current license tag.

G.The animal control officer is authorized to destroy, summarily, any dog loose and at large in the
city if said dog is escaping from a reasonable attempt by said officer to capture said dog, or if said
dog shows signs of aggression toward the animal control officer sufficient to place said officerin
reasonable apprehension of bodily injury.
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H.Upon delivery of a dog tothe City Pound when no additional facilities exist for the confinement of
more animals, the animal control officer shall destroy, summarily, whichever dog has been
confined at the City Pound for the longest period of time, for purposes of providing a place to
confine the newly-captured dog. Said summary destruction shall occur notwithstanding the
provisions for otherwise allowing a period for redemption.

I.Nothing in this section is intended to restrict the animal control officer from immediately
destroying animals that pose a menace orimmediate danger to inhabitants of the city.

1To the extent this section may conflict with other sections of this chapter, the provisions of this
section shall govern.

6.04.051 - Penalties for violations.

Unless specified otherwise in this chapter, violations of any provisions of this chapter shalt be
subject to the following penalties within any given twelve-month period:

A, First offense: fifty-dellars as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council.

B. Second offense: ene-hundred-detars as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City
Council.

C. Third offense: ene-hundred-and-fifty-dettars-as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by
the City Council.

D. Fourth and subsequent offenses: seizure of animal and humane disposal, if necessary.

The owner shall be responsible for all fines, including fees and costs for collection procedures if
pursued by the city.

6.04.080 - Redemption by owner—Fees.

Any animal impounded hereunder may be reclaimed as provided in this chapter upon payment by
the ownerto the animal control office or his subordinates, the sum offifty-dettats as set forth in the
annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council in the case of each animal having been properly
licensed or vaccinated under this chapter, plus the additional sum efterrdettars as set forth in the
annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council for each day or part of a day such animal is kept.
Second or subsequent impoundment of an animal shall require an enhanced penalty as set outin
Section 6.05.051 in addition to the impound fees listed above. Fifty percent of the fees of this
section may be waivedif the owner of the animal at large contacts the animal control officer prior to
impound and informs the officer that the animal is loose.

6.04.100 - Surrender of dogs by owner for disposal.

The animal control officer may accept dogs from their owners for humane disposal. The wishes of
the owner as to disposal shall be followed and no dog delivered for disposal shall be released.
Animals so leftwith the animal control officer shall require payment ef-e-fifty-doettarfee as set forth
in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council for one dog and a ten-dettar fee as set forth
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in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council for each additional dog left at the same
time.

6.04.230 - Immunization—False proof.

It is a violation subject to a three-hundred-dottar civil fine as set forth in the annual fee schedule
adopted by the City Council for any veterinarian or other person to give, issue or transmit any
purported proof, tag or certificate for rabies immunization not actually given to the dog for which
proof, tag or certificate is given.

6.04.300 - Penalties for violations regarding vicious animals and animals that attack other
animals and people.

A.Any vicious animal:

1.Whose owner or keeper does not secure and/or keep in place the liability insurance coverage
required in accordance with Section 6.04.045.A.1. of this chapter; or

2.Which is not maintained on property with an enclosure; or

3.Which shall be outside of the dwelling of the owner or keeper, or outside of any enclosure except
as providedin Section 6.04.240, shall be confiscated by an animal control officer and destroyed in
an expeditious and humane manner. In addition, the owner or keeper shall pay all monies due for
violations as required by this chapter.

B.If any animal shall, when unprovoked, kill, wound or worry or assist in killing or wounding any
animal the owner or keeper of said dog shall pay all monies due for violations as required by this
chapter and the animal control officer shall confiscate and humanely destroy said animal.

C.If any animal shall, when unprovoked, attack, assault, wound, bite or otherwise injure or kill a
human being, the owner or keeper shall pay all monies due for violations as required by this
chapter, an additional fine efthree-hundred-dettars as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted
by the City Council and the animal shall be humanely destroyed by the animal control officer.

10.12.010 - Impoundment—Release.

A.Wheneverany vehicle is located or left standing upon any street or alley right-of-way in violation
of the provisions of this title or any rule or regulation adopted pursuant thereto, or whenever any

vehicle isfound to be mechanically unfit to operate upon the street or alley, or whenever the driver
of any vehicle isimpaired oris takeninto custody by an officer for an offense involving either driving
while under the influence of intoxicating liquor, reckless driving, negligent driving, or any felony,

such vehicle may be removed from the city streets or alleys and may be impounded at a place to be
designated by the police chief. The police shall inthe proper case and whenever any other provision
of this code is violated, cause a complaint to be filed against the person committing such offense.

B. When the owner or authorized representative of the owner of the vehicle claims the same, he
shall be informed of the nature and circumstances causing the impoundment of such vehicle and
to obtain release thereof shall pay all towing charges actually incurred and in addition shall pay a
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storage fee efene-deltar as set forth inthe annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council per day
or fraction thereof that such vehicle remains impounded after the first twenty-four hours. If the
operator or owner of the vehicle, upon hearing before the court, isfound not guilty of the violation of
which he is charged, orif the case is dismissed, the impounded vehicle shall be released
immediatelytothe owner or operator of such vehicle, releasedfrom the charges, and if the charges
have been paid they shall be refunded. If found guilty by the court, any fine imposed under the
provisions of the appropriate section of this title shall be in addition to the towing and storage
charges herein prescribed.

10.04.030 - Infraction.

A violation of the traffic code of the city pursuant to any local traffic ordinance and pursuant to
Section 10.05.010.A.,above, is an infraction within the terms of AS 28.90.010 and is punishable by
a fine not to exceed three-hundred-dottars-an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule
adopted by the City Council.

9.03.010 - Monthly monitoring fees.
A. City police department shall monitor fire alarms and burglar/intrusion alarms.

B. Fire alarms and burglar/intrusion alarms shall be monitoredfor a fee effifty-dettars as set forth in
the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council a month for each station.

9.03.020 - False alarms fee.

A charge of ene-hundred-dotars an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the
City Councilshall be madeto the occupant of any dwelling or owner of any commercial building or
other structure for every response to a false alarm in excess of two per calendar quarter for any
residence, building, structure, or lot.

5.08.110 - City issued chauffeur's permit,

A. No person shall drive a taxicab or motor bus, and no person shall permit any person to drive any
such vehicle within the city, unless such driver shall first have obtained a city issued chauffeur's
permit as defined under the provisions of this chapter.

B. Each applicant for a chauffeur's permit shall comply with the following conditions prior to the
issuance of such a license:

1. The applicant must possess a valid motor vehicle driver's license issued by the state of Alaska;
2. The applicant must furnish proof that he/she is eighteen years of age or older;

3. Each applicant shall fill out a form for a chauffeur's permit provided by the city. This sworn
statement will be kept on file by the chief of police and may be inspected at any reasonable time by
an interested party;
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4. Each applicant for a chauffeur's permit shall file a full set of his/her fingerprints with the chief of
police, together withtwo photographs of himself /herself takenwithin thirty days priorto the date of
the application, and one of such photographs shall be filed by the chief of police with the
application as provided in subsection (B)(3) of this section, and the other shall be affixed to any
chauffeur's permit issued by the city to the applicant;

5. Each applicantfor a chauffeur's permitas defined in Section 5.08.005 shall at the time of making
his/her application or at such time as may be designated by the chief of police, undergo an
examination by the chief of police, or by his/her designee, concerningthe traffic laws of the state of
Alaska, rules of the road, the operation of motor vehicles and the geography of the city, including
the location of streets and well-known buildings. Such examination may be oral or in writing, or
partly oral or partly in writing, as the chief of police may designate. The applicant may, likewise, at
the discretion of the chief of police, be required to undergo an actuat road test to determine his/her
driving ability, and to demonstrate his/her skill and ability to safely handle a motor vehicle, such
test to be given under the supervision of the chief of police or his/her designee;

6. The applicant shall deposit a fee efterrdeliars as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by
the City Council with the city clerk.

4.06.040 - Penalty.

A. Persons found in violation for the first time shall be provided a one-time, written warning with
conditions in lieu of a citation. The warning shall be conditioned on such person attending and
successfully completing an alcohol education program approved by the city. All costs and
expenses for such alcoholeducation program shall be paid by the person committing the violation.
Failure to timely complete the city-approved, alcohol education program shall result in the
issuance of a citation. Successful and timely completion of the alcohol education program shall
result in no further enforcement of the violation giving rise to the warning. Successful and timely
completion shall be done within ninety days of the warning.

B. Any person violating the provisions of this section shall pay a fine ef-ene-hundrec-ifty-dottars as
set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council.for the first offense. A second

violation will be assessed a fine efthree-hundred-dotlars as set forth in the annual fee schedule
adopted by the City Council and resultin suspension of the person's permit, if any, issued pursuant
to_Chapter 4.02 and/or Chapter 4.03 for a period of six months and payment ef-atwe-htndred-dotar
of an administrativefee as setforth inthe annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council before a
permitisreissued. A third violation will be assessed a fine effive-hundrec-eottars-as set forth in the
annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council and resultin a five-year revocation of the person's
permit, if any, issued pursuant to_Chapter 4.02 and/or Chapter 4.03 and payment of-a three
hundreddeliar of an administrative fee as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City
Council before a new permit is issued. These fines and administrative fees are separate and apart
from any fines and fees set out in_.Chapter 4.02 and/or Chapter 4.03 and the regulations adopted
pursuant thereto.
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10.13.020 - Penalties.

A. Vehiclesremaining within a limited parking zone beyond the specified limitation shall constitute
aviolation. Owners of vehicles left in a limited parking zone beyond the parking limit may be cited
and fined as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council gp-te-twenty-five
dettars per violation. This section shall apply whether or not the owner was responsible for parking
the vehicle.

B. Vehicles parked in violation of this section shall be subject to impoundment as provided
inSection 10.12.010 et seq.

10.22.050 - Fines.

A. Any minor and/or the minor's parent or guardian cited for a violation of KMC Section 10.22.010 is
guilty of an infraction and is punishable by a fine of:

1. As set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council Fwenty-five-dottara for a first
offense;

2. As set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council Fifey-dettats for a second
offense;

3. As set forth inthe annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council Seventy-fivedottars for a third
offense;

4. As set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council Sne-htndred-dettars for a
fourth offense, and each one thereafter.
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3.20.170 Sales tax licensing.

A

No person may engage in any retail sales transaction as a seller within the city without first procuring an
annual sales tax license from the city finance department. A new business shall apply for a sales tax license
not later than ten days after the date of commencing business or opening additional places of business.
Existing businesses which have sales tax licenses shall apply for renewal of their sales tax licenses by June
30th of each year.

An application for a sales tax license shall include the name of the applicant; the mailing, residential, and
business addresses of the applicant; certification by the applicant that he or she has not had any business
license or tax license suspended or revoked within six months prior to the date of the application; proof of
compliance with all applicable state and federal licensing and registration requirements; and such other
information as the finance director may deem reasonably necessary for the proper administration of this
chapter. The information contained in the application shall be submitted under oath or affirmation of the
applicant.

No sales tax license shall be issued to or renewed for a person who is required to have a state business
license registration or permit, until that applicant submits evidence (1) that he or she has in his or her
possession, or has applied for, the state business license, registration or permit; and, (2) that all license,
registration and permit fees have been paid current. A licensee, registrant or permittee whose fee falls due
annually shall have thirty days after the due date in which to submit proof that the state license, registration
or permit has been obtained. No sales tax license may be issued to or renewed for a person owing a
judgment, delinquent taxes or a utility bill to the city, except by terms and conditions established in each
such case by the finance director, with approval of the city manager.

There shall be a fee as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. effifty-dellars with
the original application for the sales tax license. The license shall be renewed annually upon payment of a fee
as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council effifty-dellars and completion of a
renewal form, as provided by the finance director. The sales tax license shall be non-transferable and non-
assighable and must be surrendered to the finance director by the holder of the sales tax license when the
business ceases to do business at the location named therein. If the business is continued at the same
location but there is a change in its form of organization, such as from a single proprietorship to a
partnership or a corporation, the admission or withdrawal of a partner, or any other change, the seller
making such change shall surrender his old city sales tax license to the city for cancellation. The successor
seller is required to file a new application for a city sales tax license, and, upon receipt of a proper application
properly executed, a new city sales tax license will issue to such successor seller. When there is a change of
location for the seller's place of business, a new sales tax license is required, showing the new address.

The business license of any seller will be suspended when such seller fails to pay delinquent taxes, penalties,
administrative costs, and interest within thirty days after notice of delinquency is given or mailed, or if the
seller has failed to comply with the seller education requirements of this chapter, provided such seller shall
be afforded due process before license suspension. It is an ordinance violation for a seller to engage in sales
without a current city business license or to engage in sales when such license is suspended. Each seller who
obtains or should obtain a city business license in accordance with this chapter and this code consents to the
inspections of his state business license tax returns and so much of his federal income tax returns as
necessary in order to facilitate the accomplishment of the provisions and objectives of this chapter.

The city sales tax license must be prominently displayed at the place of business of every seller. Any seller
who has no regular place of business shall display such license on request.

Before issuing, or re-issuing, a sales tax license to a seller, the city may require the applicant to post a bond,
furnish a statement of net worth, or furnish additional security to insure the full and prompt payment of
taxes to be collected under this chapter.

(Ord. 04-10 § 2 (part), 2004).
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3.40.080 License fee [Excise tax on cigarettes and tobacco products]

For each license issued under this chapter and for each renewal, the fee is as set forth in the annual fee

schedule adopted by the City Council is-ene-hundred-dallarsperyear, except for calendar year 2015, for which the

fee is fifty dollars.

(Ord. No. 15-11, § 1(Exh. A), 6-4-2015)

{Supp. No. 13, Rev.)

Created: 2021-11-65 16:07:46 [EST]
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5.08.130 Renewal or cancellation of a chauffeur's permit.

A.

Chauffeur's permits must be renewed each year, and such renewed permits shall cover the period from
January 1 to December 31. Such renewal of permits shall be granted upon payment of a fee as set forth in
the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council effive-deHars and without further re-examination,
unless provided as follows: the chief of police may require that any applicant for a renewal permit, as
provided here, be re-examined upon any or all of the matter as set forth in Section 5.08.110 of this code
prior to the issuance of a renewal permit.

Should the holder of a chauffeur's permit fail to renew such permit for a period of one year after the
expiration date of the previously issued permit, then such holder, in order thereafter to receive a chauffeur's
permit, shall be re-examined as provided in Section 5.08.110 of this code, and pay the fee as set forth in the
annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council eften-dellars as hereinabove provided.

Any chauffeur's permit issued by the city may be revoked by the chief of police after a hearing held before
the city manager and finding by such city manager that the applicant has:

1.  Made willful, false statement when applying for a chauffeur's permit;

2. Been found to have been under the influence of drugs or intoxicating liquor while on duty as a driver or
chauffeur of any taxicab or motor bus within the city; or

3. Been convicted in any court in the state of Alaska for operating a motor vehicle while under the
influence of intoxicating liquor or of reckless driving, or boot-legging while engaged in the operation of
any taxicab or motor bus.

Upon any revocation of a chauffeur's permit, the permittee shall not be entitled to apply for another
chauffeur's permit for at least six months after the date of revocation and shall pay the same fee and
undergo the same examination as a new applicant.

(Ord. 03-11 § 3 (part), 2003).

(Supp. No. 13, Rev.)

Created: 2021-11-@5 16:07:48 {EST]
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12.12.030 Fee—Deposit [Excavations]

In addition to paying a fee as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council eftep-dellars
the applicant shall deposit with the city, in cash, certified check or other security acceptable to the director of
public works, a sum equal to the contract plus fifteen percent, including excavation costs, costs of installing the
underground utility line, backfilling, compaction of backfill, inspection and testing. Such sum shall be deposited to
the city clerk and shall be held by the city until all work is accepted by the director of public works or his authorized
representative; provided, however, that the city manager, on the recommendation in writing of the director of
public works, may waive the requirement of security deposit for such persons, firms or corporations who have
during the previous year promptly performed all the work required in Section 12.12.040 in a manner satisfactory
to the director of public works.

(Prior code § 12.05.090(c)).

Created: 2821-11-05 16:07:54 [EST]
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12.20.070 Fees [Camping]

A.  Camping permit fees shall be as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council epe-hundred
dellars, except that senior citizens qualifying for tax exempt status under Section 3.20.050 shall be charged
as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City Council. fift-doliars.

B.  Inthe event the city is required to move personal property from the camping area the permit holder shall be
charged for the actual costs incurred. If charges are not paid prior to the beginning of the next camping
season, the permit holder will not be entitled to utilize the camping area.

(Ord. 96-13 § 1, 1996: Ord. 91-8 § 2, 1991: Ord. 90-8 § 3, 1990: Ord. 78-98 § 1 (part), 1978: prior code § 3.15.100).

Created: 2021-11-85 16:07:55 [EST]
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15.04.130 Violation—Penalty [Dangerous structures]

Any person who is the owner of, or is In possession of, or in responsible charge of any building or structure
which is a fire hazard, a health hazard or a public nuisance within the city, and who knowingly suffers or permits
any such building or structure to be or remain a fire hazard, a health hazard or a public nuisance shall, upon
conviction thereof, be fined not to exceed an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City
Council ere-hundred-dellars or imprisoned not to exceed ten days, or both fined and imprisoned, in the judgment
of the court. Each day on which any violation is allowed to continue shall be considered a separate offense and is
punishable as such.

(Prior code § 10.05.090).

Created: 2021-11-95 16:07:56 [EST]
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15.28.190 Violation—Penalties [Flood Plain Management]

A.  Aperson who violates any provision of this chapter is guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction is
punishable by a fine of not more than an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City
Council. five-hundred-dollars;

B. 1. The city or any aggrieved person may bring a civil action to enjoin any violation of this chapter, and the
violation of any term or condition of any entitlement approved under this chapter, and to obtain damages
for any injury the plaintiff suffered as a result of the violation. In addition to injunctive relief, each violation
shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed an amount as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by
the City Council. five-hundred-dollars-

2. An action for injunction under this section may be brought notwithstanding the availability of any other
remedy. Upon application for injunctive relief and the finding of an existing or threatened violation, the
Superior Court shall enjoin the violation.

C.  Each act or condition violation this chapter or any term or condition of any entitlement approved under this
chapter and every day during which the act or condition occurs, shall constitute a separate violation under
this section.

(Ord. 87-2 § 5 (part), 1987: Ord. 83-13 § 6.3, 1983).

Created: 2021-11-85 16:07:57 [EST)

Exhibit A to Ordinance 24-01, RCCM January 18, 2024
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Exemplar of KMC sections to be amended by Ordinance 24-01 [non-exclusivs

17.48.040 Building permit fees.

A.  The buildng permit fee shall be as shown in Table 3-A on page 16 of the Uniform Building Code, 1985 Edition,
published by the International Conference of Building Officials (ICBO), 5360 South Workman Mill Road,
Whittier, California 90601, subject to the following modifications:

1. That the first one hundred thousand dollars of value of any new construction project will be exempt
from consideration;

2. That the first fifty thousand dollars of value of any renovation, remodel, repair or restoration will be
exempt from consideration; and

3.  That any project for which the full value is exempt under subsection A{1) or {2) of this section shall be
subject only to a—tea-dellar application fee as set forth in the annual fee schedule adopted by the City
Council.

B. mmmmmmwmapmmmwmmmmmhmm

B——Any-applicant-wheo-desires-to-withdraw-his-application-whiletis-in-the-plan-review-process-may-de-se-upen
notification-of the-administrative-official-Any-refund-of-the plan-review-fee will be- made by-the

administrative-official-based-upen-his-determination-of the pereentage-ef- the-work-completed-efthe-plan
review—The-administrative- official's decision-shall-bedinak

E—Fellewing-issuance-of a-building permitanyapplicantwheo-decides-to-abandon-the-werk-forwhich-the-permit
was-intended priorto-thestart-efwork-may-apply-to-theadministrative official-forrefund-of the thirty-five
percent-of-the-building-permitfeeless-atwenty-five dollaradministrativecharge:

[Note: sections B, C, D and E suspended by Ordinance 02-05]
(Ord. 85-11, 1986).

Created: 2021-11-85 16:07:59 [EST]

Exhibit A to Ordinance 24-01, RCCM January 18, 2024
Pagg.22.0f 22
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CITY OF KOTZEBUE, ALASKA
ORDINANCE NO. 24-02

Section X, ltem B.

ENTITLED, “A CODE ORDINANCE AMENDING KOTZEBUE MUNICIPAL CODE
2.48.010 NON-EXEMPT SERVICE — EXEMPT SERVICE?”

BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE, ALASKA:

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

This is a Code Ordinance.

The Kotzebue Municipal Code 2.48.010 Non-
exempt service—Exempt service presently
provides in pertinent part:

All officers and positions of this city shall be and
are allocated to either the exempt service or the
non-exempt service.

A. The exempt service shall include all elected
officials, the city manager, department heads
(family entertainment center, engineering/projects
manager, finance, fire, police, public works and
any other department heads designated by the city
manager and approved by the city council),
political appointees, members of boards and
commissions, employees covered by contracts, and
all  personnel appointed to serve without
compensation.

% % *

(Ord. 07-8 § 2, 2007: Ord. 03-8 §§ 3 (part), 4
(part), 2003).

This section of the Kotzebue Municipal Code
2.48.010 is amended by deleting certain portions
and adding certain portions to read as follows:

All officers and positions of this city shall be and
are allocated to either the exempt service or the
non-exempt service.

A. The exempt service shall include all
elected officials, the city manager, department

39




Ordinance No. 24-02

Amending KMC 2.48.010, Non-exempt-Exempt service

Page 2 of 3

Section 4.

Section 5.

heads (recreation, planning, package store/delivery
site, finance, fire, police, public works and any
other department heads as may be designated by
the city manager), political appointees, members
of boards and commissions, employees covered by
contracts, and all personnel appointed to serve
without compensation.

(Ord. 07-8 § 2, 2007; Ord. 03-8 §§ 3 (part), 4
(part), 2003; Ord. 24-02 § 3).

The purpose of this amendment is to allow the
City Manager to meet the needs of administering
the needs of the City now and into the future with
as much flexibility as possible and to meet exigent
circumstances in the most efficient way possible.

Pursuant to the Kotzebue Municipal Code, Section
1.12.030(B), this Code Ordinance shall become
effective nunc pro tunc on January 1, 2024.

ENACTED this 15" day of February, 2024.

CITY OF KOTZEBUE

WOV —ap S

Saima Chase, Mayor

ATTEST:

Rosie Hensley, City Clerk

[SEAL]

Section X, ltem B.

ATTESTATION: I, Rosie Hensley, City Clerk for the City of Kotzebue, hereby attest that the
above Ordinance, No. 24-02 was duly presented to the Kotzebue City Council, notice duly
published/posted and a valid public hearing was held and that it was duly enacted on February

15,2024.
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Ordinance No. 24-02
Amending KMC 2.48.010, Non-exempt-Exempt service
Page 3 of 3

Posted: January 26, 2024
Introduction: February 1, 2024
First Public Hearing: February 15, 2024
Passage: February 15, 2024

Section X, ltem B.
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"Goteway to the Aretic®

CITY OF KOTZEBUE
RESOLUTION NO. 24-01

“A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE
ADOPTING A RETIREMENT GIFT POLICY”

WHEREAS, the City of Kotzebue does not have a written retirement gift
policy and needs such to properly acknowledge the service of
our retiring City employees; and,

WHEREAS, the attached Retirement Gift Policy has been prepared by the
City Manager and review by the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Kotzebue
/ adopts the Retirement Gift Policy as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council of the City of
Kotzebue, Alaska, this 1% day of February, 2024,

CITY OF KOTZEBUE
éaima%hase, Mayor

ATTEST;

O >

Rosie Hensley, City Clerk

Attachment: Exhibit "A" — City of Kotzebue Retirement Gift Policy [1 page]
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SECTION 2 — KEY EMPLOYMENT POLICIES
2.45 Retirement Gift Policy

Employees who retire from the City of Kotzebue are eligible for a retirement gift of up to $500.00. The
primary goal of the City of Kotzebue retirement gift policy is to recognize and honor the dedicated
service of our employees while maintaining ethical standards and responsible use of local tax funds.

Retirement gifts should be thoughtful, within a reasonable budget, and aligned with the individual's
preferences when possible. The City of Kotzebue can establish relationships with reputable vendors to
ensure quality gifts at reasonable prices. In addition to tangible gifts, we consider non-monetary forms
of recognition such as a retirement ceremony, a personalized letter of appreciation, or a feature in
internal communications. All retirement gifts must be approved by the city manager to ensure
compliance with budgetary constraints and ethical considerations.

In addition, this policy was written to avoid extravagant gifts that may be perceived as misuse of public
funds. The City must ensure that retirement gifts do not create conflicts of interest or compromise the
municipality's ethical standards. We maintain transparency by communicating the retirement gift policy
to employees here, and by clearly outlining the criteria, process, and budgetary constraints each year.

The City of Kotzebue will maintain accurate records of retirement gifts, including details of the gift, cost,
and recipient, to facilitate transparency and accountability. The retirement gift policy should be regularly
reviewed and updated to account for inflation and changing economic conditions’ effect on the budget.
Any changes to the monetary amount will be reviewed by the city council and city manager and
employees will be notified.

Procedure:

Contact Finance office with inquiry.

Exhibit A to Resolution 24-01, February 1, 2024 RCCM
Page 1 of 1
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"Gateway to The Arctic™

CITY OF KOTZEBUE
RESOLUTION NO. 24-06

“A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KOTZEBUE
APPROVING THE CREATION OF A NEW DEPARTMENT HEAD POSITION OF
PLANNING DIRECTOR NUNC PRO TUNC EFFECTIVE JANUARY 8, 2024.”

WHEREAS, the current version of KMC 2.28.010 allows the City Manager
to create new Department Head positions with the approval of
the City Council;

WHEREAS, planning powers for the City of Kotzebue have been delegated to
the City pursuant to NWAB Code 8.12.030(E)(1);

WHEREAS, the planning needs for the City of Kotzebue are increasing at a
rapid, dynamic rate for the foreseeable future;

WHEREAS, a Planning Director for the City will be responsible for, infer

alia, all planning, platting responsibilities as well as supervising
the City Planner; and,

WHEREAS, this approval shall be effective nunc pro tunc to January 8, 2024.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Kotzebue,

approves the creation of a new Department Head to wit: Planning Director effective nunc pro
func January 8, 2024.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the City Council of the City of
Kotzebue, Alaska, this 18" day of January, 2024.

CITY OF KOTZEBUE

IMOUN—" o

Saima Chase, Mayor

ATTEST:

7~

Rosie Heﬁshﬁf, City Clerk
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Department of Environmental

THE STATE

onservation
ALASKA g
DIVISION OF WATER

Technical Assistance and Financing

GOVERNOR MIKE DUNLEAVY 555 Cordova Street

Anchorage, Alaska 99501
Main: 907.269.7502

Fax 907.269.7509
dec.alaska.gov

August 1, 2023

Teressa Baldwin, City Manager
City of Kotzebue

PO Box 46

Kotzebue, AK 99758

Dear Ms. Baldwin:

The Alaska State Revolving Fund (SRF) Program State Fiscal Year 2024 (SFY24) Intended Use Plans for the Alaska
Clean Water Fund (ACWF) and the Alaska Drinking Water Fund (ADWEF) have been finalized. The Intended Use

Plans can be found online at: https://dec.alaska.gov/water/technical-assistance-and-financing/state-revolving-

fund/intended-use-plans/. The following City of Kotzebue projects are included on the Project Priority Lists:

Alaska Clean Water Fund

Score  Project Name Requested Loan Principal Estimated Construction
Amount Forgiveness Start Date
120 Fire Hall Lift Station and Sewer $2,662,000 oy 9/1/2022
System
gp  romuDiuin Llitniog Desgnags $2,456,000 $1,000,000 9/1/2022
Construction
Alaska Drinking Water Fund
] ; Requested Loan Principal Estimated Construction Start
Score Project Name )
Amount Forgiveness Date
/. 71
g geen WaterServicelieop $10,244,000 $2,500,000 9/1/2022
Replacement
/. 3
11 Swan Lake Water Service Loop $5,482,000 ey 9/1/2022
Replacement

The proposed Storm Drain Planning, Design and Construction project has been identified to receive $1,000,000 in
loan forgiveness. In addition, the Lagoon Water Setvice Loop Replacement project has been identified to receive
$2,500,000 in loan forgiveness. In order to retain eligibility for this loan forgiveness, Kotzebue must enter into loan
agreements for these projects by February 29, 2024. If loan agreements cannot be executed by the end of February
2024, the loan forgiveness funds for these projects may be made available to the next highest ranked eligible project
on the SFY24 Project Priority List that is ready to move forward.

As mentioned in the Intended Use Plan, projects may remain on the Project Priotity List for a maximum of two
yeats. These projects will retain the same score originally assigned unless a revised questionnaite is submitted and
reviewed. If an application has not been submitted for this project within two years from the date that the project
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questionnaite was submitted, the project will be removed from the list and a new questionnaire will be required to
relist the project.

If you interested in moving forward with loan applications, I would suggest setting up a phone meeting so that we
can provide mote information about the financing projects through the SRF Program and discuss the next steps in
the loan application process. Please let me know if you are interested in meeting with the SRF Program.

Sincerely,

Peggy Ulman, SRF Program Coordinator
v.ulman(@alaska.gov  907-334-2681
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DEC Online Application System (OASys)

Alaska Drinking Water Fund Loan Questionnaire

Replacement of the Swan

[Submiued: 5/31/2022

Alaska Drinking Water

Tracking #: 2023ADWF0034 Facility: t.ake Water Service Loop Type: Fund Loan Questionnaire
Borrower Information Details e
Project Title Replacement of the Swan Lake Water Service Loop
Municipality or Drinking Water System Represented City of Kolzebue
GQuestionnaire Contact Tom Atkinson
City Manager, City of Koizebue
P.O. Box 46

Kotzehue, AK, 99752 US
Phone: 807-442-5101
tatkinson@kotzebue.org
www.cityofkotzebue.org

Project Information _Defails

Project Scope 7. Rehabilitation of Existing Water Transmission Pipes

If you selected other, please describe

Project Type Design and Censtruction

Is the proposed project an amendment te an existing SRF No
loan?

[ If yes, existing SRF Loan Number
! Please indicate the type of amendment:

Project Need:
Kotzebue is the hub and largest community in the Norihwesl Arctic Borough, providing important functions both to
residents of Kotzebue and the surrounding villages. The Swan Lake Water Ssrvice Loop was originally constructed in
1990 using 6-inch insulated HDPE pipe. Isolated sections of the Swan Lake loop have deteriorated and have been
replaced with 8-inch insulated HDPE over the years. Leakage and breakage of old pipe is the main cause for major
maintenance on the water loop.

The aging infrasiructure and difficull Arctic conditions necessitate the upgrading and replacement of various water
system components. Service connections run to each customer in twin pipes which alfows for circulation of the water
between the house and the water main io keep the water service from freezing. Water is circulated using pit orifices
installed in the water main and by circulation pumps installed in many of the homes serviced.

Much of the waler service requires significant maintenance resulting in loss of service. Every time the City has to
repair a part of the Swan Lake loop, the entire circulation foop must be taken out of service- which creates a significant
risk to human health with the water pressure dropping to Opsi and potentially allowing for contaminated/untreated
water to enter the water main, The City releases boll water notices after these events, Every time there is a boil water
notice posted, the City flushes the Swan Lake loop, which is a loss of 20,000 gallons of water. DOWL's field
investigations for the City's Sanitation Utilities Master Plan identified this project as a priority (March 16, 2022). The
City Councl identified this project in its top Capital Improvement Project CY-22 Priorities.

Project Description:
Design: The PER will investigate and provide recommendations to improve the hydraulic efficiency of the water loops
and reduce the prevalence of emergency repairs. In particular, the PER will provide recommendations on how to
upgrade the existing 6-inch insulated HDPE with to 8-inch insulated HDPE.

Construction: Freeze protection and essential upgrades are needed for the 1980-1990s era infrastructure. The
majority of the loop, with the exception of 1600 linear feet, will be converted to 8-inch insulated HDPE, for a total
replacement of 11,524 LF of pipe. No additional service connections are expected to be added.

Public Health Benefit(s):
This project provides a significant health benefit to residents and mainienance staff who have to address the
emergencies. Every lime the Cily has o repair a part of $wan Lake loop, the entire circulation loop must be taken out
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of servica- which creates a significant risk to human health with the water pressure dropping to Opsi and allowing the
possibility for contaminated/ untreated water to enter the water main. Rehabilitation of this Water Loop will prevent
these high-risk conditions to residents in their homes and to Cily maintenance workers providing repairs in extreme
weather condilions and at all hours of the night or day.

Benefits also include:

* iImproved reliability of water distribution to customers

* Greatly improved water system safety and reliability

« Decreasead water loss through leaking and broken piping

+ Improved utility maintenance efficiency

+ Decreased utility maintenance and repair costs

Providing fire protection? MNo
Expand the drinking water system to attract future No
popufation growth?

Expand fhe drinking water system fo an undeveloped No
area?

Does this project include one of the green project Yes

categories defined below?

Identify the most appropriate "Green" category type. Energy Efficiency - the use of improved technologies and
practices 1o reduce the energy consumption of water qualily
projects. Examples: water utility energy audits; clean power for
publicly owned facilities; leak detection equipment;
refrofits/upgrades o pumps & treaiment processes, and,
replace/rehabilitation of high distribution leakage.

Green Project/Component Description:
The Swan Lake Water Service Loop project will increase the size of the water main and eliminate water leaks.
Increasing the water main size will decrease frictional head losses and result in operational cost savings because the
clreulation pumps will not need to work so hard. Furthermore, the Cily is likely 1o save money and energy by
eliminating water leaks and not treating and distributing water that doesn't make it to customers. it is unknown at this
time what the Green Project Compenent will cost; the City will work with the engineer during the PER process to
determine lhese cosls,

Green Project Gomponent Estimate: 1
Puplic Heaith (0 - 100 Pts} -  Delails ) _
Type of Public Health Project 4. This project will eliminate potential health hazards, provide

freaiment of secondary contaminants such as iron or
ranganese, or enhance system operations. (30 Pis.)
{Documeniation Required — An explanation of how the project

eliminates potential public health hazards mgst be included in
the text box below to be awarded these poinis)

Description
Replacement of pipe or facilities that are suspested fo leak or constructed of inferior materials; Two of the
communities water circulation Joaps, this praject, Swan Lake Water Service Loop and anoiher project, Lagoon Water
Service Loop, account for the majority of the utility's emergency maintenance efforts, many of which have led to
service disruptions.

Current conditions represent a clear and substantial environmental and human health hazard from continued and
prolonged loss of service aleng multiple sections of the water and wastewater systems. System failures endanger
health and safety due to lack of water and sewer services in homes and sewage spills and flooding In the community.
The Cily releases boil water notices after these events, per ADEC requirement to post a boil water notice whenever
tocp pressure dropped below 20 psl.

Compliance with Safe Drinking Water Act (G- 35 Pis} Defails -
Project Compliance 2, This project will resolve a significant compliance issue. (25
Pts.)

{Documentation Required — A copy of an Enfgreement
Targeting Tool {ETT) violation, Notige of Violation (NOV), Boit
Water Notice{s}, or RTCR Level 2 Assessment musi be
attached 1o guestionnaire to be awarded these points.)

Description
Notice of Violations {NOV's) and Repeated or long term Boil Waler Notices; The City has attached the following
documents for review: 1) an ADEC notice of violation isg rule during CY2021; 2) Public Service Announcement
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regarding Precautionary Boil Water Notice for Swan Lake Water Service Loop; and 3) 2020 Kotzebue Water Quality

Section X, Item E.

Sourco Water Profection (0-10 Pts,)

Drinking Water Protection Plan

Aifordabiity (3 - 10 T

Details

Details

2. This project specifically addresses system vulnerabilities or
potential sources of contamination that are identified in the
Drinking Water Protection Plan. (10 Pts.)

{Documentation must be provided, and will be verified by

ADEC)

Median Household Income/Month (MHI)

Average Monthly Household Water Rate after project
completion (AMHWR})

Percentage (AMHWR / MHI * 100):

7,107
68

.96

Lead Wafer System Operator (0-5Pis)

Defails

Is the primary operator certified to the level of the system?

Name

Certification Level

t Number

iAbmtyto Repay(O 5 Pts) s

Yes

Matthew Lazarus
Water Distribution 3
23112

Details

Please identify the source of funds that will be used fo
repay the proposed SRF loan for this project. 10 points
assigned if a source of repayment has been identified. 0
points assigned if the source of repayment is currently
unknown.

t if you selected other, please describe

|Project Readiness (0 - 15 Pis)

Detafls e

User Fees

Have construction documents been prepared {under 18
AAC 80) and submitted to the appropriate DEC Drinking
Water Program office?

{Bocumentation Required}

t If yes, please provide the date submitted
i Office Location Submitted

Has an engineering feasibility study, including detailed
cost estimates, been prepared? If so, please submita
copy.

{Documentation Required - A copy of the study must be
provided. If available online, a link that provides access fo
fhe document may be provided.)

Will this project combine or consolidate two or more
existing public water systems?

{Documentation Required - An explanation of the
consolidation plan must be provided as well as the
coordination between the two existing public water

systems.)

Further Explanation

No

Yes

No

Sustainability Projects (0 - 50 Pts)

Identify the appropriate category, if applicable:

_ Details

Fix It First Projects (50 Pts.)
These are projects currently focated in an established area,
which is still suitable for use, and should be encouraged over
projects in undeveloped areas. The repair, replacement and

rade of infrastructure in these types of areas are
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l _ encouraged.
!ﬁfbjéct Cosls - | e o """j""'_"'Déié'ﬁs' S
1 Estimate attached: Yes
t Administration
i Engineering Design
I Engineering Construction
Construction
Equipment
Contingencies
Other (Identify Cost):
Other
Other (Identify Cost):
Other
Other (Identify Cost}:
Other
E Total Costs (Sum of above) 0
I Name
‘ Title or Position
l Organization
! Phone Number
1 Email
| Other Project information o o  Delails
E Requested Loan Amount: 5,482,000
] Select requested loan term: 5{o 20 years
‘_Loan application submittal date 05/31/2022
l Project start date 09/01/2022
Please estimate the population which will benefit from this 2000
project.
Attachments .. Titie (Type), Description B
ADEC Compliance Report 2021.pdf ADEC Compliance Report 2021 (SDWA Compliance
Documents - STEP 5)
Kotzebue is listed and highlighted
PSA for Swan Lake Loop Boil Water Notice.pdf PSA for Swan Lake Loop Boll Water Notice (SDWA
Compliance Documents - STEP 5)
Kotzebue Water_Quality _Report_2020.pdf Kotzebue Water Quality Report 2020 (SDWA Compliance
Documents - STEP &)
Kotzebue Drinking Water Protection Plan 2017.pdf 2017 Kotzebue Drinking Water Protection Plan (Source Water
Protection - STEP 6}
This resolution and pfan were prepared and adopted in 2017.
There are updates in the current Sanitation Ulifities Master Plan
B (March 2022), attached wilh another section.
Summary of Sanitation Utilities Master Plan.pdf Swmmary of Sanitation Uiilities Master Plan (Public Health
Considerations - STEP 4)
Complete March 16, 2022, this comprehensive plan provides
detailed data and information about the water/sewer projecis for
community of Kotzebue. This document only includes Table

50




Kotzebue Sanitation Utilities Master Plan.pdf

Summary of Sanitation Utilities Master Plan.pdf

Resolution_22.02_Priorities.pdf

Cost Estimate - Swan Lake Water Service Loop.pdf

Kotzebue Water and Sewer Utility Ordinances.pdf

Section X, ltem E.

of Contents and one page discussing the water services loops
for this request.

Kotzebue Sanitation Utilities Master Plan 2022 (Engineering
Feasibility Study - STEP 10}

This Master Plan was finalized in March 2022. Itis a
comprehensive plan for this project and other top priority
projects for the Cily of Kotzebue. It was prepared by DOWL
(engineering firm).

Summary of Sanitation Utilities Master Plan (Engineering
Feasibility Study - STEF 10)

includes a brief sumimary of information from the full Master
Plan document and the cost estimate for this project.
Completed March 2022,

Resolution 22-002 Priorities (Other}

Resolution 22-02 established the City's Capital Improvement
Priorities. The #3 Pricrily is Water and Sewer Line
Improvements.

Cost Estimate- Swan Lake Water Service Loop {Cost Estimate -
STEP 12)

Includes the cost estimate for construction of the Swan Lake
Water Service Loop; additional cost for the design (PER) is
875,000, for a lotal project cost estimate of$5,482,000.

Kotzebue Water and Sewer Uiility Qrdinances (Loan
Repayment information - STEF 9)

A viable repayment source has been identified and ordinances
are in piace fo assure repayment.
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DEC Online Application System (OASys)

Alaska Drinking Water Fund Loan Questionnaire

Tracking #: 2023ADWF0032 Facility:

Replacement of the Lagoon
Water Service L.oop

Submitted: 5/31/2022

Type:

Alaska Drinking Water
Fund Loan Questionnaire

Borrower Information

T

Project Title

Municipatity or Drinking Water System Represented

Contacts

Questionnaire Contact

Defa:fs ettt

Replacement of the Lagoon Water Service Loop

City of Kotzebue

Tom Atkinson

Cily Manager, City of Kotzebue
P.O. Box 46

Kotzebue, AK, 99752 US
Phone: 907-442-5101
tatkinson@kotzebue.org

www., cityolkolzebue.org

mee Ty Botails e

Project Scope 7. Rehabifilation of Existing Waler Transmission Pipes

If you selected other, please describe

Project Type Design and Construction

is the proposed project an amendment to an existing SRF No
loan?

If yes, existing SRF L.oan Number
Piease indicate the type of amendment:

Project Need:
Kotzebue is the hub and largest community in the Nosthwest Arclic Borough, providing imporiant functions both to
residents of Kotzebue and the surrounding villages. The Lagoon Water Service Loop was originally constructed in
1995 using 6-inch insulated HDPE pipe. Isolated sections of the Lagoon Waler Service Loop have deteriorated and
have been replaced with 8-inch insutaled HDPE over the years. Leakage and breakage of old pipe is the main cause
for major maintenance on the water loop.

The aging infrastructure and difficult Arctic conditions necessitate the upgrading and replacement of various water
sysiem companents. Service connections run to each customer in twin pipes which allows for circulation of the water
between the house and the water main to keep the water service from freezing. Waler is circulated using pit orifices
installed in the water main and by circulation pumps instafled in many of the homes serviced.

Much of the water service requires significant maintenance resulting in loss of service. Every time the Cily has to
repair a part of Lagoon loop, the entire circulation loop must be taken out of service- which creates a significant risk to
human health with the water pressure dropping to Opsi and allowing the possibility for contaminated/ untreated water
to enter the water main. The City releases boil water notices after these events. The Cily also flushes the loop when
there are boil water notices, which represents a loss of 32,000 gallons of water. DOWL's field investigations for the
City's Sanitation Utilities Master Plan identified this project as a priority (March 16, 2022). The City Council identified
this project in its top Capital Improvement Project CY-22 Priorities.

Project Description:
Design: The PER will investigate and provide recommendations {o improve the hydraulic efficiency of the water loops

and reduce the prevalence of emergency repairs. in particular, the PER will provide recommendations on how to
| . upgrade the existing 6-inch insulated HDPE with to 8-inch insulated HDPE.

Construction: Freeze protection and essential upgrades are needed for the 1980-1990s era infrastructure. The entire
toop will be converted to 8-inch insulated HDPE for a total of 22,735 LF of pipe. No additional service connections are
expected to be added.

Public Health Benefit(s):
This project provides a significant health benefit to residents and maintenance staff who have to address the
emergencies. Every time the City has to repair a part of Laagon loop, the entire circulation loop must be taken out of
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service- which creates a significant risk to human health with the water pressure dropping to Opsi and allowing the

possibility for contaminated/ untreated water io enter the water main. Rehabilitation of this Water Loop will prevent

these high-risk conditions to residents in their homes and to City maintenance workers providing repairs in extreme
weather conditions and at all hours of the night or day.

Benefits also include:

« improved reliability of water distribution to customers

« Greally improved water system safely and refiability

« Decreased water loss through leaking and broken piping

« Improved ulility maintenance efficiency

» Decreased uiility maintenance and repair costs

Providing fire protection? _ No
Expand the drinking water system to attract future No
population growth?

Expand the drinking water system to an undeveloped No
area?

Does this project inciude one of the green project Yes

categories defined below?

Identify the most appropriate "Green" category type. Energy Efficiency - the use of improved iechnologies and
practices to reduce the energy consumption of water quality
projects. Examples: water utility energy audits; clean power for
publicly owned facilities; leak detection equipment;
retrofilsfupgrades to pumps & treatment processes; and,
replace/rehabilitation of high distribution leakage.

Green Project/Component Description:
The Lagoon Watler Service Loop project will increase the size of the water main and eliminale water feaks. Increasing
the water main size will decrease frictional head losses and result in operational cost savings because the circulation
pumps will not need to work so hard. Furthermore, the City is fikely to save money and energy by eliminating water
lzaks and noi treating and distributing water that doesn't make it to customers. it is unknown at this time what the
Green Project Component will cost; the City will work with the engineer during the PER process to determine these

cosis.
Green Project Compaonent Estimate: 1
Pubii Fiaslii (6700 Pis N - ,..,,....,.be{a”s “ i

Type of Public Health Project 4. This project will efiminate potential healih hazards, provide

treatment of secondary contaminanis such as iron or
manganese, or enhance system operations. {30 Pts.)
{Documentation Reguired — An explanation of how the project
gliminates potentia) public health hazards must be included in
the texi hox below fo be awarded these points)

Description
Replacement of pipe or facilities that are suspected 1o leak or consiructed of inferior materials; Two of the

communities water circulation loops, this project, Lagoon Water Service Loop and another project, Swan Lake Water

Service Loop, account for the majority of the utility's emergency maintenance efiorts, many of which have led to
service disruptions.

Current conditions represent a clear and substantial environmental and human health hazard from continued and
prolonged loss of service along mulliple sections of the water and wastewater systems. Systern failures endanger
health and safety due to lack of water and sewer services in homes and sewage spills and flooding in the community.

The City releases boil water notices after these events, per ADEC requirement to post a boil waler notice whenever
loop pressure dropped befow 20 psi.

Compliance with Safe Drinking Water Act (0 - 35 Pls) T Details

Project Compliance 2. This project will resolve a significant compliance issue. (25

Pis.}

{Documentation Reguired — A copy of an Enforcement
Targeling Tool (ETT) violation, Notice of Viotationy (NQYV), Bail
Water Notice(s), or RTCR Level 2 Agsessment must be
attached to guestionnaire to be awarded these points.)

Description
Notice of Violations (NOV's) and Repeated or long term Boil Water Notices; The City has attached the foliowing
documents for review: 1) an ADEC notice of violation iss rule during CY2021; 2) City of Kotzebue Public
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Service Anhouncement regarding Precautionary Boli Waler Notice for Lagoon Loop; and 3) 2020 Kolzebue Water
Quality Report.

Source Waler Protetion (0-10 Pis.) | Details

Drinking Water Protection Plan 2. This project specifically addresses system vulnerabilities or
potential sources of contamination that are identified in the
Brinking Water Protection Plan. (10 Pts.)
{Documentation must be provided, and will be verified by

ADEC)
Afiordsbiity {3 -10 s) : ., “ e e :
Median Household Income/Month (MH1} 7,107
Average Monthly Household Water Rate after project 68
completion (AMHWRY)
l Percentage (AMHWR / MHI * 100): 0.96
Foad Waler Systom 'Qperator'fﬁ'- 5P e e Detar.fs .................
| ls the primary operator certified to the leve! of the system? Yes
1 Name Matthew Lazarus
E Certification Level Water Distribution 3
i Number 23112
ABiliy 1o Fapay 1o 5 PH) N — T Béi_‘};;ﬁg" e e
Please identify the source of funds that will be used to User Fees

repay the proposed SRF loan for this project. 10 points
assigned if a source of repayment has been identified. 0
points assigned if the source of repayment is currently
unknown.

If you selected other, please describe

mess (0_ s P[S) S— " Dolails

Have construction documents been prepared (under 18 No
AAC 80) and submitted to the appropriate DEC Drinking

Water Program office?

{Documentation Reguired}

if yes, please provide the date submitted

Office Location Submitted

Has an engineering feasibility study, including detailed Yes
cost estimates, been prepared? If so, please submit a

copy.

{Documentation Required - A copy of the study must be
provided. If available oniine, a link that provides access g

the dacument may be grovid_ed.)

Will this project combine or consolidate two or more No
existing public water systems?

(Documentation Required - An explanation of the
consolidation plan must be provided as well as fhe
coordination between the two existing public water

systems.}
Further Explanation

Sustainabilty Projects (050 Ptsj " " befalls
Identify the appropriate category, if applicable: Fix It First Projects (50 Pts.)

These are projects currently focated in an established ares,
which is still suitable for use, and should be encouraged over
projects in undeveloped areas. The repair, replacement and
rade of infrastructure in these types of areas are
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encouraged.
E}ojééi Fosts T T .
Estimate attached: Yes
Administration
E Engineering Design
Engineering Construction
Construction
l Equipment
1 Contingencies
} Other (ldentify Cost):
l Other
Other (Identify Cost):
OCther
l Other (Identify Cost):
Other
Total Costs {Sum of above) 0
i Name
E Title or Position
1 Organization
Phone Number
Email
Bifir Frafact Triemation ,. Deféﬁé -
Requested Loan Amount: 10,244,000
Select requested loan term: 510 20 years
: Loan application submittal date 05/31/2022
Project start date 09/01/2022
Please estimate the population which wiil benefit from this 1000
project.
Attachments _ Title (Type), Description B
Compliance documents.pdf Compliance Documents (SDWA Compliance Documents -
iTDEElzl 5A)rmuau' Compliance Report 2021; PSA Boil Notice for
_ Lagoon Loop; 2020 Water Quality Report
Kotzebue Drinking Water Protection Plan 2017.pdf 2017 Kolzebue Drinking Water Protection Plan (Source Water
Protection - STEP 6)
This pfan and resolution were prepared and adopted in 2017.
There are updates In the current Sanitation Ulilities Master Plan
{March 2022}, attached with another secfion.
Summary of Sanitation Utilities Master Plan.pdf Summary of Sanitation Utilities Masler Plan {Engineering
Feasibility Study - STEP 10)
Includes brief surmmary of information included in the full
document and the cost estimate for this project. Completed
March 2022.
Cost Estimate-Lagoon Water Service Loop.pdf Cost Estimate - Lagoon Water Service Loop (Cost Estimate -
Isnzizgsz 3!19 cost estimate for construction of the Lagoon Water
bvice Loop; additional cost for the PER is $75,000, for a total
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Resolution_22-02_Priorities.pdf

Kotzebue Sanitation Utilities Master Plan.pdf

PSA for Lagoon Loop Boil Water Notice.pdf
Water_Quality_Report_2020.pdf

Summary of Sanitation Utilities Master Plan.pdf

Kotzebue Water and Sewer Utility Ordinances.pdf

Section X, ltem E.

project cost estimate of $10,244,000.

City of Kotzebue Resolution {Other)

Resolufion 22-02 established the City's Capital improvement
Priorifies. The #3 Priority is Water and Sewer Line
Improvements.

Kotzehue Sanitation Utilities Master Plan (Engineering
Feasiblility Study - STEP 10)

This Master Plan was finalized in March 2022. itis a
comprehensive plan for this profect and other fop priority
projects for the Cily of Kotzebue. It was prepared by DOWL
(enginsering firm).

PSA far Lagoon Loop Boil Water Notice (SDWA Compliance
Documents - STEF 5)

2020 Kotzebue Water Quality Report (SDWA Compliance
Documents - STEP 5)

Summary of Sanitation Utilities Master Plan (Public Health
Considerations - STEP 4)

Completed March 16, 2022, this comprehensive plan provides
detailed data and information about the waler/sewer projecis for
the community of Kotzebue. This document only includes the
Tabls of Contents and ong page discussing the water service
{oop for this request.

Kotzebue Water and Sewer Utility Ordinances (Loan
Repayment information - STEP 9)

A viable repayment scurce has been identified and ordinances
are in place to assure repayment.
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The report accompanying these financial statements was issued by
BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, and the U.S. member of
BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee.
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I BD O Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600

Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage, AK 99503
www.bdo,com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Kotzebue,
Alaska, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City of Kotzebue, Alaska’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Kotzebue, Alaska, as of
December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of City of Kotzebue, Alaska and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO Intemational Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of
Kotzebue, Alaska’s ability to continue as a going for twelve months beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Kotzebue, Alaska’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about City of Kotzebue, Alaska’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that budgetary
comparison information on page 50, and the Schedules of Net Pension and Other Postemployment
Benefits (OPEB) Liability and Pension and OPEB Contributions on pages 51-52, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted management’s discussion that accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. Our opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected
by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise City of Kotzebue’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the Schedule of
State Financial Assistance, as required by the State of Alaska Audit Guide and Compliance
Supplement for State Single Audits are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
required parts of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and the Schedule of State Financial Assistance are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for
the year ended December 31, 2022.
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We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the basic financial statements of City of Kotzebue as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2022,
which contained unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information. The individual fund financial statements and schedules for the year ended December
31, 2021 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2021
financial statements. The individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2021 basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare those financial statements or to those
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund
financial statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 29, 2023 on our consideration of City of Kotzebue, Alaska’s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Kotzebue’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of
Kotzebue’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

BOO usA, P.C.

Anchorage, Alaska
September 29, 2023
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i Exhibit A-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
Statement of Net Position
Governmental Business-type
December 31, 2022 Activities Activities Total
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Assets
Cash and investments ) 452,866 S 4,124,398 § 4,577,264
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible accounts:

Accounts 263,311 222,393 485,704

Grants and shared revenues 107,520 819,223 926,743

Sales tax 513,588 - 513,588
Inventory - 1,079,948 1,079,948
Prepaid items 550,983 - 550,983
Internal balances (944,614) 944,614 -
Net other postemployment benefits assets 2,677,038 774,047 3,451,085
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 39,102,072 - 39,102,072

Other capital assets being depreciated, net 11,872,939 49,685,889 61,558,828
Total Assets 54,595,703 57,650,512 112,246,215
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related 495,188 143,180 638,368
Net other postemployment benefits assets related 273,629 79,119 352,748
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 768,817 222,299 991,116
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 55,364,520 S 57,872,811 § 113,237,331
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Exhibit A-1, continued

Governmental Business-type
December 31, 2022 Activities Activities Total
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Net Position
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 211,390 820,641 $ 1,032,031
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 127,514 22,515 150,029
Unearned revenue 3,423 - 3,423
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year -
accrued leave 198,832 37,758 236,590
Due in more than one year:
Net pension liability 6,472,554 1,871,497 8,344,051
Landfill closure costs - 334,877 334,877
Total Liabilities 7,013,713 3,087,288 10,101,001
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Lease related 65,313 - 65,313
Net other postemployment benefits assets related 275,123 79,550 354,673
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 340,436 79,550 419,986
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 50,975,011 49,168,952 100,143,963
Unrestricted (deficit) (2,964,640) 5,537,021 2,572,381
Total Net Position 48,010,371 54,705,973 102,716,344
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Net Position S 55,364,520 $ 57,872,811 § 113,237,331

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit A-2

Statement of Activities

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Fees, Fines Operating Capital
& Charges Grants & Grants & Govern- Business-
for Contri- Contri- mental type
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Expenses Services butions butions Activities Activities Totals
Governmental Activities
General government $ 1,681,300 § 594,390 § 16,920 $ $ (1,069,990) $ - $§ (1,069,990)
Public safety 1,756,941 1,856,169 2,100,201 2,199,429 2,199,429
Public works 2,097,119 - 10,883,620 - 8,786,501 8,786,501
Capital projects 2,001,493 - 1,515 - (1,999,978) (1,999,978)
Community services 84,489 3,950 - - (80,539) (80,539)
Small boat harbor 71,087 - - - (71,087) (71,087)
Parks and recreation 273,937 5,756 - (268,181) (268,181)
Total Governmental
Activities 7,966,366 2,454,509 13,008,012 7,496,155 - 7,496,155
Business-type Activities
Water and sewer utility 3,396,081 2,498,148 12,925 4,972,786 4,087,778 4,087,778
Refuse 1,061,025 1,010,959 11,265 - (38,801) (38,801)
Package store 818,420 1,500,545 9,631 691,756 691,756
Total Business-type
Activities 5,275,526 5,009,652 33,821 4,972,786 - 4,740,733 4,740,733
Totals $13,241,892 $7,464,161 §$13,041,833 $4,972,786 7,496,155 4,740,733 12,236,888
General Revenues
Taxes:
Sales taxes 4,447,281 - 4,447,281
Penalties and interest on delinquent taxes 28,524 - 28,524
Other taxes 626,983 - 626,983
Grants and entitlements not
restricted to a specific purpose 252,700 5 252,700
Investment loss (11,477) (11,477)
Other 77,918 77,918
Transfer of assets from governmental to
business-type activities (1,214,781) 1,214,781 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 4,207,148 1,214,781 5,421,929
Change in net position 11,703,303 5,955,514 17,658,817
Net Position, beginning 36,307,068 48,750,459 85,057,527

Net Position, ending

$ 48,010,371 § 54,705,973 § 102,716,344
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. Exhibit B-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
Total
Major Fund Nonmajor  Governmental
December 31, 2022 General Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments S - S 452,866 S 452,866
Receivables:
Accounts, net of allowance for
uncollectible accounts 263,311 - 263,311
Grants and shared revenues 97,929 9,591 107,520
Sales tax 513,588 - 513,588
Total receivables 874,828 9,591 884,419
Prepaid items 454,643 96,340 550,983
Total Assets S 1,329,471 § 558,797 $ 1,888,268
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 151,146 S 60,244 S 211,390
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 127,514 - 127,514
Due to other funds 842,365 102,249 944,614
Unearned revenue - 3,423 3,423
Total Liabilities 1,121,025 165,916 1,286,941
Deferred Inflows of Resources
ARPA revenues 1,054 - 1,054
Lease related 65,313 - 65,313
E-911 6,042 - 6,042
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 72,409 - 72,409

Fund Balances
Nonspendable - prepaid items 454,643 96,340 550,983

Committed - Water & Sewer Capital Projects 327,418 327,418

Assigned - public safety - 66,059 66,059

Unassigned (318,606) (96,936) (415,542)
Total Fund Balances 136,037 392,881 528,918
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources

and Fund Balances $ 1,329,471 S 558,797 S 1,888,268

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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5 Exhibit B-2
City of Kotzebue, Alaska ———
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022
Total fund balances for governmental funds ) 528,918
Total net position reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Net Position is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. These
assets, net of accumulated depreciation consist of:
Land and land improvements S 575,000
Construction in progress 38,527,072
Infrastructure 773,908
Buildings 8,442,815
Small boat harbor 9,590,671
Machinery and equipment 5,098,939
Total capital assets 63,008,405
Less accumulated depreciation (12,033,394)
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 50,975,011
PERS ARHCT and ODD net other postemployment benefits assets plan has been funded
in excess of required contributions. This asset is not a financial resource and therefore
it is not reported in the funds. 2,677,038
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds. These
assets consist of:
E-911 surcharge accounts receivable 6,042
Unavailable revenue of ARPA fund 1,054
Total other long-term assets 7,096
Long-term liabilities are not deemed due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as
governmental fund liabilities. The liabilities consist of:
Accrued leave (198,832)
Net pension liability (6,472,554)
Total long-term liabilities (6,671,386)
Certain changes in net pension and OPEB liabilities are deferred rather
than recognized immediately. These items are amortized over time.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 495,188
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 273,629
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB (275,123)
Total deferred pension and OPEB items 493,694

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ 48,010,371

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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g Exhibit B-3
City of Kotzebue, Alaska —
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Total
Major Fund Nonmajor Governmental
Year Ended December 31, 2022 General Funds Funds
Revenues
Intergovernmental:
Federal Government S 12,724,733 S 24,491 12,749,224
State of Alaska 1,566,557 101,621 1,668,178
Local Sources:
Taxes 5,113,431 5,113,431
Charges for services 1,326,191 1,326,191
Investment loss (11,477) - (11,477)
Other 126,258 433,032 559,290
Total Revenues 20,845,693 559,144 21,404,837
Expenditures
Current:
General government 1,942,437 - 1,942,437
Public safety 4,358,748 68,409 4,427,157
Public works 14,780,125 - 14,780,125
Community services 84,489 84,489
Small boat harbor 71,087 71,087
Parks and recreation 267,495 267,495
Nondepartmental 16,716 - 16,716
Capital outlay 2,030,889 2,030,889
Total Expenditures 21,521,097 2,099,298 23,620,395
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (675,404) (1,540,154) (2,215,558)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in : 73,646 73,646
Transfers out (73,646) - (73,646)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (73,646) 73,646
Net change in fund balances (749,050) (1,466,508) (2,215,558)
Fund Balances, beginning 885,087 1,859,389 2,744,476
Fund Balances, ending S 136,037 $ 392,881 528,918

A

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Reconciliation of Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit B-4

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However in
the Statement of Activies, the cost of these assets is allocated other their
estimated useful lives and reported as dpreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlays (513,174,137) exceeded depreciation (5997,821)
in the current year.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Decrease in unavailable delinquent sales taxes (10,643)
Decrease in unavailable revenue of ARPA fund (392,833)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use

of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures

in government funds.
Increase in accrued leave (7,179)
Net decrease in net pension liability and related deferred accounts 1,384,422
Net increase in net other postemployment benefits assets/liability

and related deferred accounts 768,778
2,146,021

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ (2,215,558)

12,176,316

(403,476)

$ 11,703,303

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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3 Exhibit C-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska ————
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor
Major Funds Fund
Bar and
Water and Grill Total
Sewer Package Enterprise Enterprise
December 31, 2022 Utility Refuse Store Fund Funds
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,531,003 S - $1,593,395 S - § 4,124,398
Receivables:
Accounts 241,228 180,211 - = 421,439
Grants 819,223 - - 819,223
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (91,070) (107,976) - - (199,046)
Net receivables 969,381 72,235 - - 1,041,616
Inventory 200,266 - 879,682 - 1,079,948
Due from other funds 1,699,785 - - - 1,699,785
Total Current Assets 5,400,435 72,235 2,473,077 - 7,945,747
Noncurrent Assets
Net other postemployment benefits assets 295,819 257,819 220,409 - 774,047
Property, plant, and equipment:
Property, plant, and equipment 116,738,132 7,762,753 - 25,335 124,526,220
Accumulated depreciation (69,175,014) (5,665,317) z - (74,840,331)
Net property, plant, and equipment 47,563,118 2,097,436 - 25,335 49,685,889
Total Noncurrent Assets 47,858,937 2,355,255 220,409 25,335 50,459,936
Total Assets 53,259,372 2,427,490 2,693,486 25,335 58,405,683
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related 54,719 47,690 40,771 - 143,180
OPEB related 30,237 26,353 22,529 - 79,119
Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources $53,344,328 $2,501,533 $2,756,786 $ 25,335 $58,627,982
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Enterprise

Funds

Statement of Net Position, continued

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit C-1, continued

Nonmajor
Major Funds Fund
Bar and
Water and Grill Total
Sewer Package Enterprise Enterprise
December 31, 2022 Utility Refuse Store Fund Funds
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable S 810,996 S 3,038 § 6,607 $ S 820,641
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 12,023 5,198 5,294 22,515
Accrued leave 21,173 11,782 4,803 37,758
Due to other funds 406,845 - 348,326 755,171
Total Current Liabilities 844,192 426,863 16,704 348,326 1,636,085
Noncurrent Liabilities
Advance from other funds - - - - -
Net pension liability 715,231 623,357 532,909 - 1,871,497
Net other postemployment benefits liability s @ - =
Landfill closure costs - 334,877 334,877
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 715,231 958,234 532,909 - 2,206,374
Total Liabilities 1,559,423 1,385,097 549,613 348,326 3,842,459
Deferred Inflows of Resources
OPEB related 30,402 26,496 22,652 79,550
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 30,402 26,496 22,652 - 79,550
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 47,046,181 2,097,436 - 25,335 49,168,952
Unrestricted (deficit) 4,708,322  (1,007,496) 2,184,521 (348,326) 5,537,021
Total Net Position (Deficit) 51,754,503 1,089,940 2,184,521 (322,991) 54,705,973
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows
of Resources and Net Position $ 53,344,328 $2,501,533 $ 2,756,786 S 25,335 § 58,627,982

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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J Exhibit C-2
City of Kotzebue, Alaska =
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Nonmajor
Major Funds Fund
Bar and
Water and Grill Total
Sewer Package  Enterprise Enterprise
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Utility Refuse Store Fund Funds
Operating Revenues
Water use charges and connect fees $ 1,672,482 § S - S - $ 1,672,482
Sewer use charges and connect fees 796,902 - - - 796,902
Refuse and landfill 1,010,959 - - 1,010,959
Net alcohol sales and permitting fees - - 1,500,545 - 1,500,545
Other operating revenues 28,764 - - 28,764
Total Operating Revenues 2,498,148 1,010,959 1,500,545 5,009,652
Operating Expenses
Administration 306,107 110,000 154,000 z 570,107
Water 785,561 - - - 785,561
Sewer 847,745 - 847,745
Refuse and landfill - 680,044 - 680,044
Package store and distribution site - - 664,420 664,420
Depreciation 1,456,668 119,040 - 1,575,708
Total Operating Expenses 3,396,081 909,084 818,420 - 5,123,585
Income (loss) from operations (897,933) 101,875 682,125 - (113,933)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State PERS relief 12,925 11,265 9,631 33,821
Landfill closure liability reduction - (151,941) - (151,941)
Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 12,925 (140,676) 9,631 (118,120)
Income (loss) before transfers and capital contribution (885,008) (38,801) 691,756 - (232,053)
Other Financing Sources
Capital contributions - repairs and replacement capital project fund 81,237 1,133,544 - - 1,214,781
Capital contributions - grants 4,972,786 - 4,972,786
Net Other Financing Sources 5,054,023 1,133,544 - 6,187,567
Change in net position 4,169,015 1,094,743 691,756 5,955,514
Net Position (Deficit), beginning 47,585,488 (4,803) 1,492,765 (322,991) 48,750,459
Net Position (Deficit), ending $51,754,503 51,089,940 $2,184,521 $(322,991) § 54,705,973

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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: Exhibit C-3
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
Major Funds
Water and Total
Sewer Package Enterprise
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Utility Refuse Store Funds
Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ 2,536,087 $1,020,383 $ 3,249,342 $ 6,805,812
Payments to suppliers (2,027,325) (240,346)  (2,226,714) (4,494,385)
Payments to employees (961,498) (557,669) (457,792) (1,976,959)
Payments for interfund services used (286,000) (110,000) (154,000) (550,000)
Net cash flows from (for) operating activities (738,736) 112,368 410,836 (215,532)
Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities
Decrease in due to from other funds (646,138) (112,368) (758,506)
Net cash flows for noncapital financing activities (646,138) (112,368) - (758,506)
Cash Flows from (for) Capital
and Related Financing Activities
Capital grants received 5,642,284 1,133,544 - 6,775,828
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,537,086) (1,133,544) (5,670,630)
Net cash flows from capital
and related financing activities 1,105,198 1,105,198
Net increase (decrease) in cash and investments (279,676) - 410,836 131,160
Cash and Investments, beginning 2,810,679 - 1,182,559 3,993,238
Cash and Investments, ending $ 2,531,003 § - $1,593,395 S 4,124,398
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Section X, Item F.

Exhibit C-3, continued

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Enterprise Funds
Statement of Cash Flows, continued

Major Funds

Water and Total
Sewer Package Enterprise
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Utility Refuse Store Funds

Reconciliation of income (loss) from operations to net
cash flows from (for) operating activities:
Income (loss) from operations $ (897,933) § 101,875 $682,125 S (113,933)
Adjustments to reconcile income
(loss) from operations to net cash
flows from (for) operating activities:

Noncash expense - PERS relief 12,925 11,265 9,631 33,821
Increase (decrease) in allowance for

uncollectible accounts (55,685) (14,392) - (70,077)
Depreciation 1,456,668 119,040 - 1,575,708

(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred
outflows of resources:

Accounts receivable 93,624 23,816 - 117,440
Inventory 27,718 - (294,466) (266,748)
Net other postemployment benefits assets 272,763 96,096 49,047 417,906
Deferred outflows of resources - pension related 648 2,478 (22,353) (19,227)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related (12,470) (22,365)  (19,142) (53,977)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (1,168,384) (8,021)  (33,188)  (1,209,593)
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 1,752 (1,095) (244) 413
Accrued leave (2,905) (2,170) (2,841) (7,916)
Net pension liability 139,407 165,220 327,152 631,779
Deferred inflows of resources - pension related (319,569) (194,142) (159,257) (672,968)
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related (287,295) (165,237) (125,628) (578,160)
Net Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities $ (738,736) § 112,368 $410,836 $ (215,532)

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital assets contributed from governmental activities S 81,237 51,133,544 § - $1,214,781
Capital assets purchased on account S 516,937 S - S - $ 516,937

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2022

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting City

City of Kotzebue, Alaska (the City) was incorporated on October 14, 1958. The City operates under a
Council-Manager form of government and provides a full range of services including public safety,
streets, sanitation, water and sewer, health and social services, culture and recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

The financial statements included in this report are for City of Kotzebue, Alaska only. There are no
other component units for which City of Kotzebue, Alaska is financially accountable, nor do any special
financial relationships exist between the City and any other City.

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable
to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. In general, the effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on fees and
charges to external parties.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) fees, fines and charges to customers
or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met.
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the City considers all revenues except reimbursement grants to be available if they
are collected within 60 days after year end. Reimbursement grants are considered available if they are
collected within one year of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to accrued leave are recorded only to the extent they have matured.

Sales taxes, charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Most other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when received
by the government. :

The City reports the following major funds:
Major Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be reported in another fund.

Major Proprietary Funds

The Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’'s water
system and the wastewater utility.

The Refuse Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s solid waste and landfill
activities.

The Package Store Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s liquor store
activities.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are allocated administration fees and charges
between the enterprise funds and the various other funds and departments. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. In addition, general revenues include all taxes, investment income, and State of Alaska
entitlement revenues.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Enterprise Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
Enterprise Funds include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.

1Q
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all cash accounts to be
cash and cash equivalents. The central treasury, which holds cash and investments, is used essentially
as a cash management pool by each fund.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market in the proprietary funds. Cost is determined by
the first-in, first-out method. The cost is recorded as an expense at the time individual inventory items
are consumed.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).
All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues

In applying the measurable and available concepts to grants and intergovernmental revenues, the legal
and contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are,
however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific
purpose or project before any amounts are considered “earned”; therefore, revenues are recognized
based on expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of
expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance
requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the
measurable and available criteria are met.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt. The
accompanying financial statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers. Operating subsidies
are also recorded as transfers.

Accrued Leave

All full-time employees are eligible for paid personal leave. Accrued leave is recorded as an expense
in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is
reported in the governmental fund financial statements only if they have matured (e.g. the employee
has terminated employment).
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. As a
phase 3 government for GASB Statement 34 purposes, the City has recorded additions to infrastructure
capital assets (e.g. roads, sidewalks, etc.) prospectively from the GASB Statement 34 implementation
date, which was June 30, 2003. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value. Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset
with equivalent service potential in an orderly market transaction at the acquisition date.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that
do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the useful life of the asset are not capitalized.
Property, plant, and equipment of the City is depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 25 - 40 years
Improvements other than buildings 10 - 25 years
Machinery and equipment 5 - 25 years

Long-term Debt

In the government-wide and the proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.

Fund Balances

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregate amounts for five
classifications of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. The
nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form - prepaid items or inventories; or (b) legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact.

The spendable portion of fund balances comprises the remaining four classifications: restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Restricted Fund Balance - This classification reflects the constraints imposed on resources either
(a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or
(b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balance - These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal ordinances of the City Council - the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless
the City Council removes the specified use by taking the same type of action imposing the
commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing
resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual
requirements.
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Assigned Fund Balance - This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the City’s “intent”
to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The City Council and
City Manager have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund
balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in
governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as nonspendable and are
neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance - This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. It
is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
externally restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources - committed, assigned, and
unassigned - in order as needed.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
expenditures are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. Any
encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as appropriate constraints of fund balances if they
meet the definitions and criteria as outlined above.

Unearned Grant Revenue

Amounts received from grantor agencies, which are restricted as to use and have not been expended
for the intended use are shown as unearned revenue.

Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

All full-time permanent employees of the City participate in the Public Employees' Retirement System
(“PERS”) administered by the State of Alaska.

For purposes of measuring the net pension and net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, and pension and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and
additions to/from PERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions)
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Budgets and Budgetary Compliance

Kotzebue City Code requires that the City Manager prepare and submit a budget to the Council by
November 15t of each year. The Council will hold public hearings on the budget and must adopt the
budget and make the appropriation ordinance not later than December 15%. If the Council does not
adopt a budget, the original budget submission shall become the budget. The City Council may amend
the budget at any time, following the public hearing process. All appropriations lapse at year end,
unless they have been expended or lawfully encumbered.

22
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

2. Cash and Investments

The City of Kotzebue utilizes a central treasury that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's portion
of the central treasury is displayed on the balance sheet as "Cash and investments”, or in the case of
“negative” cash, is included in "Due to other funds.”

Reconciliation of Deposit and Investment Balances

The following is a reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances to the financial
statements at December 31, 2022.

Bank deposits S 3,970,693
Investments:
Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP) 373,530
Certificates of deposit 233,041
Total Cash and Investments S 4,577,264
Investments

Investment Policy

The City is authorized to invest in the following instruments. All securities purchased by the City and
all other City investments must mature not later than the time indicated below, measured from the
date of the City's investment transaction.

1. Obligations of, or obligations insured or guaranteed by the United States or an agency or
instrumentality of the United States - up to ten (10) years.

2. Certificates of deposit and other deposits at banks and savings and loans associations - up to
ten (10) years.

3. Federally insured deposits at banks and savings and loan associations - up to ten (10) years.

4. Bonds and notes which are issued by a State or political subdivision thereof, or pursuant to the
Tribal Tax Statutes Act 26 U.S.C. Sec. 7871 and which are rated AA or higher by a nationally
recognized rating service - up to ten (10) years.

5. Commercial paper issued by corporations and having the highest rating given by a nationally
recognized rating service - two hundred seventy (270) days.

6. Bankers acceptances drawn on and accepted (a) at banks, all of whose debt issues are rated at
least AA or its equivalent by a nationally recognized rating service or (b) if the bank is a
subsidiary of one bank holding company, all of whose commercially held paper has the highest
rating given by a nationally recognized rating service or whose debt issues meet the
requirements in (a) above - one hundred eighty (180) days.
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7. Money market mutual funds whose portfolio consists entirely of instruments - maturity date not
applicable, which are U.S. government, or U.S. government guaranteed obligations, which have
a constant net asset value.

8. Repurchase agreements, the securities underlying the agreement being any of the items listed
in subsection 1 and 6 of this section which meet a margin requirement of 102%.

9. The Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool, made in accordance with terms of that Pool’s
“Common Investment Agreement.”

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value to changes in market interest rates.

The City of Kotzebue, Alaska’s investments at December 31, 2022 consisted of nonnegotiable
certificates of deposit and investment in the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool (AMLIP), which
are not subject to interest rate risk.

Fair Value Measurement

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the
fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Cash and investments include $373,530 invested in the Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool). The
Pool was rated a principal stability rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s (S&P). Stand-alone financial
statements can be obtained by writing to the Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co., 900 West
Fifth Avenue, Suite 601, Anchorage, Alaska 99501 or visiting www.amlip.org.

The City does not have any recurring fair value measurements as of December 31, 2022.

The City has investments in certificates of deposit totaling $233,041 that are not held at fair value, but
instead recorded at amortized cost as of December 31, 2022.

Alaska Statute (AS) 37.23 provides for regulatory oversight of the Pool. The Statute provides
requirements regarding authorized investments and reporting. The Pool is incorporated in Alaska as a
nonprofit corporation and reports to a board of directors. AS 37.23.050 requires retention of an
investment manager. The manager is required to produce monthly disclosure statements for the Pool.
An investment advisor monitors the performance of the investment manager to ensure compliance with
investment policies. The Pool must maintain a dollar-weighted average maturity of 90 days or less, and
only purchase instruments having remaining maturities of 397 days or less. The fair value of the
investments in the Pool are reviewed monthly by an independent pricing service. The Pool meets the
standards for reporting investments at amortized cost with regard to portfolio requirements including
maturity, quality, diversification, liquidity and shadow price. There are no restrictions or limitations
on withdrawals from the Pool. As of December 31, 2022, the fair value of the investments in the Pool
approximates the amortized cost at which they are reported. The fair value of our investments in the
Pool is the same as the value of our Pool units.
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Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in possession of an outside party. Of the bank balance at December 31, 2022,
$250,000 was covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), $3,760,738 was subject to
a collateral agreement with the depository financial institutions and $10,399 was not insured or
collateralized.

3. Receivables

The City maintains accounts receivable balances of which a portion is reserved as an allowance for
doubtful accounts. At December 31, 2022, receivables for the City’s individual major funds and
nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows:

Nonmajor Total

Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds

Accounts S 263,311 S - S 263,311
Grants and shared revenues 97,929 9,591 107,520
Sales tax 513,588 - 513,588
Total Receivables S 874,828 S 9,591 S 884,419

Major Enterprise Funds

Total

Water & Enterprise

Sewer Refuse Funds

Accounts S 241,228 S 180,211 S 421,439

Grants and shared revenues 819,223 - 819,223

Total receivables 1,060,451 180,211 1,240,662
Less allowance for uncollectible

accounts (91,070) (107,976) (199,046)

Net Receivables S 969,381 ) 72,235 S 1,041,616

Governmental funds report deferred inflows in connection with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
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4, Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 follows:

Balance Balance
December Additions  Deletions December
Governmental Activities 31, 2021 & Reclass & Reclass 31, 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements $ 575,000 $ - S S 575,000
Construction in progress 26,040,330 12,523,830 (37,088) 38,527,072
Total assets not being depreciated 26,615,330 12,523,830 (37,088) 39,102,072
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 773,908 - 773,908
Buildings 8,442,815 8,442,815
Small boat harbor 9,590,671 - 9,590,671
Machinery and equipment 4,411,544 687,395 5,098,939
Total capital assets being depreciated 23,218,938 687,395 23,906,333
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure 12,898 51,594 64,492
Buildings 4,769,110 221,790 - 4,990,900
Small boat harbor 3,170,844 482,040 - 3,652,884
Machinery and equipment 3,082,721 242,397 - 3,325,118
Total accumulated depreciation 11,035,573 997,821 12,033,394
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 12,183,365 (310,426) - 11,872,939

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, net $ 38,798,695 $12,213,404 $ (37,088) $50,975,011

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Balance Balance
December Additions  Deletions December
Business-type Activities 31, 2021 & Reclass & Reclass 31, 2022
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements $ 230,983 S - S - § 230,983
Construction in progress 21,483,193 4,844,193  (260,175) 26,067,210
Total assets not being depreciated 21,714,176 4,844,193  (260,175) 26,298,194
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 2,381,895 - 2,381,895
Improvements other than buildings 89,804,214 - 89,804,214
Machinery and equipment 4,438,368 1,603,549 6,041,917
Total capital assets being depreciated 96,624,477 1,603,549 98,228,026
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,889,531 79,400 - 1,968,931
Improvements other than buildings 67,537,907 1,372,836 68,910,743
Machinery and equipment 3,837,185 123,472 3,960,657
Total accumulated depreciation 73,264,623 1,575,708 74,840,331
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,359,854 27,841 - 23,387,695

Business-type Activity Capital Assets, net $45,074,030 $

4,872,034 S (260,175) $ 49,685,889

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:

Governmental Activities

General government S 62,914
Public safety 180,358
Public works 637,463
Parks and recreation 117,086
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities S 997,821

Business-type Activities

Water and sewer utility
Refuse

S 1,456,668
119,040

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities

$ 1,575,708

In 2022, $1,133,544 and $81,237 was transferred from the governmental funds to Refuse Enterprise
Fund and Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund, respectively.
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5. Interfund Receivables, Payables, Advances and Transfers

A schedule of interfund balances and transfers for the year ended December 31, 2022, follows:

Due from Other Funds
Due to the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund from:

General Fund S 842,365
Special Revenue Fund 102,249
Bar and Grill Enterprise Fund 348,326
Refuse Enterprise Fund 406,845
Total Due from Other Funds $ 1,699,785

Transfers to Other Funds
From General Fund to:
Special Revenue Funds S 73,646

Total Transfers S 73,646

6. Long-term Liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions of the City for the year ended December
M, 2022;

Balance Balance Due

December December Within

Governmental Activities 31, 2021 Additions Deletions 31,2022 One Year
Accrued leave S 191,653 $§ 416,868 S (409,689) S 198,832 $ 198,832
Net pension liability 5,852,171 620,383 - 6,472,554 -

Total Governmental Activities $ 6,043,824 § 1,037,251 $ (409,689) $ 6,671,386 S 198,832

The long-term liabilities related to governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General
Fund.

Balance Balance Due

December December Within

Business-type Activities 31, 2021 Additions Deletions 31,2022 One Year
Accrued leave S 45,674 § 117,779 $ (125,695) S 37,758 S 37,758
Estimated landfill closure costs 182,936 151,941 - 334,877 -
Net pension liability 1,239,718 631,779 - 1,871,497 -

Total Business-type Activities $ 1,468,328 $ 901,499 $ (125,695) § 2,244,132 5 37,758
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7. Fund Balances

Fund balances, reported for the major funds and the nonmajor funds in the aggregate, on the
governmental funds balance sheet are subject to the following constraints:

Nonmajor
General Funds Totals
Nonspendable - prepaid items S 454,643 S 96,340 S 550,983
Committed - Water & Sewer Capital Projects - 327,418 327,418
Assigned - public safety - 66,059 66,059
Unassigned (318,606) (96,936) (415,542)
Total Fund Balances S 136,037 $ 392,881 § 528,918

8. Municipal Landfill Closure and Post closure Liability

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its landfill site when it
stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30
years after closure. Although closure and post closure care costs will be paid only near or after the
date the landfill stops accepting waste, generally accepted accounting principles require that the City
report a portion of these closure and post closure care costs each period based on landfill capacity used
as of each balance sheet date.

Management estimates that one of the two existing cells are 100% full and the other cell is
approximately 79% full. Cell one is fully capped. The $334,877 reported as landfill closure liability at
December 31, 2022 represents the estimated closing cost once the cell is at capacity. The remaining
life of the cell currently being used is estimated to be approximately 23 years.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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9. Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
(a) Defined Benefit (DB) Pension Plan
General Information About the Plan

The City participates in the Alaska Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS). PERS is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer plan which covers eligible State and local government employees, other
than teachers. The Plan was established and is administered by the State of Alaska Department of
Administration. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be
amended only by the State Legislature.

The Plan is included in an annual comprehensive financial report that includes financial statements
and other required supplemental information. That report is available via the internet at
https://drb.alaska.gov/docs/reports/#pers. Actuarial valuation reports, audited financial
statements, and other detailed plan information are also available on this website.

The Plan provides for retirement, death and disability, and postemployment healthcare benefits.
There are three tiers of employees, based on entry date. For all tiers within the Defined Benefit
(DB) plan, full retirement benefits are generally calculated using a formula comprised of a multiplier
times the average monthly salary (AMS) times the number of years of service. The multiplier is
increased at longevity milestone markers for most employees. Peace/Fire employees accrue
benefits at an accelerated rate. The tiers within the Plan establish differing criteria regarding
normal retirement age, early retirement age, and the criteria for calculation of AMS, COLA
adjustments, and other postemployment benefits (OPEB). A complete benefit comparison chart is
available at the website noted above.

The PERS DB Plan was closed to new entrants effective July 1, 2006. New employees hired after
that date participate in the PERS Defined Contribution (DC) Plan described later in these notes.

Historical Context and Special Funding Situation

In April 2008, the Alaska Legislature passed legislation converting the previously existing PERS plan
from a DB agent-multiple-employer plan to a DB cost-sharing plan with an effective date of July 1,
2008. In connection with this conversion, the State of Alaska passed additional legislation which
statutorily capped the employer contribution rate, established a state funded “on-behalf”
contribution (subject to funding availability), and required that employer contributions be
calculated against all PERS eligible wages, including wages paid to participants of the PERS Tier IV
defined contribution plan described later in these notes. The Alaska Legislature has the power and
authority to change the aforementioned statute through the legislative process.

Alaska Statute 39.35.280 requires the State of Alaska to contribute to the Plan an amount such that,
when combined with the employer contribution, is sufficient to pay the Plan’s past service liability
contribution rate as adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management Board (ARM Board). As such,
the Plan is considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB, and management has
recorded all pension related liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows of resources, and disclosures on
this basis.

The City recorded the related on-behalf contributions as revenue and expense or expenditures as
prescribed by GAAP, pursuant to the relevant basis of accounting based on fund type.
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Employee Contribution Rates

Regular employees are required to contribute 6.75% of their annual covered salary. Peace officers
and firefighters are required to contribute 7.50% of their annual covered salary.

Employer and Other Contribution Rates

There are several contribution rates associated with the pension contributions and related
liabilities. These amounts are calculated on an annual basis.

Employer Effective Rate: This is the contractual employer pay-in rate. Under current legislation,
the amount calculated for the statutory employer effective contribution rate is 22% on eligible
wages. This 22% rate is calculated on all PERS participating wages, including those wages
attributable to employees in the DC plan. Contributions derived from the DC employee payroll is
referred to as the Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability or DBUL contribution.

ARM Board Adopted Rate: This is the rate formally adopted by the Alaska Retirement Management
Board. This rate is actuarially determined and used to calculate annual Plan funding requirements,
without regard to the statutory rate cap or the GASB accounting rate. Effective July 1, 2015, the
Legislature requires the ARM Board to adopt employer contribution rates for past service liabilities
using a level percent of pay method over a closed 25-year term which ends in 2039. This change
results in lower ARM Board Rates than previously adopted.

State Contribution Rate: This is the rate paid in by the State as an on-behalf payment under the
current statute. The statute requires the State to contribute, based on funding availability, an on-
behalf amount equal to the difference between the ARM Board Rate and the Employer Effective
Rate. In the governmental fund financial statements, on-behalf contribution amounts have been
recognized as additional revenues and expenditures. In the proprietary funds and government-wide
financial statements, the on-behalf amounts reflect revenue and expense only during the
measurement period in which the Plan recognizes the payments, resulting in a significant timing
difference between the cash transfers and revenue and expense recognition.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.

92




Section X, Item F.

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Contribution rates are actuarially determined. The City’s contribution rates for the 2022 calendar
year were as follows:

State
ARM Board Contribution
January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022 Adopted Rate Rate
Defined benefit plans:
Pension 20.89% 8.11%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) 3.12% -%
Defined contribution - Pension 6.10% -%
Total Contribution Rates 30.11% 8.11%
State
ARM Board Contribution
July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 Adopted Rate Rate
Defined benefit plans:
Pension 18.38% 2.79%
Postemployment healthcare (ARHCT) -% -%
Defined contribution - Pension 6.41% -%
Total Contribution Rates 24.79% 2.79%

Alaska Statue 39.35.255(a) capped the employer rate at 22% with the State of Alaska making a
nonemployer contribution for the difference between actuarially required contribution and the cap.
For the period from January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022 the employer rate is 15.54% for pension and
6.46% for ARHCT and for the period from July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 the employer rate is
22.00% for pension and 0.00% for ARHCT. The contribution requirements for the City are established
and may be amended by the ARMB. Additionally, there is a Defined Benefit Unfunded Liability
(DBUL) amount levied against the DCR Plan payroll. The DBUL amount is computed as the difference
between (a) amount calculated for the statutory employer contribution rate of 22.00% on eligible
salary less (b) total of the employer contribution for (1) defined contribution employer matching
amount, (2) major medical, (3) occupational death and disability, and (4) health reimbursement
arrangement. The difference is deposited based on an actuarial allocation into the defined benefit
plan’s pension and healthcare funds.

In 2022, the City was credited with the following contributions to the pension plan.

Measurement Period City Fiscal Year

July 1, 2021 January 1, 2022

to to

June 30, 2022 December 31, 2022

Employer contributions (including DBUL) S 687,442 S 753,024
Nonemployer contributions (on-behalf) 428,350 301,502
Total Contributions $ 1,115,792 $ 1,054,526

In addition, employee contributions to the Plan totaled $388,282 during the City’s fiscal year.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2022, the City reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability (NPL) that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the City. The amount
recognized by the City for its proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total portion
of the net pension liability that was associated with the City were as follows:

2022

City proportionate share of NPL
State’s proportionate share of NPL associated with the City

$ 8,344,051
2,308,291

Total Net Pension Liability

$ 10,652,342

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 and adjusted to reflect updated
assumptions to calculate the net pension liability as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, including the State,
actuarially determined. At the June 30, 2022 measurement date, the City’s proportion was 0.16371
percent, which was a decrease of 0.02961 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $(693,611) and on-
behalf revenue of $428,350 for support provided by the State. At December 31, 2022, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 238,559
Changes in proportion and differences between City

contributions and proportionate share of contributions -
City contributions subsequent to the measurement date 399,809

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions S 638,368 S
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The $399,810 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net
pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year Ending December 31,

2023 S (28,361)
2024 (72,696)
2025 (174,514)
2026 514,130

2027 -

Thereafter

Total Amortization S 238,559

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, using the
actuarial assumptions listed below, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Unfunded Accrued Actuarial Liability, level percent of pay basis
Inflation 2.50% per year

Salary increases For peace officers/firefighters, increases range from 8.50% to

3.85% based on service. For all others, increases range from 6.75%
to 2.85% based on service.

Allocation methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2022 measurement date were allocated
to employers based on the ratio of the present value of projected
future contributions for each employer to the total present value
of projected future contributions for the Plan for the fiscal years
2023 to 2039. The liability is expected to go to zero at 2039.

Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of pension plan investment expenses. This is based on
an average inflation rate of 2.50% and a real rate of return of

4.75%.
Mortality Pre-commencement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
Peace officer/firefighter Safety Employee table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-

2021 generational improvement. Deaths are assumed to result
from occupational causes 70% of the time. Post-commencement
mortality rates for healthy retirees were based on the Pub-2010
Safety Retiree table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-
2021 generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality
rates for disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Safety
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Disabled Retiree table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-
2021 generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality
rates for beneficiaries were based on the Pub-2010 Contingent
Survivor table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021
generational improvement. These rates are applied only after the
death of the original member.

All others Pre-commencement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
General Employee table, amount-weighted, and projected with
MP-2021 generational improvement. Deaths are assumed to result
from occupational causes 35% of the time. Post-commencement
mortality rates for healthy retirees were based on 98% of male and
106% of female rates of the Pub-2010 General Retiree table,
amount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational
improvement. Post-commencement mortality rates for disabled
retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree
table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021
generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality rates
for beneficiaries were based on 102% of male and 108% of female
rates of the Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor table, amount-
weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational improvement.
These rates are applied only after the death of the original
member.

Other See the experience study report dated July 15, 2022.

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 and adjusted to reflect updated assumptions.
The updated demographic and economic assumptions were adopted by the Board in June 2022 based
on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2021. The
new assumptions were adopted to better reflect expected future experience and are effective June
30, 2022.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return, excluding the inflation component
of 2.88%, for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June
30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Range Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity 27% +/- 6% 6.51 %
Global equity (non-U.S.) 18% +/- 4% 5.70 %
Aggregate bonds 21% +/- 10% 0.31 %
Opportunistic 6% +/- 4% - %
Real assets 14% +/- 7% 3.71 %
Private equity 14% +/- 6% 9.61 %
Cash equivalents -% -% (0.50)%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The discount rate used
changed from the prior measurement date. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employer and State contributions will continue to follow the current
funding policy, which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower or one
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current 1%
Proportional 1% Decrease Discount Rate Increase
Share (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
City’s proportionate share of
the net pension
liability 0.16371% $ 11,232,887 S 8,344,051 $§ 5,908,167
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

(b) Defined Contribution (DC) Pension Plan

Employees hired after July 1, 2006 participate in PERS Tier IV, a DC plan. This Plan is administered by
the State of Alaska, Department of Administration in conjunction with the DB plan noted above. Benefit
and contribution provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State
Legislature. The Alaska Retirement Management Board may also amend contribution requirements.
Included in the Plan are individual pension accounts, a retiree medical insurance plan and a separate
Health Reimbursement Arrangement account that will help retired members pay medical premiums
and other eligible medical expenses not covered by the medical plan. This Plan is included in the
annual comprehensive financial report for PERS, and at the following website, as noted above.
https://drb.alaska.gov/docs/reports/#pers.

Contributions to the DC plan consist solely of employer and employee contributions with no special
funding or other nonemployer contributions. Inaddition, actual remittances to the PERS system require
that the City contribute at 22%. After deducting the DC plan contributions (and related OPEB
contributions), the remaining remittance (the DBUL) is deposited into the DB plan as noted earlier.

Benefit Terms

Employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and vest 25% with two years of service,
plus an additional 25% per year thereafter for full vesting at five years of service. Nonvested
employer contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment from the Plan. Such
forfeitures were applied in the year ended December 31, 2022 to cover a portion of the City’s
employer match contributions. For the year ended December 31, 2022, forfeitures reduced pension
expense by $64,905.

Employee Contribution Rate

Employees are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary. This amount goes directly to
the individual’s account.

Employer Contribution Rate

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City was required to contribute 5% of covered salary into
the Plan.

The City and employee contributions to PERS for pensions for the year ended December 31, 2022 were
$242,677 and $388,282, respectively. The City contribution amount was recognized as pension
expense/expenditures.

(c) Defined Benefit OPEB Plans
As part of its participation in PERS, the City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit OPEB plans: Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust (ARHCT), Retiree Medical
Plan (RMP) and Occupational Death and Disability Plan (ODD).
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The ARHCT, a healthcare trust fund, provides major medical coverage to retirees of the DB plan.
The ARHCT is self-funded and self-insured. The ARHCT was closed to all new members effective July
1, 2006. Benefits vary by Tier level. The RMP provides major medical coverage to retirees of the
PERS DC Plan (Tier IV). The RMP is self-insured. Members are not eligible to use the Plan until they
have at least 10 years of service and are Medicare age eligible. The ODD provides death benefits for
beneficiaries of plan participants and long-term disability benefits to all active members within
PERS. The Plans are administered by the State of Alaska, Department of Administration. The OPEB
plans are included in the annual comprehensive financial report for PERS, at the following website,
https://drb.alaska.gov/docs/reports/#pers.

Employer Contribution Rates

Employer contribution rates are actuarily determined and adopted by and may be amended by the
Board. Employees do not contribute.

Employer contribution rates for the year ended December 31, 2022 were as follows:

January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022 Other Peace/Fire
Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust 6.46% 6.46%
Retiree Medical Plan 1.07% 1.07%
Occupational Death and Disability 0.31% 0.68%
Total Contribution Rates 7.84% 8.21%
July 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 Other Peace/Fire
Alaska Retiree Healthcare Trust -% -%
Retiree Medical Plan 1.10% 1.10%
Occupational Death and Disability 0.30% 0.68%
Total Contribution Rates 1.40% 1.78%
In 2022, the City was credited with the following contributions to the OPEB plans:
Measurement Period City Fiscal Year
July 1, 2021 January 1, 2022
to to
June 30, 2022 December 31, 2022
Employer contributions - ARHCT S 42,028 S 20,349
Employer contributions - RMP 49,177 52,671
Employer contributions - ODD 19,840 20,818
Total Contributions S 111,045 S 93,838

a0
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OPEB Assets, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB Plans

At December 31, 2022, the City reported an asset for its proportionate share of the net OPEB asset
(NOA) that reflected a reduction for State OPEB support provided to the City. The amount
recognized by the City for its proportional share, the related State proportion, and the total were
as follows:

City’s proportionate share of NOA - ARHCT S 3,199,396
City’s proportionate share of NOA - RMP 100,942
City’s proportionate share of NOA - ODD 150,747
Total City’s Proportionate Share of NOA S 3,451,085
State's proportionate share of the ARHCT NOA associated with the City 915,402
Total Net OPEB Asset S 4,366,487

The total OPEB asset for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 and adjusted to reflect updated
assumptions to calculate the net OPEB asset as of that date. The City’s proportion of the net OPEB
asset was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plans
relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined.

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2022

Measurement Measurement

Date Employer Date Employer
Proportion Proportion Change

City’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB asset:

ARHCT 0.19420% 0.16261% (0.03159)%
RMP 0.29274% 0.29065% (0.00209)%
0ODD 0.36577% 0.34388% (0.02189)%

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of $(888,786). Of this
amount, $(310,956) was recorded for on-behalf revenue and expense for support provided by the
ARHCT plan. OPEB expense and on-behalf revenue is listed by plan in the table below:

Plan OPEB expense On-behalf revenue
ARHCT S (910,701) S (310,956)
RMP 22,659 -
0ODD (744) -
Total S (888,786) S (310,956)

a0

100




City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Section X, Item F.

At December 31, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to OPEB plans from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources ARHCT RMP 0oDD Total
Difference between expected and actual '

experience S $ 5,004 S - S 5,004
Changes in assumptions 19,545 19,545
Difference between projected and actual

investment earnings 181,513 14,398 5,105 201,016
Changes in proportion and differences
between City contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 75,645 2,323 11,682 89,650
City contributions subsequent to the

measurement date - 27,055 10,478 37,534
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to OPEB Plans $ 257,158 § 68,325 S 27,265 S 352,748
Deferred Inflows of Resources ARHCT RMP ODD Total
Difference between expected and actual

experience §  (22,645) S (3,967) S (49,454) S (76,066)
Changes in assumptions (146,825) (121,033) (960) (268,818)
Changes in proportion and differences

between City contributions and

proportionate share of contributions (1,785) (8,004) (9,789)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB Plans S (169,470)

$(126,785) S (58,418) § (354,673)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB plans resulting from City
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction in the net
OPEB assets in the year ended December 31, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as

follows:

Year Ending December 31, ARHCT RMP 0oDD Total
2023 S (124,309) S§ (14,367) S (9,087) S (147,763)
2024 (63,657) (15,072) (9,342) (88,071)
2025 (143,403) (17,295) (10,153) (170,851)
2026 419,057 2,072 (3,319) 417,810
2027 - (18,126) (5,010) (23,136)
Thereafter (22,727) (4,720) (27,447)
Total Amortization $ 87,688 S (85,515) & (41,631) S (39,458)
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB asset for each plan was determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2021, using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Unfunded Accrued Actuarial Liability, level percent of pay basis
Inflation 2.50% per year

Salary increases For peace officers/firefighters, increases range from 8.50% to 3.85%

based on service. For all others, increases range from 6.75% to 2.85%
based on service.

Allocation methodology Amounts for the June 30, 2022 measurement date were allocated to
employers based on the ratio of the present value of projected future
contributions for each employer to the total present value of
projected future contributions to the Plan for fiscal years 2023 to
2039.

Investment rate of return 7.25%, net of postemployment healthcare plan investment expenses.
This is based on an average inflation rate of 2.50% and a real rate of
return of 4.75%.

Healthcare cost trend rates  Pre-65 medical: 7.0% grading down to 4.5%
(ARHCT and RMP Plans) Post-65 medical: 5.5% grading down to 4.5%
Prescription drug: 7.5% grading down to 4.5%
Rx/EGWP: 7.5% grading down to 4.5%
Initial trend rates are from FY 2023
Ultimate trend rates reached in FY 2050

Mortality Pre-commencement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
Peace officer/firefighter Safety Employee table, headcount-weighted, and projected with MP-
(ARHCT and RMP Plans) 2021 generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality

rates for healthy retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Safety Retiree
table, headcount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021
generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality rates for
disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Safety Disabled Retiree
table, headcount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021
generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality rates for
beneficiaries were based on the Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor table,
headcount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational
improvement. These rates are applied only after the death of the
original member.

(ODD Plan) Pre-commencement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
Safety Employee table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-
2021 generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality
rates for healthy retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Safety Retiree
table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational
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All others
(ARHCT and RMP Plans)

(ODD Plan)

(ARHCT and ODD Plans)

Participation (ARHCT)

Other

improvement. Post-commencement mortality rates for disabled
retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Safety Disabled Retiree table,
amount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational
improvement. Post-commencement mortality rates for beneficiaries
were based on the Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor table, amount-
weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational improvement.
These rates are applied only after the death of the original member.

Pre-commencement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
General Employee table, headcount-weighted, and projected with
MP-2021 generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality
rates for healthy retirees were based on 101% of male and 110% of
female rates of the Pub-2010 General Retiree table, headcount-
weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational improvement.
Post-commencement mortality rates for disabled retirees were based
on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree table, headcount-
weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational improvement.
Post-commencement mortality rates for beneficiaries were based on
101% of male and 108% of female rates of the Pub-2010 Contingent
Survivor table, headcount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021
generational improvement. These rates are applied only after the
death of the original member.

Pre-commencement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010
General Employee table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-
2021 generational improvement. Post-commencement mortality
rates for healthy retirees were based on 98% of male and 106% of
female rates of the Pub-2010 General Retiree table, amount-
weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational improvement.
Post-commencement mortality rates for disabled retirees were based
on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree table, amount-
weighted, and projected with MP-2021 generational improvement.
Post-commencement mortality rates for beneficiaries were based on
102% of male and 108% of female rates of the Pub-2010 Contingent
Survivor table, amount-weighted, and projected with MP-2021
generational improvement. These rates are applied only after the
death of the original member.

Deaths are assumed to result from occupational causes 35% of the
time.

100% of system paid members and their spouses are assumed to elect
the healthcare benefits paid as soon as they are eligible.

20% of nonsystem paid members and their spouses are assumed to
elect the healthcare benefits as soon as they are eligible.

See the experience study report dated July 15, 2022,
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The total OPEB asset for each plan was determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2021,
rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 and adjusted to reflect updated
assumptions. The updated demographic and economic assumptions were adopted by the Board in
June 2022 based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2017 to
June 30, 2021. The new assumptions were adopted to better reflect expected future experience
and are effective June 30, 2022. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 actuarial
valuation are the same as those used in the June 30, 2020 valuation with the following exceptions:

1. Per capita claims costs were updated to reflect recent experience.

2. The amount included in the Normal Cost for administrative expenses was updated to reflect
the most recent two years of actual administrative expenses paid for postretirement
healthcare plan assets.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for each plan was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of postretirement healthcare plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. The best estimates of arithmetic rates of return,
excluding the inflation component of 2.88% for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Range Real Rate of Return

Domestic equity 27% +/- 6% 6.51 %
Global equity (non-U.S.) 18% +/- 4% 5.70 %
Aggregate bonds 21% +/-10% 0.31 %
Opportunistic 6% +/- 4% - %
Real assets 14% +/- 7% 371 %
Private equity 14% +/- 6% 9.61 %
Cash equivalents -% -% (0.50) %

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB asset for each plan as of June 30, 2022 was 7.25%.
The discount rate used changed from the prior measurement date. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer and State contributions will continue
to follow the current funding policy which meets State statutes. Based on those assumptions, the
fiduciary net position or each plan was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total OPEB asset for each plan.
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the respective plan’s net
OPEB asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current
Proportional 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Share (6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
City’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB asset:

ARHCT 0.16261% S 1,900,903 $ 3,199,396 $ 4,288,299
RMP 0.29065% S (18,567) S 100,942 S 192,077
0DD 0.34388% S 142,003 S 150,747 S 157,588

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Asset to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net OPEB asset calculated using the
healthcare cost trend rates as summarized in the 2021 actuarial valuation reports as well as what
the City’s proportionate share of the respective plan’s net OPEB asset would be if it were calculated
using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Current

Healthcare

Proportional Cost Trend
Share 1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase

City’s proportionate share of the
net OPEB asset:

ARHCT 0.16261% S 4,416,396 $ 3,199,396 S 1,746,064
RMP 0.29065% S 204,592 S 100,942 S (38,668)
ODD 0.34388% S n‘a $ nfa § n/a

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued PERS financial report.

(d) Defined Contribution OPEB Plans
PERS DC Pension Plan participants (PERS Tier IV) also participate in the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement Plan (HRA Plan). The HRA Plan allows for medical care expense to be reimbursed from

individual savings accounts established for eligible persons. The HRA Plan became effective July 1,
2006 at which time contributions by employers began.

44
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Contribution Rate

AS 39.30,370 establishes this contribution amount as “three percent of the average annual employee
compensation of all employees of all employers in the plan”. As of July 1, 2022, for actual remittance,
this amount is calculated as a flat rate for each full-time or part-time employee per pay period and
approximates $2,237 per year for each full-time employee, and $1.43 per hour for part-time
employees.

Annual Postemployment Healthcare Cost

In 2022, the City contributed $129,374 in DC OPEB costs. This amount has been recognized as
expense/expenditures.

10. Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all full-time employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. In accordance with the Internal Revenue
Code, all assets and income of the Plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and
their beneficiaries.

11. Risk Management

The City faces a considerable number of risks of loss, including (a) damage to and loss of property and
contents, (b) employee torts, (c) professional liability; i.e., errors and omissions, (d) environmental
damage, (e) workers' compensation; i.e., employee injuries, and (f) medical insurance costs of
employees. Commercial policies, transferring the risk of loss, except for relatively small deductible
amounts, are purchased for employee medical costs. The City participates in the Alaska Municipal
League Joint Insurance Association (AML/JIA) which provides insurance coverage for property and
contents damage, torts, general and automobile liability, and workers’ compensation. The City has no
coverage for potential losses from environmental pollution damages. The AML/JIA is a public City risk
pool organized to share risks among its members. The Association's bylaws provide for the assessment
of supplemental contributions from members in the event that losses and expenses for any coverage
year exceed the annual contributions and income earned on such contributions for the year. Such
supplemental contributions shall be based upon each member's annual deposit contribution in
comparison to the aggregate annual deposit contributions of all members. The Association made no
supplemental assessments during the year ended December 31, 2022. Coverage limits and the
deductibles on the policies have stayed relatively constant for the last several years.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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12. Contingencies
Grants

Amounts received or receivable from granting agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the
granting agency. Any disallowed grant expenditures, including amounts already collected, would
become a liability of the City.

Other

The City, in the normal course of its activities, is involved in various claims and litigation. In the opinion
of management and the City's legal counsel, the disposition of these matters is not expected to have a
material adverse effect on the City's financial statements.

13. New Accounting Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several new accounting standards
with upcoming implementation dates (effective dates are adjusted for the issuance of GASB
Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance). The
following new accounting standards were considered and/or implemented by the Authority for 2022
reporting:

GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases - Effective for year-end December 31, 2022, This Statement
addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases. This Statement establishes a single model for lease
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an
underlying asset. The City analyzed all active leases to determine which leases applied to GASB 87,
then accounted for those leases accordingly.

GASB Statement No. 89 - Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period - Effective for year-end December 31, 2022. This Statement requires that interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which
the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus. The City evaluated the impacts of GASB 89 and determined there to be no impact to the
City’s financial statements for the current fiscal year.

GASB Statement No. 92 - Omnibus 2020 - Provisions of this Statement related to the effective date
of Statement No. 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology
used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. The effective date for all other
provisions of the Statement are to be implemented for year-end December 31, 2022. This Statement
addresses a variety of topics such as leases, the applicability of Statement No. 73 and Statement
No. 74 for reporting assets accumulated for postemployment benefits, the applicability of
Statement No. 84 to postemployment benefit arrangements, the measurements of liabilities and
assets related to asset retirement obligations in a government acquisition, reporting of public entity
risk pools, referencing to nonrecurring fair value measurements, and terminology used to refer to
derivative instruments. The City evaluated the impacts of GASB 92 and determined there to be no
impact to the City’s financial statements for the current fiscal year.
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GASB Statement No. 93 - Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates - The provisions of this Statement,
except for paragraph 11b, 13 and 14, are required to be implemented for year-end December 31,
2021. The requirements in paragraph 11b, 13 and 14 are required to be implemented for year-end
December 31, 2022, This Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting implications that
result from the replacement of an interbank offered rate (IBOR). The City evaluated the impacts of
GASB 93 and determined there to be no impact to the City’s financial statements for the current
fiscal year.

GASB Statement No. 97 - Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - Effective for year-end
December 31, 2022, except the portion of the pronouncement related to component unit criteria,
which is effective for year-end December 31, 2020. This statement modifies certain guidance
contained in Statement No. 84 and enhances the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred
compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits
provided through those plans. The City evaluated the impacts of GASB 97 and determined there to
be no impact to the City’s financial statements for the current fiscal year.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued several new accounting standards with
upcoming implementation dates (effective dates adjusted for the issuance of GASB 95).
Management has not fully evaluated the potential effects of these statements, and actual impacts
have not yet been determined. The statements are as follows:

GASB Statement No. 91 - Conduit Debt Obligations - Effective for year-end December 31, 2023.This
Statement provides a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminates
diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements associated
with conduit obligations, and related note disclosures. This Statement clarifies the definition of a
conduit debt obligation and establishes standards for related accounting and financial reporting.

GASB Statement No. 94 - Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements - Effective for year-end December 31, 2023, The primary objective of this Statement
is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public
partnership arrangements (PPPs) and also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting
for availability payment arrangements (APA).

GASB Statement No. 96 - Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements - Effective for
year-end December 31, 2023. This statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial
reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end
users. This statement, among other things, defines a SBITA, establishes that a SBITA results in a
right-to-use subscription asset (an intangible asset) and a corresponding subscription liability,
provides capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, and requires note
disclosures regarding a SBITA.

GASB Statement No. 99 - Omnibus 2022 - Provisions of this Statement related to extension of the
use of LIBOR, accounting for SNAP distributions, disclosures of nonmonetary transactions, pledges
of future revenues by pledging governments, classification of certain provisions in Statement No.
34, as amended, and terminology updates related to Statement No. 53 and Statement No. 63 are
effective upon issuance. The effective date for the provisions of this Statement related to leases,
PPPs, and SBITAs are to be implemented for year-end December 31, 2023. The effective date for
the provisions of this Statement related to financial guarantees and the classification and reporting
of derivative instruments within the scope of Statement No. 53, are to be implemented for year-
end December 31, 2024.
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GASB Statement No. 100 - Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62 - Effective for year-end December 31, 2024. Earlier application is encouraged.
The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting
requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable,
reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing
accountability.

GASB Statement No. 101 - Compensated Absences - Effective for year-end December 31, 2025.
Earlier application is encouraged. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for
compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement
guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures.
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, Exhibit D-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Original Final Variance with
Year Ended December 31, 2022 Budget Budget Actual  Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 4,513,500 $ 4,513,500 §$ 5,113,431 & 599,931
Intergovernmental - Federal Government - 12,724,733 12,724,733
Intergovernmental - State of Alaska 1,513,193 1,513,193 1,566,557 53,364
Charges for services 1,515,000 1,515,000 1,326,191 (188,809)
Investment income (loss) 15,000 15,000 (11,477) (26,477)
Other 79,955 79,955 126,258 46,303
Total Revenues 7,636,648 7,636,648 20,845,693 13,209,045
Expenditures
General government 1,977,192 1,977,192 1,942,437 34,755
Public safety 4,616,004 4,616,004 4,358,748 257,256
Public works 2,399,234 2,399,234 14,780,125  (12,380,891)
Community services 110,000 110,000 84,489 25,511
Small boat harbor 78,901 78,901 71,087 7,814
Parks and recreation 358,200 358,200 267,495 90,705
Nondepartmental 15,000 15,000 16,716 (1,716)
Total Expenditures 9,554,531 9,554,531 21,521,097  (11,966,566)
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,917,883) (1,917,883) (675,404) 1,242,479
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,881,161 1,881,161 (1,881,161)
Transfers out - - (73,646) (73,646)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,881,161 1,881,161 (73,646)  (1,954,807)
Net change in fund balance S (36,722) § (36,722) (749,050) § (712,328)
Fund Balance, beginning 885,087
Fund Balance, ending $ 136,037

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information.
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Section X, Item F.

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
December 31, 2022

1. Public Employees’ Retirement System Pension Plan
Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2022, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2022.

Changes in Assumptions:

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 and adjusted to reflect updated assumptions.
The updated demographic and economic assumptions were adopted by the Board in June 2022
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2021.
The new assumptions were adopted to better reflect expected future experience and are effective
June 30, 2022.

In 2022, the discount rate was lowered from 7.38% to 7.25%.
Amounts reported reflect a change in assumptions between 2016 and 2017 in the method of
allocating the net pension liability from actual contributions to present value of projected future

contributions.

GASB requires ten years of information be presented. However, until a full ten years of information
is available, the City will present only those years for which information is available.

Schedule of City Contributions

This table is based on the City’s contributions for each fiscal year presented. These contributions
have been reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position.

GASB requires ten years of information be presented. However, until a full ten years of information
is available, the City will present only those years for which information is available.

The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.
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Section X, Item F.

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to Required Supplementary Information, continued

2. Public Employees’ Retirement System OPEB Plans

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Asset and Liability

This table is presented based on the Plan measurement date. For December 31, 2022, the Plan
measurement date is June 30, 2022.

Changes in Assumptions:

The total OPEB liability for each plan was determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2021,
rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022 and adjusted to reflect updated
assumptions. The updated demographic and economic assumptions were adopted by the Board in
June 2022 based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2017
to June 30, 2021. The new assumptions were adopted to better reflect expected future experience
and are effective June 30, 2022. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 actuarial
valuation are the same as those used in the June 30, 2020 valuation with the following exceptions:

1. Per capita claims costs were updated to reflect recent experience.

2. The amount included in the Normal Cost for administrative expenses was updated to
reflect the most recent two years of actual administrative expenses paid for
postretirement healthcare plan assets.

In 2022, the discount rate was lowered from 7.38% to 7.25%.

In 2019, an Employer Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) was implemented effective January 1, 2019. This
arrangement replaced the Retiree Drug Subsidy (RDS) under Medicare Part D and resulted in largest
projected subsidies to offset the cost of prescription drug coverage.

GASB requires ten years of information be presented. However, until a full 10 years of information
is available, the City will present only those years for which information is available.

Schedule of City Contributions

This table is based on the City’s contributions for each fiscal year presented. These contributions
have been reported as a deferred outflow of resources on the Statement of Net Position.

GASB requires ten years of information be presented. However, until a full ten years of information
is available, the City will present only those years for which information is available.
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Section X, Item F.

. Exhibit F-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Balance Sheet
Special Revenue Funds Capital Project Funds
Total
Emergency Village Nonmajor
Services AEA Legislative Repairsand Improve- Governmental
Year Ended December 31, 2022 E911 Forfeiture Lights Grants Replacement ment Funds
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ -5 1,389 § -8 - % 386,807 564,670 S5 452,866
Receivables - grants = 6,168 3,423 - - 9,591
Prepaid items 96,340 - - - 96,340
Total Assets 96,340 1,389 6,168 3,423 386,807 64,670 558,797
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable - - 855 59,389 60,244
Due to other funds 96,340 - 5,909 - - 102,249
Unearned revenue - - - 3,423 - 3,423
Total Liabilities 96,340 - 6,764 3,423 59,389 - 165,916
Fund Balances
Nonspendable - prepaid 96,340 o - - 96,340
Committed - Water & Sewer Capital Projects - - - - 327,418 327,418
Assigned 1,389 - - - 64,670 66,059
Unassigned (96,340) (596) - - - (96,936)
Total Fund Balances 1,389 (596) 327,418 64,670 392,881
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 96,340 S 1,389 56,168 § 3,423 § 386,807 564,670 S 558,797
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit F-2

Special Revenue Funds

Capital Project Funds

Emergency
Services

AEA

Legislative Repairs and

Village

Total
Nonmajor

Improve- Governmental

Year Ended December 31, 2022 E911 Forfeiture Lights Grants Replacement ment Funds
Revenues
Intergovernmental:
Federal Government S S - $24,491 S - S - 5 -5 24,491
State of Alaska - 855 100,766 - - 101,621
Local - - - - 433,032 433,032
Total Revenues - 25,346 100,766 - 433,032 559,144
Expenditures
Public safety 68,409 - - - - - 68,409
Capital outlay - 31,179 100,766 1,530,582 368,362 2,030,889
Total Expenditures 68,409 31,179 100,766 1,530,582 368,362 2,099,298
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (68,409) (5,833) - (1,530,582) 64,670 (1,540,154)
Other Financing Sources
Transfers in 68,409 5,237 - 73,646
Net change in fund balances (596) - (1,530,582) 64,670  (1,466,508)
Fund Balances, beginning - 1,389 - 1,858,000 - 1,859,389
Fund Balances, ending ) - 0§ 1,389 $5 (596) S $ 327,418 $64,670 S 392,881
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General Fund

Section X, Item F.

The General Fund accounts for the financial operations of City of Kotzebue which are not accounted
for in any other fund. Principal sources of revenues are intergovernmental revenues, charges for
services, and sales tax. Primary expenditures in the General Fund are for general government, public

safety and public works.
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Section X, Item F.

: Exhibit G-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
General Fund
Balance Sheet

December 31, 2022 2021
Current Assets
Cash and investments ) - § 251,265
Receivables:

Accounts 263,311 207,120

Grants and shared revenues 97,929 445,317

Sales tax 513,588 390,323
Prepaid items 454,643 427,690
Total Assets $ 1,329,471 § 1,721,715
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 151,146 & 132,545

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 127,514 293,510

Due to other funds 842,365 -
Total Liabilities 1,121,025 426,055
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Delinquent sales taxes - 10,643

ARPA revenues 1,054 393,887

Leases 65,313 -

E-911 surcharge revenues 6,042 6,043
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 72,409 410,573
Fund Balance

Nonspendable - prepaid items 454,643 427,690

Unassigned (318,606) 457,397
Total Fund Balance 136,037 885,087
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance $ 1,329,471 $ 1,721,715
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Exhibit G-2
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Revenues
Taxes:
Sales tax 3,856,000 4,457,924 S 601,924 $ 3,817,351
Alcohol use tax 180,500 186,100 5,600 180,432
Tobacco use tax 360,000 326,500 (33,500) 356,257
Hotel and bed tax 100,000 114,383 14,383 102,786
Penalties and interest 17,000 28,524 11,524 8,018
Total taxes 4,513,500 5,113,431 599,931 4,464,844
Intergovernmental:
Federal Government:
Department of Transportation 12,331,799 12,331,799 15,446,014
ARPA funding 392,834 392,834 391,780
Other - 100 100 51,430
Total Federal Government 12,724,733 12,724,733 15,889,224
State of Alaska:
Jail contract 982,050 1,079,979 97,929 982,050
State revenue sharing 88,180 146,115 57,935 88,180
PERS relief 357,342 233,878 (123,464) 311,995
Fisheries business shared tax - - - 8,924
Electric and telephone co-op tax 85,621 106,585 20,964 85,621
Total State of Alaska 1,513,193 1,566,557 53,364 1,476,770
Charges for services:
Administration fees 550,000 550,000 530,000
Ambulance services 965,000 776,191 (188,809) 903,842
Total charges for services 1,515,000 1,326,191 (188,809) 1,433,842
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

General Fund

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit G-2, continued

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Revenues, continued
Investment income (loss) S 15,000 $§ (11,477) S (26,477) S (593)
Other revenues:
Other rentals and leases 19,000 23,355 4,355 16,145
Permits, licenses and fines 18,250 21,035 2,785 24,679
Community activities 3,000 3,950 950 5,000
Other 39,705 77,918 38,213 310,513
Total other revenues 79,955 126,258 46,303 356,337
Total Revenues 7,636,648 20,845,693 13,209,045 23,620,424
Expenditures
General government:
City council and clerk:
Personnel 172,947 97,400 75,547 179,049
Books and publications 325 325 - 653
Supplies 3,600 3,553 47 3,426
Other services and charges 3,435 3,367 68 1,128
Telephone 3,000 2,794 206 1,871
Travel and per diem 35,015 39,142 (4,127) 4,450
Training 7,400 7,571 (171) 1,550
Dues and memberships 1,250 1,248 2 4,417
Insurance 1,900 2,086 (186) 1,485
Advertising - - - 284
Total city council and clerk 228,872 157,486 71,386 198,313
Administration:
Personnel 970,420 958,972 11,448 677,026
Electricity 6,700 7,275 (575) 8,524
Heating fuel 8,550 9,456 (906) 9,082
Books and publications 200 326 (126) 326
Supplies 24,500 25,924 (1,424) 30,326
Other services and charges 20,700 20,620 80 29,015
Telephone 26,200 26,148 52 30,432
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Exhibit G-2, continued

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021

Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual

Expenditures, continued
General government, continued:
Administration, continued:

Travel and per diem & 21,400 S 23,061 S (1,661) S 5,931
Training 2,900 2,886 14 399
Ambulance 3rd-party billing fees 4,500 4,176 324 23,761
Dues and memberships 100 100 - 724
Postage 2,600 2,401 199 3,336
Other consulting 122,000 124,685 (2,685) 116,344
Auditing and consulting 201,000 229,507 (28,507) 287,399
Legal 172,000 180,757 (8,757) 123,502
Insurance 8,900 9,773 (873) 13,639
Lobbying 51,850 51,819 31 99,385
Repairs and maintenance 75,500 77,615 (2,115) 41,438
Equipment and capital outlay 28,300 29,450 (1,150) 6,978
Total administration 1,748,320 1,784,951 (36,631) 1,507,567
Total general government 1,977,192 1,942,437 34,755 1,705,880

Public safety:

Police:
Personnel 1,523,674 1,298,230 225,444 1,197,374
Electricity 8,500 9,152 (652) 6,900
Heating fuel 7,000 6,286 714 4,936
Clothing 5,039 5,073 (34) 5,299
Supplies 28,909 28,164 745 10,452
Other services and charges 1,100 730 370 657
Telephone 9,798 10,567 (769) 6,431
Travel and per diem 9,451 7,098 2,353 6,819
Employee rent 5,000 (1,197) 6,197 1,521
Training 34,281 34,139 142 12,879
Dues and memberships 750 490 260 670
Consulting 22,314 17,114 5,200 21,893
Insurance 125,000 166,037 (41,037) 137,014
Advertising 1,000 e 1,000 138
Vehicle fuel 25,072 26,720 (1,648) 32,631
Repairs and maintenance 12,930 11,817 1913 8,741
Equipment and capital outlay 2,000 Z2,231 (231) 78,254
Animal control 4,698 4,647 51 -
Total police 1,826,516 1,627,298 199,218 1,532,609
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

General Fund

Exhibit G-2, continued

Section X, Item F.

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Expenditures, continued
Public safety, continued:
Jail:
Personnel $ 995,803 915,773 80,030 841,560
Electricity 10,231 12,564 (2,333) 11,281
Heating fuel 51,722 39,878 11,844 39,225
Supplies 50,477 48,058 2,419 23,451
Clothing 2,300 605 1,695 3,314
Telephone 9,296 10,065 (769) 5,537
Travel and per diem 9,381 - 9,381 3,081
Training 3,645 3,645 - 630
Employee rent 15,000 7,840 7,160 10,314
Television 1,925 1,325 600 1,097
Dues and memberships 150 - 150 =
Consulting 20,450 19,513 937 16,581
Insurance 90,000 109,537 (19,537) 109,667
Repairs and maintenance 31,212 11,654 19,558 9,737
Equipment and capital outlay 4,005 4,005 - 37,202
Total jail 1,295,597 1,184,462 111,135 1,112,677
Fire and emergency medical services:
Personnel 1,317,036 1,234,118 82,918 1,270,458
Electricity 14,000 12,375 1,625 15,505
Heating fuel 55,000 58,217 (3,217) 62,108
Supplies 4,850 5,629 (779) 5,790
Other services and charges 5,500 15,288 (9,788) 2,122
Clothing 19,700 4,306 15,394 2,379
Telephone 3,280 2,471 809 2,220
Travel and per diem (2,200) 12,617 (14,817) 8,036
Training 18,975 15,899 3,076 11,181
Insurance 8,500 11,821 (3,321) 9,073
Vehicle fuel 9,000 11,957 (2,957) 15,197
Repairs and maintenance 36,000 19,842 16,158 28,653
Equipment and capital outlay 4,250 142,448 (138,198) 1,238
Total fire and emergency medical services 1,493,891 1,546,988 (53,097) 1,433,960
Total public safety 4,616,004 4,358,748 257,256 4,079,246

125




City of Kotzebue, Alaska

General Fund

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit G-2, continued

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Expenditures, continued
Public works:
Public works department:
Personnel $ 1,355,925 $ 1,351,913 § 4,012 S 1,320,810
Street lighting 73,275 78,919 (5,644) 72,321
Electricity 13,000 10,861 2,139 11,363
Heating fuel 112,000 110,833 1,167 107,751
Supplies 3,918 3,526 392 12,827
Clothing 4,500 3,442 1,058 1,462
Telephone 5,063 5,062 1 7,716
Travel and per diem 3,662 3,661 1 -
Training 8,225 . 8,225 (285)
Dues and memberships 1,400 721 679 809
Professional services 30,000 25,402 4,598 2,915
Insurance 15,430 20,770 (5,340) 17,780
Vehicle fuel 112,000 113,288 (1,288) 66,495
Repairs and maintenance 192,978 145,687 47,291 156,301
Gravel 50,000 49,800 200 29,580
Equipment and capital outlay 16,799 12,377,360 (12,360,561) 16,915,552
Total public works department 1,998,175 14,301,245 (12,303,070) 18,723,397
Planning:
Personnel 196,699 91,879 104,820 137,753
Supplies 1,500 770 730 1,216
Other services and charges 250 - 250 25
Telephone 1,000 290 710 902
Travel and per diem 2,000 2,000 -
Training 2,500 - 2,500 -
Professional services 190,000 380,955 (190,955) 161,245
Insurance 2,525 2,781 (256) 1,980
Repairs and maintenance 2,585 1,697 888 3,866
Equipment and capital outlay 2,000 508 1,492 654
Total planning 401,059 478,880 (77,821) 307,641
Total public works 2,399,234 14,780,125 (12,380,891) 19,031,038
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Exhibit G-2, continued

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021

Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual

Expenditures, continued
Community services:

Community support ) 10,000 $ (12,536) § 22,536 $ 3,003
Kotzebue Broadcasting Inc. 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Northwest Arctic Borough - ice roads 65,055 65,055 - 49,351
Scholarship Fund 16,000 16,000 - 12,500
4th of July celebration 8,945 5,970 2,975 1,743
Total community services 110,000 84,489 25,511 76,597

Small boat harbor:

Personnel 52,710 36,046 16,664 39,038
R&R docks annually 1,500 1,298 202 1,052
Insurance 12,607 19,725 (7,118) 13,178
Electricity 11,189 13,123 (1,934) 11,684
Office supplies and equipment 895 895 - -
Total small boat harbor 78,901 71,087 7,814 64,952

Parks and recreation:

Personnel 181,790 210,954 (29,164) 186,507
Supplies 14,358 9,273 5,085 7,184
Other services and charges 11,032 4,291 6,741 29,127
Telephone 2,000 3,860 (1,860) 7,217
Travel and per diem 1,000 - 1,000 -
Insurance 13,000 13,142 (142) 14,806
Electricity 25,000 15,969 9,031 14,635
Heating fuel 62,000 11,787 50,213 34,396
Repairs and maintenance 18,020 (11,382) 29,402 38,207
Equipment and capital outlay 30,000 9,601 20,399 -
Total parks and recreation 358,200 267,495 90,705 332,079
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit G-2, continued

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance (Deficit) - Budget and Actual, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Nondepartmental:

Employee morale and health ) 15,000 $§ 16,716 S (1,716) S 10,462
Total nondepartmental 15,000 16,716 (1,716) 10,462
Total Expenditures 9,554,531 21,521,097 (11,966,566) 25,300,254
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,917,883) (675,404) 1,242,479 (1,679,830)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 1,881,161 - (1,881,161) 1,689,292
Transfers out (73,646) (73,646) (9,462)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,881,161 (73,646) (1,954,807) 1,679,830
Net change in fund balance S (36,722) (749,050) S (712,328) -
Fund Balance, beginning 885,087 885,087
Fund Balance, ending $ 136,037 S 885,087
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Section X, Item F.

Special Revenue Funds

These funds account for revenues from specific sources that are designated to finance particular
functions and activities.

Emergency Services E911 - This fund is used to account for the federal grant revenues restricted to
the acquisition, installation, and implementation of the new E-911 dispatch system of the City.

Forfeiture - This fund accounts for amounts received through court order relating to the seizure of
assets, which were either utilized in, or represented profits from, illicit or illegal activities. The
amounts are then utilized for activities that are related to the investigation of crimes involving
controlled substances.

AEA Lights - This fund is used to account for federal grant revenues restricted to the purchase and
retrofitting LED lights in the City.
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska Exnibit H-1
Emergency Services E911 Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2022
Final
Budget Actual Variance
Expenditures - public safety S 68,409 S (68,409)
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures - (68,409) (68,409)
Other Financing Sources - transfers in 68,409 68,409
Net change in fund balance - S
Fund Balance, beginning
Fund Balance, ending S
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Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Section X, Item F.

Exhibit H-2

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Final
Budget Actual  Variance
Revenues - local interest S S $
Net change in fund balance S - S -
Fund Balance, beginning 1,389
Fund Balance, ending ) 1,389
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska Exiibit H-3
AEA Lights Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Year Ended December 31, 2022
Final
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues - intergovernmental
Federal Government

S 24,491 S 24,491

State of Alaska 855 855
Total revenues - 25,346 25,346
Expenditures - capital outlay - 31,179 (31,179)
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures - (5,833) (5,833)
Other Financing Sources - transfers in - 5,237 5,237

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance, beginning

Fund Balance, ending
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Enterprise Funds

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business operations.

Water and Sewer Utility - This fund accounts for the operations of the water and sewer system.

Refuse - This fund accounts for the operations of the refuse collection service, baler and balefill.

Package Store - This fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned package store and
beverage delivery site.

Bar and Grill - This fund accounts for the operations of the City-owned restaurant.
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g Exhibit I-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska I
Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022 2021
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and investments $ 2,531,003 § 2,810,679
Receivables:
Accounts 241,228 334,852
Grants 819,223 1,407,484
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (91,070) (146,755)
Net receivables 969,381 1,595,581
Inventory 200,266 227,984
Due from other funds 1,699,785 1,053,647
Total Current Assets 5,400,435 5,687,891
Net other postemployment benefits assets 295,819 568,582
Property, plant, and equipment:
Construction work in progress 26,041,875 21,457,857
Improvements other than buildings 87,704,081 87,704,081
Machinery and equipment 2,992,176 2,522,171
Total property, plant, and equipment 116,738,132 111,684,109
Accumulated depreciation (69,175,014)  (67,718,346)
Net property, plant, and equipment 47,563,118 43,965,763
Total Assets 53,259,372 50,222,236
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related 54,719 55,367
OPEB related 30,237 17,767

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

$ 53,344,328

$ 50,295,370

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable S 810,996 S 1,462,443

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 12,023 10,271

Accrued leave 21,173 24,078
Total Current Liabilities 844,192 1,496,792
Noncurrent Liabilities

Net pension liability 715,231 575,824
Total Liabilities 1,559,423 2,072,616
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension related - 319,569

OPEB related 30,402 317,697
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 47,046,181 43,965,763

Unrestricted 4,708,322 3,619,725
Total Net Position 51,754,503 47,585,488
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $ 53,344,328 $ 50,295,370
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. Exhibit I-2
City of Kotzebue, Alaska —_—
Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Operating Revenues
Water use charges and connect fees 1,672,482 1,709,209
Sewer use charges and connect fees 796,902 787,131
Penalties and interest 12,120 28,407
Hydroflush services 14,250 10,835
Miscellaneous 2,394 1,436
Total Operating Revenues 2,498,148 2,537,018
Operating Expenses
Administration:
Postage 3,297 2,694
Credit card charges 16,810 13,653
Allocated administrative fees 286,000 275,000
Total administration 306,107 291,347
Water:
Personnel 206,460 297,868
Electricity 152,217 150,075
Heating fuel 156,905 189,747
Gas and oil 2,546 3,251
Building maintenance 5,622 2,482
Supplies 225,298 164,644
Other services and charges 3,918 -
Travel and per diem 1,557 1,645
Clothing 1,315 2,316
Telephone 10,441 5,655
Training 3,843 2,281
Professional services 5,623 30,823
Insurance 7,232 5,148
Repairs and maintenance 2,584 94,497
Total water 785,561 950,432
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Section X, Item F.

Exhibit 1-2, continued

Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, continued

Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Operating Expenses, continued
Sewer:
Personnel S 560,294 $ 499,608
Electricity 88,167 81,357
Supplies 131,132 100,567
Training 16,054 -
Telephone 67 .
Professional services 12,265 37,301
Insurance 5,005 3,974
Repairs and maintenance 34,490 44,172
Other 271 485
Total sewer 847,745 767,464
Depreciation 1,456,668 1,531,155
Total Operating Expenses 3,396,081 3,540,398
Loss from operations (897,933) (1,003,380)
Nonoperating Revenues
State PERS relief 12,925 151
Loss Before Transfers and Capital Contributions (885,008) (1,003,229)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in - (3,023,499)
Capital contributions - governmental funds 81,237 -
Capital contributions - grants 4,972,786 10,623,967
Net Other Financing Sources 5,054,023 7,600,468
Change in net position 4,169,015 6,597,239
Net Position, beginning 47,585,488 40,988,249

Net Position, ending

$ 51,754,503

$ 47,585,488
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R Exhibit I-
City of Kotzebue, Alaska Exhibit]3
Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users S 2,536,087 § 2,469,684
Payments to suppliers (2,027,325) (2,117,507)
Payments to employees (961,498) (813,289)
Payments for interfund services used (286,000) (275,000)
Net cash flows for operating activities (738,736) (736,112)
Cash Flows from (for) Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital grants received 5,642,284 10,431,691
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,537,086) (9,581,344)
Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities 1,105,198 850,347
Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities
Increase in due from other funds (646,138) 353,384
Decrease in advance to other funds - 453,049
Transfers out - (3,023,499)
Net cash flows for noncapital financing activities (646,138) (2,217,066)
Net decrease in cash and investments (279,676) (2,102,831)
Cash and Investments, beginning 2,810,679 4,913,510
Cash and Investments, ending $ 2,531,003 $ 2,810,679
Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash
flows for operating activities:
Loss from operations $ (897,933) S  (1,003,380)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from (for) operations to
net cash flows for operating activities:
Noncash expense - PERS relief 12,925 151
Depreciation 1,456,668 1,531,155
Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts (55,685) (35,369)
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Accounts receivable 93,624 (31,965)
Inventory 27,718 10,512
Net other postemployment benefits assets 272,763 (491,170)
Deferred outflows of resources - pension related 648 12,593
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related (12,470) 33,650
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts payable (1,168,384) (1,191,252)
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 1,752 3,151
Accrued leave (2,905) 10,772
Net pension liability 139,407 (134,072)
Net other postemployment benefits liability . (7,664)
Deferred inflows of resources - pension related (319,569) 310,405
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related (287,295) 246,371
Net Cash Flows for Operating Activities S (738,736) $ (736,112)
Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital assets contributed from governmental activities S 81,237 § -
Capital assets purchased on account $ 516,937 § 1,407,484
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Exhibit I-4
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
Refuse Enterprise Fund
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2022 2021

Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources

Current Assets
Accounts receivable

S 180,211 § 204,027

Allowance for uncollectible accounts (107,976) (122,368)

Net receivables 72,235 81,659
Total Current Assets 72,235 81,659
Net other postemployment benefits assets 257,819 353,915
Property, plant, and equipment:

Land 230,983 230,983

Buildings 2,381,895 2,381,895

Improvements other than buildings 2,100,133 2,100,133

Machinery and equipment 3,049,742 1,916,198
Total property, plant, and equipment 7,762,753 6,629,209

Accumulated depreciation (5,665,317)  (5,546,277)
Net property, plant and equipment 2,097,436 1,082,932
Total Assets 2,427,490 1,518,506
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension related 47,690 50,168

OPEB related 26,353 3,988
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 2,501,533 $ 1,572,662
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable S 3,038 $ 11,059

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 5,198 6,293

Accrued leave 11,782 13,952

Due to other funds 406,845 519,213
Total Current Liabilities 426,863 550,517
Noncurrent Liabilities

Net pension liability 623,357 458,137

Landfill closure costs 334,877 182,936
Total Liabilities 1,385,097 1,191,590
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension related 194,142

OPEB related 26,496 191,733
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 2,097,436 1,082,932

Unrestricted (deficit) (1,007,496) (1,087,735)
Total Net Position 1,089,940 (4,803)
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $ 2,501,533 § 1,572,662
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. Exhibit 1-5
City of Kotzebue, Alaska -
Refuse Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Operating Revenues
Refuse and landfill $ 1,008,750 S 922,581
Miscellaneous 2,209 4,291
Total Operating Revenues 1,010,959 927,142
Operating Expenses
Personnel 447,719 493,497
Electricity 22,826 15,595
Heating fuel 23,239 40,487
Gas and oil 36,360 33,801
Building maintenance 5,436 3,496
Supplies 91,341 92,395
Telephone 3,832 2,538
Professional fees 11,224 54,662
Insurance 6,610 4,950
Repairs and maintenance 22,154 28,909
Equipment and capital outlay - 23,991
Allocated administrative fees 110,000 105,000
Clothing/safety equipment 1,892 2,012
Spring cleanup 2,166 3,497
Small tools 1,032 482
Operating permit 4,213 4,000
Depreciation 119,040 123,759
Total Operating Expenses 909,084 1,033,071
Income (loss) from operations 101,875 (105,929)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State PERS relief 11,265 95
Landfill closure liability accretion (151,941) (1,785)
Net Nonoperating Expenses (140,676) (1,690)
Other Financing Sources
Capital contributions - repairs and replacement capital project fund 1,133,544
Change in net position 1,094,743 (107,619)
Net Position, beginning (4,803) 102,816
Net Position, ending $ 1,089,940 S (4,803)
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< Exhibit I-6
City of Kotzebue, Alaska e
Refuse Enterprise Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 1,020,383 § 976,836
Payments to suppliers (240,346) (316,177)
Payments to employees (557,669) (503,804)
Payments for interfund services used (110,000) (105,000)
Net cash flows from operating activities 112,368 51,855
Cash Flows from (for) Noncapital Financing Activities
Increase due to other funds (112,368) 501,120
Decrease in advances from other funds - (453,049)
Net cash flows from (for) noncapital financing activities (112,368) 48,071
Cash Flows from (for) Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital grant received 1,133,544 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,133,544) (99,926)
Net cash flows for capital and related financing activities - (99,926)
Net increase in cash and investments -
Cash and Investments, beginning -
Cash and Investments, ending S = § -
Reconciliation of income (loss) from operations to net cash
flows from operating activities:
Income (loss) from operations S 101,875 § (105,929)
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to
net cash flows from operating activities:
Noncash expense - PERS relief 11,265 95
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts (14,392) (74,567)
Depreciation 119,040 123,759
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Accounts receivable 23,816 124,261
Net other postemployment benefits assets 96,096 (307,608)
Deferred outflows of resources - pension related 2,478 7,887
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related (22,365) 21,074
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts payable (8,021) (5,362)
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities (1,095) 1,777
Accrued leave (2,170) 2,937
Net pension liability 165,220 (83,966)
Net other postemployment benefits liability - (1,200)
Deferred inflows of resources - pension related (194,142) 194,400
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related (165,237) 154,297
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities S 112,368 § 51,855
Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Capital assets contributed from governmental activities $ 1,133,544 § -
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. Exhibit |-7
City of Kotzebue, Alaska —
Package Store Enterprise Fund
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022 2021
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets

Cash and investments $ 1,593,395 § 1,182,559

Inventory 879,682 585,216
Total Current Assets 2,473,077 1,767,775
Net other postemployment benefits assets 220,409 269,456
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension related 40,771 18,418

OPEB related 22,529 3,387
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 2,756,786 S 2,059,036
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable S 6,607 S 39,795

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 5,294 5,538

Accrued leave 4,803 7,644
Total Current Liabilities 16,704 52,977
Noncurrent Liabilities

Net pension liability 532,909 205,757
Total Liabilities 549,613 258,734
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension related - 159,257

OPEB related 22,652 148,280
Net Position - Unrestricted 2,184,521 1,492,765
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position $ 2,756,786 § 2,059,036
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Package Store Enterprise Fund
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Exhibit 1-8

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021

Operating Revenues
Retail sales

$ 3,149,647 § 3,051,182

Cost of goods sold (1,271,205) (1,246,525)
Freight charges (477,592) (352,368)
Net sales 1,400,850 1,452,289
Permitting fees 99,695 57,098
Total Operating Revenues 1,500,545 1,509,387
Operating Expenses
Personnel 514,157 444,590
Electricity 5,930 5,568
Heating fuel 17,572 22,470
Gas and oil 2,546 3,251
Supplies 6,492 5,480
Telephone 1,509 1,292
Travel Per Diem 2,092 -
Training 175 1,167
Insurance 57,018 45,731
Professional fees 2,546 1,477
Allocated administrative fees 154,000 150,000
Repairs and maintenance 3,657 6,063
Permits 100 1,900
Credit card fees 43,908 38,301
Other 6,718 1,177
Total Operating Expenses 818,420 728,467
Income from operations 682,125 780,920
Nonoperating Revenues
State PERS relief 9,631 75
Income before transfers 691,756 780,995
Transfers out (523,793)
Change in net position 691,756 257,202
Net Position, beginning 1,492,765 1,235,563
Net Position, ending $ 2,184,521 $§ 1,492,765
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i Exhibit 1-9
City of Kotzebue, Alaska -
Package Store Enterprise Fund
Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021

Cash Flows from (for) Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

$ 3,249,342 S 3,108,280
(2,226,714)  (1,887,173)
(457,792) (457,146)
(154,000) (150,000)

Net cash flows from operating activities 410,836 613,961
Cash Flows for Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers out - (523,793)
Net increase in cash and investments 410,836 90,168

Cash and Investments, beginning

1,182,559 1,092,391

Cash and Investments, ending

$ 1,593,395 S 1,182,559

Reconciliation of income from operations to net cash
flows from (for) operating activities:
Income from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to
net cash flows from operating activities:
Noncash expense - PERS relief
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows of resources:
Inventory
Net other postemployment benefits assets
Deferred outflows of resources - pension related
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB related
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities
Accrued leave
Net pension liability
Net other postemployment benefits liability
Deferred inflows of resources - pension related
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB related

$ 682,125 § 780,920

9,631 75

(294,466)  (105,876)
49,047 (242,024)

(22,353) 6,205
(19,142) 16,581
(33,188) (48,527)
(244) 873
(2,841) 1,200
327,152 (66,064)
(3,754)

(159,257) 152,952
(125,628) 121,400

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

§ 410,836 S 613,961
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Exhibit [-10

December 31,

2022 2021

Assets

Property, plant, and equipment -
construction work in progress

$ 25335 $ 25,335

Total Assets

$ 25335 § 25,335

Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilities
Due to other funds

§ 348,326 § 348,326

Total Current Liabilities 348,326 348,326
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 25,335 25,335

Unrestricted (deficit)

(348,326) (348,326)

Total Net Position

(322,991) (322,991)

Total Liabilities and Net Position

$ 15338 § 25,335
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. Exhibit I-11
City of Kotzebue, Alaska
Bar and Grill Enterprise Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Operating Expenses - = &
Change in net position
Net Position (Deficit), beginning (322,991) (322,991)
Net Position (Deficit), ending S (322,991) § (322,991)
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. Exhibit J-1
City of Kotzebue, Alaska =
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2022
Federal Pass-Through
Assistance Entity Provided to Total
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Grantor / Program or Listing Identifying Sub- Federal
Cluster Title Number Number Recipients Expenditures
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed through State of Alaska Department of Transportation
and Public Facilities Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
Transportation Alternatives Project* 20.205 NFHWYO00359 S - 144,481
Statewide Transportation Improvement Project* 20.205 NFHWY00418 - 12,187,317
Total U.S. Department of Transportation E 12,331,798
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed through Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium
Congressionally Mandated Projects
Sanitation Facilities Improvements 66.202 AN 18-R0O2 - 1,400,288
Denali Commission
Passed through Alaska Energy Authority
Denali Commission Program
Alaska Village Energy Efficiency Program (VEEP) 90.100 7520014 - 24,491
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium
Tribal Self-Governance Program:
IHS Compacts/Funding Agreements
Sanitation Facilities Improvements 93.210 AN 19-N5Q - 3,105,735
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ -5 16,862,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the
federal grant activity of City of Kotzebue, Alaska (the City) under programs of the federal
government for the year ended December 31, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented
in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the
City, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position or
cash flows of the City.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Non-Cash Assistance

In FY22, the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities received federal grants that
were expended by the Department to enhance City-owned assets. The value of this non-cash
assistance was determined in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F, Audit
Requirements, Section 502 (g). The funds were expended for improvement of public roads and
sidewalks in Kotzebue. The Assistance Listing number of such funds is 20.205 and the total
expenditure of the funds is $12,331,798.

4, Indirect Rate

The City has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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I B D O Tel: 907-278-8878 3601 C Street, Suite 600

Ve Fax: 907-278-5779 Anchorage, AK 99503
www.bdo.com

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kotzebue, Alaska

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Kotzebue, Alaska as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City of Kotzebue’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 29, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Kotzebue's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City
of Kotzebue’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
City of Kotzebue’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We
identified certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs as an item 2022-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Fiom
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Kotzebue’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Kotzebue’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on City of
Kotzebue’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Kotzebue's response was not subjected to the
other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

TOO UsA, P.C

Anchorage, Alaska
September 29, 2023

Q1
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program,;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited City of Kotzebue’s (the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the City of Kotzebue’s major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2022. City of Kotzebue’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

In our opinion, City of Kotzebue complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of City of Kotzebue and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of City of Kotzebue’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to City of Kotzebue’s federal programs.

BDO USA, P.C., a Virginia professional corporation, is the U.S. member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on City of Kotzebue’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City
of Kotzebue’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding City of Kotzebue’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of City of Kotzebue’s internal control over compliance relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Kotzebue’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-002 and 2022-003. Our
opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on City of
Kotzebue’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our compliance audit described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Kotzebue’s response was
not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

City of Kotzebue is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding
included in our auditor’s report. City of Kotzebue’s corrective action plan was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance and, therefore, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2022-002 and 2022-003 to be
significant deficiencies.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on City of
Kotzebue’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Kotzebue’s
response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

City of Kotzebue is responsible for preparing a corrective action plan to address each audit finding
included in our auditor’s report. City of Kotzebue's corrective action plan was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on it.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

BUO USA, P.C.
Anchorage, Alaska
September 29, 2023
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2022

| Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial

statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Unmodified

yes X _no

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? zyes (none reported)
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __yes X no
Federal Awards
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: Unmodified
Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? __yes X _no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _X yes (none reported)
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a) _X yes no
Identification of major federal programs:
Assistance Listing
Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster Agency
U.S. Environmental Protection
66.202 Congressionally Mandated Projects Agency
Tribal Self-Governance Program: IHS U.S. Department of Health and
93.210 Compacts/Funding Agreements Human Services
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

95
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued
Year Ended December 31, 2022

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Finding 2022-001  General Ledger Reconciliation and External Financial Reporting -
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control

Criteria Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP); this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free
from material misstatement. The general ledger and accounting records used
to maintain financial information should be updated and reconciled in a timely
manner in preparation of the financial statements.

Condition We identified a number of accounts that were not fully reconciled or presented
in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These accounts included expenses, accounts
payable, jail contract revenue and the relevant receivable.

Cause Certain account reconciliation’s were not included in the standard year end
account reconciliation.

Effect or potential ltems reported in the financial statements were not accurate and required
effect significant adjustments to correct.

Recommendation We recommend that processes and controls are implemented and enhanced to
ascertain year-end reconciliations and supporting schedules are completed in
a timely manner and are reviewed for completeness and accuracy.

Views of Management agrees with this finding. Management is updating its procedure

responsible officials to implement controls to ensure that account reconciliations are accurate and
completed in a timely manner and are reviewed for completeness and
accuracy.

| Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs |

Finding 2022-002  Procurement and Suspension and Disbarment - Noncompliance and
Significant Deficiency in Internal Controls Over Compliance

Agency U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
ALN 66.202
Program Name Sanitation Facilities Improvements

Congressionally Mandated Projects
Award Year FY 2018

Pass-Through Agency Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Pass-Through Entity
Identifying
Number(s)

Criteria

Condition

Cause

Effect or potential
effect
Questioned costs

Context

Identification as a
repeat finding

Recommendation

Views of
responsible officials

Finding 2022-003

Agency
ALN

Program Name

Award Year

AN18-RO2

In accordance with 2 CFR 200, the City’s procurement policy must conform to
the Uniform Guidance standards. This requires the City to establish a policy
for small purchase procedures that covers transactions that exceed micro-
purchase amount ($10,000) but do not exceed the simplified acquisition
threshold ($250,000). If small purchase procedures are used, price or rate
quotations must be obtained from an adequate number of qualified sources.

The City executed several small purchase transactions without obtaining price
or rate quotations from an adequate number of qualified sources.

The City did not establish a policy for small purchase to satisfy the
requirements of 2 CFR 200 of Uniform Guidance.

The City was not in compliance with the procurement requirement for the
program.

$156,025
In our testwork for procurement requirements, we noted that 2 of the 4
samples selected did not have the documentation that conformed with the

Uniform Guidance procurement requirements.

No

We recommend that the City establish a policy in regard to small purchase
procedures and ensure the management is following its procurement policy
and meeting the Uniform Guidance compliance requirements.

Management agrees with the finding. The City is implementing new policy

covering the Uniform Guidance thresholds that are established for federal
programs.

Procurement and Suspension and Disbarment - Noncompliance and
Significant Deficiency in Internal Controls Over Compliance

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

66.202

Sanitation Facilities Improvements
Congressionally Mandated Projects

FY 2018

-7
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City of Kotzebue, Alaska

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued

Year Ended December 31, 2022

Pass-Through Agency Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium

Pass-Through Entity
Identifying
Number(s)

Criteria

Condition

Cause

Effect or potential
effect

Questioned costs
Context
Identification as a
repeat finding

Recommendation

Views of
responsible officials

AN18-RO2

Internal control policies should be established to provide reasonable assurance
that an entity with which the City plans to enter into a covered transaction is
not debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded for covered transactions
under Uniform Guidance.

Documentation that vendors are not debarred, suspended or otherwise
excluded were not retained in the City's procurement files and thus, auditors
were not able to test that the relevant internal controls were operating
effectively.

The procurement procedures for the City did not require retention of the
verification for documentation purposes, and none was evident in the file.

Lack of documentation might make it harder for the City’s management to
monitor compliance with the requirement.

None noted

Auditors were not able to verify internal controls over sampled procurements,
since no documentation was retained.

No

We recommend that management retain evidence of review that prospective
vendors and suppliers are not on the suspension and debarment list for covered
transactions under Uniform Guidance.

Management concurs with the finding. Management is updating the internal
procurement policies, procedures, and award checklists to ensure that
evidence of the search, and results of the search, for suspension and
debarment is being completed and filed prior to the award of any procurement
activities.
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Section X, Item F.

CITY OF

‘Gatewary fa the Arctic”

City of Kotzebue
PO Box 46
Kotzebue, AK 99752

September 29, 2023
BDO,

Below is the City of Kotzebue’s Corrective Action Plan to address the three findings for the CY2022
Audit.

Finding 2022-001

Management will update the procedure for monthly General Ledger Reconciliations. The
corrective action is to have the Controller and Finance Director ensure all general ledger accounts
are posted by the 15" of the following month. This includes the general ledger for: cash/bank
statements, grant reporting, accounts payable, accounts receivable, business tax licenses, sales
tax collections, and payroll. Accounts will also be reviewed by Controller and Finance Director to
ensure proper postings have been completed.

Estimated completion date: September 30, 2023

Finding 2022-002

Finance Department will require a minimum of three quotes for any purchase above $10,000.
Additionally, any purchase made above $50,000 will require a signed and approved Resolution
from the City Council.

The Finance Department will create and formally adopt a procurement process for the City of
Kotzebue to be approved by the City Council.

Estimated completion date: September 30, 2023
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Finding 2022-003

Section X, Item F.

The Finance Department will verify prior to any purchase a vendor is not on the suspension and
debarment list for covered transactions under Uniform Guidance. A copy of proof will be
submitted with the check request and kept in the Accounts Payable file folder with vendor

information.

Estimated completion date: September 30, 2023

Thank you,
City of Kotzebue

Contact:

Chelsea Sieh, Finance Director
csich@kotzebue.org
907-442-3401

Donna McConnell, Controller
dmcconnell@kotzebue.org
907-442-3401

101

162




Section X, Item F.

Z70Z°Le
YIIWIDIA dIANT AVIA
dnN dVIM LIdnv

163

dN93Z10X 40 ALID

TIDNNOD ALID FHL OL 18043y




Section X, Item F.

Z/°2°d ‘¥sn 0dgd / ZZ0Z L€ ¥3aw3)3a L¥043H dN-dViM LIaNV 3NFIZLOM 4O ALD

9

‘saled pauyloads asayy ueys Jaylo
SUOAUE AQ Pasn 94 10U PINOYS pue pspusiut 3ou st pue ‘Aueduio)
ayl Jo juswsBeuew ‘sjeudosdde i ‘pue (993LWIWIOD 3PNy pue
S1032311Q JO pie0g ‘*§°3) S2UBUISACS YILM PIBIeyd 3SO0Y3 JO 350 pue
uoljeulIouL B3 104 A]9105 PIPUSIUL SL PUB ‘suolieliwl] Jelusnbasuod
sey “lpne Jno jo 1ied se pasedaid sem UOLIEILUNWILIOD SULMOTI0) SYL

¥31137 NOILVLNISIddId

SNOILLYDINNWWOD d3dIiN03y TVNOLLIaay

ONILI0d3Y TVIDONVYNIA ¥3A0 TOYLNOD TVNYILNI

AYYWWNS 3AILLND3X3

NOLLONAOYLNI

14043y TINd
3HL OL SS3IDIV 1IN0

S1U3U0)



Section X, Item F.

|l
@l

€/ °27d ‘¥SN 048 / ZZ0Z L€ ¥3aW3D3A 1¥043Y dN-dVAM LIdNY INGIZLON 40 ALID

*Sull4 Jaquaw 0qQg aY3 Jo YJea Joj pue
%JOMIDU 0Qg 3Y3 J0j SWRU PuBlq Y3 51 OQY "SWLIL JOqUIDW JUSPUSdIPUL JO }JOMIU OQg TRUCIRUISIUL 3y JO Hed Sulioy pue ‘a3jueiens
£Q pajiwy) Auedwod yN B ‘pajiwl] JRUCHIRUISIU| 0QE JO Jaqual "5 M ay3 st ‘dysiaulied Aligey) pajiwy) a1emeiag B “D°d ‘¥YSn 0ag

N Q2

‘Anyioadsay

*SARY JYBlw
NoA suollsanb Aue Jomsue 0] pue ‘noA 0} 3$2.33uUl JO g AeW Jey) SIS]Iew Jaylo Se 11am se ‘sEulpul) Jipne Jno
SSNISIP 03 24NN} 183U 3Y3 UL NOA Ylm Sullaaw 0] pJemio) %00) pue A3LD) 33 03 8D1AISS JO 8q 0} paseald aie apm

*s1931eW palinbal 1ayjo pue ‘S3INSo)dSIp JUSWIBIeR]S |RIDURUL) ‘Saleul
pue sjuswspnl s,juswsaBeuew ‘saljed pue sao1ioesd Buunodde sAND 8yl jo sidadse aaeinenb
U0 SM3LA N0 SuLpnjouL “ILPNE UNo wWol) SEuLpuLy JURDLLIUSLS ay] U0 9)10QR])S 0] PIPUIIUL SL UOLJRILUNWWOD

165

*yiom 1pne pauueld ay3 jo Suiwil pue ‘@dods ‘ainjeu ayl pue ‘Ipne ayl Joj $3A1IS(qO 1)RISA0 JNo Jo Arewwins
e Sulpnpul ‘Zzoz‘LE Jequanag papud Jeak ayj Joj pue Jo se (A)1) ayl) angszioy 4O AJD JO SUBWIIRIS
e1URULS SY] JO JlpNe 3y3 4o} ueld No JO MILAIBA0 U pajuasald am 7Z0Z ‘€7 18qwedag uQ "ssed0.d Buriiodal
eloueul) ay3 BuUl9ISIBA0 UL Sa3LLqIsuodsal NoA 0) JueAd)aJ pue juediudls ‘Juawspnl jeuoissajold Uno uj
‘are jeyl Lpne ayy o3 paje]ad siajjew Sulpledal NOA YlM 9)eDIUNWWOoD 03 sn alinbal spiepue)s |euolssajold

angazjoy Jo AL

3URUISA0D YIM PaBiey) asoyl
€207 ‘9 4390320

SW0d19M



Section X, Item F.

¥ [ 3'd “¥SN OAg / ZZ0Z' L€ ¥3aW3I3A 130d3Y dN-dViIM L1dny ING3ZLOX 4O ALID

166

Aeww

9A1IND3X3




Section X, Item F.

S /°9°d ‘Vsn

/ ZZOZ LE ¥IEWIDIA L3043Y dN-dVIM LIaNV 3NFIZLON 4O ALID

Il
@

*}JOM Jno
10 354n02 3y} INoYSno.yy jauuosiad A31D) aY3 JO S19A8) |1 AQ SN 0} Papualxa uoljel1adood 11N} Y3 a5PIMOUNIR am pue ‘yipne
1no Sutwiopad anym paisanbal am 1Y} UOLTRULIOJUL J]8 O3 SS90 1]N) PIAL3DSL IM "JUS]]9DX3 Sem UOLIeIadood s, Juawadeueyy

*uo13oadsul Jno 10} 3)qe]ieAr K193l a1om 0Qg A paIsenbal UOLIBULIOJUL PUR SPJO2 ||V

*198.1403 03 10U USSOYD
sey JUsWaSRUBW 1Y UOLBULIOUL JSYI0 3U} UL SIDB} JO SIUBWDIRISSIW Jelalew AuR aJe 313y} Papn|oucd 1o S3loud3sisuodul
JBLUI2IRW AUB PaLIIUSPL J0U SABY M "I0B) JO JUSWSIRISSIW eliS1eW B SL 9A9LDQ M JBY) UOLBWIOjUL Aue uoljudlle
s, JuswaSeuew 03 Suje> sapnouL osje AJlLqisuodsal InQ CSIUSWIRIS |BLOURULL SY) UL Uoljejuasald S)L oYM Ju3sisuodul
Aeuajew sem ‘uoijejussald SiL 4O JIUUBW B} JO ‘UCIIBLLICIUL YDNS Jaylaym paJapisuod pue AuD ayy Ag pspniout
UOLTRWIOJUL 3Y] PESJ SABY M ‘SPJEpuUR)S Ruolssajoid YILmM 9DUBPIODIIR UL “I9ASMOH "UCIJBULIOJUL J3YJ0 YINs 33elogo.lod
03} saunpadosd wuopad 01 paunbal jou aue M pue ‘lodss JPNE Syl UL PALIIUSPL UCHBULIONUL 1eldueul Sy) pucAlq
PUSIX3 10U SI0P SIUSWAIRIS |ELOURULY PIYPNE A1) 9y SUIUIRIUOD SIUSWNIOP UL UOLBWIOUL 2yl Joj Ajiqisuodsal ung

*aoue||dwoD J9AO 1043U0D |eUISIUL JO SSAUSALIDS)J2 9y uo uowuido ue Suissaldxs
40 asodind ay3 4o} Jou ING ‘(80UePIND WICILUN) SPIDMY [DI8pad Jof sjuawalinbay Jipny pup ‘sa)dioulid 3500 ‘sjuswaiinbay
SALIDIISIUIWPY WIOfIUN ‘007 Med suoilpinéay Jolapad Jo 3po7 "S'N 7 S1LL PUR SYD UM SdUepiodde ul adueduwiod
19AC 10J1U0D RulsIUL UO Modas pue 1593 03 pue dduedwod uo uoiuido Jno Buisssudxa jo ssodind ayy Joj sainpadosd
Suiipne Jno aulwialap 01 (S)wesSoud Jesopa) Jofew s)L UO 30249 |eUSIBW pUEB 10341 B SARY PINCD JRy] sjuawalinbal
yim 9oueldWOD JIA0 1043U0D JeuISIUL SAILD By} PaJIpIsuc? am ‘vd43S 2yl Jo pne Juno Suiwloyled pue Buwueid uj

"SpJDPUDIS SUIFIPNY JUSWUISA0D YIM S2URPIODDE Ul P3WLosd SJUSWaIe]s Jeloueul)
10 JipNe UR UG Paseq SI911BW J9Y10 pue Joueljdwiod uo pue Surlodal JelouRUL JOAO 10UOD JRUIS)UL UO 310dal JNO PANSSL IM

*£207 ‘67 Joquialdas uo 1iodal 1IN0 35e3)3. puR SIUSWSIR]YS JeIDURUL Sy} UO (s)uoluldo palpowun ue pansst 9m

*SUOLBDLUNWILWIOD
Suluue]d PNy J21Jea JNO UL NOA 01 paguasap eyl se swes ay} Ajelueisqns sem pauopad som 9yl jo adods ayl

"SIUBLISIRISSIW [RLISIBW WO} 93}
2.2 SJU9WD]R]S JRIDUBUL} 3] J2YISUM INOJR IIUBINSSE - IIM|OSQR J0U - S]qeuoses. ulelqo 03 Sem JIPNe JNo JO 3A1D3[qo ayL

167

*s3131]1qIsuodsal 119y} JO IDUBUISAOS YIm PaBIeyd 350y) Jo JuaWsSeurw 9Aa1]2 JOU S0P
SJUSWSIRIS RIDURULY 9] 4O JPMR SLYL “edLSWY JO S31BIS Pajlun ay3 ul pajdande A)jeiauad spiepuels Sulipne yim SdUepiodde
UL P31ONPUOD SBM JIPNE UNQ “ZZ0ZLE J9qWadaq papua J2ak 2yl Joj pue O SB SJUSWSIRIS [RloURUL SY) JO JIPNE Jno paladwed am

1PNy JNQ JO snieis




w
£
[}
=
<
c
9o
=
©
Jog
n

9./ °2'd ‘¥Sn 0agd 7 ZZ0Z‘L€ ¥3IWIDIA LYOdFY dN-dVIM LIANY 3NTIZLON 0 ALID

*7Z07 Jeak 1esst4 Ui sa1ewilss suunodde juedyludls ay) dojaasp 03 pasn suoldwinsse
juedyusts Jo sassacoud oy} 03 sasueyd juedyiuSis Aue ayew jou pLp Juswaseuey

*S9]qeAL93J SulpueISINo

2y Jo afe pue ‘A103sty 3sed ‘sI0JDB) UMOUY UO Paseq ‘@ouemol|e JO Junowe 3)qeuosesal
e aulWI9}ap 01 ANedipouad Juswadeurw Aq PamaLAal aJe (3SNJY ‘1amas/ialem)
$3]qeALIDA. SJUNOIIE JIWOISND "3]qLID81)07 %00L 99 0} PIIIPISU0D Ajeiduds

aJe $310UaSe SUlJURIE WO) S91QRALI3. ISOU] - 9]qRALS23Y SIUN0IDY Jo A31|Iqe3da)io)

‘uoieul

10} paisnipe Jeak ay) Sulnp pasn a§euuo} pue 31BWIISS 24ns0)D> Alred-paiy} e uo paseq
si papJodas Aiqel] ayL “pally Bulaq st 1|LpUR] 3y SR BULIOJLUOW Pue 84Ns0)d JO 350D
31BWINN 3Y] PIodal A3LD 3Y3 Iy} aquasaid ss)nu Bulunoddy - A3Ljiqer 84nsojd JiLpue]

*UOLIESLLPOW JBYLINS INOYIM AYLD 3y} 01 31qede]ie ueld 3yl Ag pejsodad sjuncwe

ay3 paidascoe sey AjesLIoIsiy INg $53US|QRUOSRAL J0) 9JBUILISD SMILADI JudWSBeuRy
-ueld ay3 Ag papiacid saunSly PIIRWILISS Sy} SPI0II pUR SJBWILISS pItelal g340/uoisuad
a1mnN2eD 01 AUen)de S,UBld SY3 PUR Ue]d 9yl uodn $s112d JUSWSBRURY "SaIRWIIS?

ueld pue suordwnsse JeLlen3oR SNOLIBA UC paseq ‘93ewlisa Suljunodde ue ul pajuasald
Junowe Ajigel] g34o/uoisuad 3au ay] “sueld g340 pue ucisuad 11 ouaq pauliap

e ul uotedioilied 03 pae)ad Aljiqel uolsuad 3au Aue o aseys a1euclliodosd syt juassud
03 padinbai st A1) ay3 ‘5z pue 89 gSYD JSPUN - SY3d 104 A3LlLqel] g3d0/uolsuad 19N

:3pNJoUl S33eW3s] BURUNOIDY

*S]USWAIR]S JRIDURUL) 2] JO | 2JON Ul PasOIosLp aJe ‘sajewllse ay)
10 Juawdo)aaap Ul pasn suoljdwnsse juedylusls pue sassadold s uswadeuew jo uopdudssp
e Bulpn)oul ‘sajewlsa Sulunodde JuedyLudis s,A310 9yl Culelaadun Ajjualayul a4e Jey) sisjjew
10 $109}J9 33 INOQe $SIIBWIISS 9YewW 03 Paau 9yl JO JNsas B se uapo ‘sjuswspnl xa1dwod
10 ‘aA1309[gns “Unouylp Isow s juswadeuew aJinbas ey} ISOY) B4R $IIRWILISS JURDLLUBLS

168

7208
Jeak Jeossyy Sunnp saooesd pue saldljod Suljunodoe JuedyLUBLS UL S9EUBYD OU 3am 213y

*SJUSLSYR]IS JelDuRUL) S AL
3y} 03 €1 930N Ul papn)out st sjuswadunouosd BSulunodde pansst Ajjualal jo Aewwns v <
*SIUSWIR]S JelDURULY 3Y] 0} | 930N ULYIM paqudsap Ajlenbape ate pue
‘pandde Ajjuaisisuod a1om ‘@o1oead Aysnpul pue saidipund Buijunodde pajdsade Ajjelauss
yum Aidwod ‘ajeudoidde aue salonod pue saoi3oesd Suljunodce 3ssy] “SHUSWLRIS BlDueUly
3yl 01 | 9ICN UL papn)ouL asoy3 aJe satoljod pue seolioesd Buljunodoe juedusls §,A10 SyL

1s91BWILISa pue ‘saljod ‘sadlydeud Buljunodde s.A31D 3y} BulUIIUOD
1pNe INo 03 Paje]ad SUCLIRDIUNWWOD Paiinbad JURDLIUBLS 2J0W Sy} SIZLIBWWNS BULMOYI0) YL

SNOILLDVSNVYL TVNSMNM
LNVDIJINDIS ANV SILVYWILST ‘SAIDIM0d ‘SAJILOVEd DNILNNOIIV

JPNY 33 JO SYNSSY



w
£
3]
=
3
c
i)
=
[8)
@
n

£ /°2°d ‘¥SN 0ag / ZZ0Z L€ ¥3aW323d L30d3Y dN-dviM LIaNy ANG3ZLOA 40 ALD

s9jewlisy Sad1310eld pue
sjuawieal] $9.1ns0)2s1q BuULIUN0IDY S3121]10d SULIUNODDY
Bulunodoy SJUDWS2UNOUOId PUB UOLIRIUSSI.Ud suoljdesuel| JURDLILUBLS BULpIRSaY JuUedLLUSIS JO
SAlIRUISLY BULIUNODDY M3N JUSWa3RIS elDURULY Jensnun JUBdLLUSLS SUOLSN)2U0D INQ s1oadsy aAleIleny

: papniouL yoym ‘Suguodau eloueuly s,A310 ay3 Jo Ajljenb ayl Sulplesal play sem UoLSsSNIsSIp

ONILIO4IY TVIINVNIL S.ALID FHL 40 ALITYND

IPNY 3Y3 JO SYNSY




Section X, Item F.

8 /°2'd ‘¥SN 044 / ZZ0Z‘ L€ YAIWIDIA L¥OdTY dN-dVAIM LIANY INSIZLON 40 ALID

e

“juswageuew 0] pajuasald am eyl
S2UNSO)SLP JO/PUB S3UNODIR 0} Palead ‘elAL] A1JES)D 219M JBy] 950U3 UBY) JAYI0 ‘SIUBWSIRISSILI PSII1I0OUN OU lam alay]

5968y J2e.quo) el 204
$96°8p 21qeAL33y MY 10 91815

JUNOWIE 3NuaAaJ 30eJjuod el jo Juawasnipy zary

84S ‘T I9Y10-2]qRALIDY JURID m
belel oA ISU0D-jUB|d JUSWIRAI] JIJeM

845 Ty UO132N.IISU0D
885 Ty 13Y30 31qeked S3unoddy

junowe 3)qeAed aSeuteias jo Juswgsnipy  + 3V

1SMO]]0) SB S4B SJUIWSIRISSIL PR3Da.I0D 3say | "Juswaeusw Jo uoljuslle ay3 03 Jysnoiq
3M 1BY) S3INS01ISIP 10/PUB SIUNODDE 0 Palelal “|elau) AlJea]2 24am Jeyl 950y} UBY) J3Y30 ‘SIUSWID]LISSIUW PIIDaLIoD aIam 243YL

SLNIWILVLSSIW Q3 LDIHAOINN ANV QILIIYH0D

IPNY 9Y3 JO SISy



Section X, Item F.

6 /°2°d ‘vSN 0ag / TZOZ‘ L€ ¥3gWID3A LH0d3N dN-dVIM LIdNY 3NFIZLOM 40 ALID

*gsyo Aq 39S spiepuels
pue sajdiouud Surunodde pajdade Ajjesauss yim AldWcD 10U PIp 1By} SIUBWIRSL] Buljunodde Aue AJiUspl 30U pip am °©

Sluawileal] Mc.ﬁuczouum SAljeulsllyY -

“$UaWaIL)S JelouRUL S,A3LD BY3 4O €1 SION UL PIpMUL SL sjuswadunouosd Buljunodde pansst Ajjuadal jo Arewwns v

171

sjuawaounouo.ld §uljunodde maN

*S1USWIIRIS JBIDURUL 9Y) 03 S930UI004 DUI UL PAPNIUL USAQ JABY S2UNSOIISIP AJRSSSIAU || “95PajMou Jno oL
uoljeluasald Juswalels epuRUL] -

*$30URISWINDALD
2y} Ul 9)qeucseas ale sIJRWRSS §AID Yl IANaq am -afed snolasud Byl U0 SIJRWIIS JNOGR SUBWWOD 33S
-5pJ1079J SULIUNODDE 9Y) ULYILM S2IBUILISD JURDIHIUBIS SNOISWNU J0) Paau Y3 sadnpad suoljelado s,A31) ay] Jo imeu syl ©

$9JBWIISD ULIUNODIR JUBDLILUBLS BULPJRBa] SUOLSN|OUQD INQ -

*(gSyD) pJeog spJepuels SUlIUNODDY |BIUSWUIBACD 3Y] AQ 19S SPJRPUR)S 3} WOL) PRALISP
saoryoeud pue sadiound Suiunodoe pajdadde Ajessusl jo uopedidde pue uoyelaldiajul s, A1) AUl UM JNduod apm ©
sao130ead pue sapoljod Suljunode JuedLLusls Jo s1oadse sAleeny -

:5ULMO])0} DY PapNIoUL Yolym ‘Buliiodal eduruLy 5,A310 9y3 Jo A3henb ay3 BulpieBal p1ay sem uolssndsip v

ONILYOJIY TVIDNVNIL S.ALID THL 40 ALITVNO

IPNY 31 JO S1NS3Y



Section X, Item F.

0L /2'd ‘¥SN 0a8 / ZTZOZ L€ ¥3GWIDIA L¥O4IYH dN-dVM LIANY INF3ZLON 4O ALID

sulyiod;

jeloueul] Jasy
10.J3U07) 1RUIDIU|




Section X, Item F.

LL /°D'd ‘¥SN 0ag / TZOZ LE ¥3aW3DIA LUOLIY dN-dVaMm Lidnv INGIZLON JO ALID

"si5Bq A]9WI} B UO PII23LI00 pue Pajaslep 4o pajuasaid 94 jou Tiim sjuswialels

Jeoueuy 5,10 3y} JO JUSWSIRISSIW 1RLSTRW © Jey) Aiqissod 31qeuoseal e st 1943 3BY3 UINS 9043U0D JRUIBIUL UL SILDUSIDLIP JO UOLIRULGWOD 4O ADUSLDUIP ¥ SSRLDfESM, JELIZIRY

*32UBUIDA0S UM paBieyd

350y} AQ UOLIUSIIE JLAL 0} yBnoua Juellodwl 33K ‘SSIUNRAM TRLISIBW B UBY) DIIAIS S59] SI 124 1013U07 |RUISIUL UL SIIDUSIDLSP JO UOLIRUIGUIOD 10 ADUaldysp v Rouaplyaq eauBls

*siseq Aj9WL} B UO SJUIWIIIEISSIW 3334102 pUE 10333p 10 “quaaasd 01 ‘suorjouny pausisse Jlayl
Sulwioylad 4o 25IN0D Jewllou Iyl Ul ‘s3hoidws 40 JUsWaSeURW MO]]R 10U S0P 1043U02 B Jo uoljeiado Jo UBISap 3y} Uaym S$ISIX3 10J3U0D Jeulsiul ul Aousyep v

173

fousoyaq 104

uonuyaqg Alogaje)

1MO]]0} SSaUYRIM JBLISTRW pUR AdUaLoyap JuedlLUSLs ‘AJUsLoLSp 1043U0D JO SUOLIULIAP 3YL “Builodal JedueUly

A0 10JIU0D JRUIDIUL §,A1D Y UL PALIIUSPL US3q SARY Jey} Saloualdyap JURDLJLUBLS PUR SISSBUMRIM |RLISTEU B 20URUIBA0S YIM pabley> asoyl 03 ‘Bulllum ul ‘9)edlunuiwod 0} palinbal aie am
*S3SSAUNBaM JeLIZIRW

10 S3LOUBLILSP JURDLLUBLS 39 JYTLW JRY3 1013U0D JRWISIUL UL SILDUSLIYSP 1B A113uapt 0} PaUBISIp 10U Sem pue dA0Qe PaqLIDSIP asodind pajlwil] Sy} 104 SeM 10JJU0D JRUISIUL JO UOLIBISPLSUOD INQ
"10J3U02 |eulalUL 5, A1) BY) JO SSIUDALIIDYS Y] U0 uoturdo ue ssaidxa Jou op am ‘AjBulpioddy

10J3U0D JeulaIUL S,A1LD DY) JO SSIUSALIDAYS 8y} UO uoluido ue Suissaidxa jo asodind ay3 Joj J0u g ‘syuaWale}s Jeldueuly 3yl uo (sjuotuido ino Buissaldxd jo asodund ayy 1oy sainpadoid
Supipne Ino SuiuSisap Joj siseq e se (jouod 1eusajul) Suildodst |elDUBUL JSAC 10JIU0D JRUISIUL s, A110 8yl PaJaplsuod am ‘Sjuswialels Jeldueuly Syl jo jpne Ino Sulwaioyiad pue Suluueid

gulyJoday jeloueuld JSAQ 1041U0D Jeuta]u|




Section X, Item F.

ZL /°9°d VSN 0Qg / ZZOZ'LE ¥3GW3DIA LYO4IY dN-dVIM Liany 3NF3ZLO0N 40 ALD

*$310US1DYSP
JUBDLLUSLS 10 S3SSIUNRIM |eLI2jew 9 0 JSPISUOD 10U PIP 3M Jey] JPNe Uno JO NSl B Se PaLjiuapl 21aMm By} $31DUSID1JAP 10JIUOD UOLFRL0SSY 9y} JO JUIWSTRURUI 0} PIJEIUNWWIOD SARY SM, -

<
-A13A1303)19 Sulielado alam $1043U0D JeUISIUL JUBADIDL SY3 Jey] 359 0} 3)qge Jou aJam siollpne BSETHE] =

‘snyy pue sl Juawaindoid $A3LD 9y} UL PIULRIAL JOU 3USM PIPNIIXD ISLMISYI0 10 papuadsns ‘palieqap jou ale SIOPUSA JeU} uoljejuswndoq 7 pue uolsuadsng pue  Jusuladrourg
*$374n0s paujijenb jo Jaqunu ajenbape ue woly suolyejonb a3ed 1o 9oLd SULULRIGO INOYIIM SuoLjdesuRl} aseyoJnd Jews Je4aAas pajndexa A)) 9yl "L - $109loid parepueRw Ajeualssalsuo)

-siseq A]awl) B UO SJUSLUSIRISSILL J28.140D pue 13313p 0 “uaaald 03 ‘suoljouny pausisse Jlayy Butuuopad

10 354N0D JeWLIOU 3y} Ul ‘s92A0)1dWa 4O JUSWSBRUBL MO]IR JOU S30P 103U0D B JO uolelado 10 uBISap By} USYM SISIXd 104JU0D Jeulajul ul Aouadyep v $5300.d BulSOT) USRI JeloURUL

SJUSWWO) $310U3ID13(Q JUBDLLUSIS

:PaLIIUSPL 24aM S3LDUBLDYAP JUBdLIUBIS SuMOo0) YL <

:5ULMO]10} 93 PIIOU SM “ILPNE UNO YIlm uoKounfuod uj

sulyJoday jeloueuld J9AQ 10J1U0D JeuISU|




Section X, Item F.

€1 /°7°d ‘¥SN 0ag/ ZZOZ LE ¥3aWID3Q LHOdIY dN-dVIM L1any 3NgG3ZLON 40 ALID

suolyedunuwiw &
pa.ilnbay 1euolllppy




Section X, Item F.

P17 °J°d ‘¥SN 08 / ZTOZ LE Y3gWIDIA LYOdId dN-dVaM 11anv 3N93ZLON 40 ALID

-10d3. $,103LPNE JNO 03 JO S}USWSIe)S 1eLoURUL S,A3LD 3Y) O3 JuedLLuBLs
aq pnoo ayedaldte ul Jo Ajenplatpul 3ey3 ‘paA0sal ALIOIOR)SITES JOU 10 JAYIBUM ‘SiS13RW Inoge JUSWASRURLL YIIM SJUIWISIIBRSLP OU 3JaM 313yl

JUSWoSRURW YIIM SIUaWSaISesL]

-uoLyejuasa.d Jiey BULASLDR WOL) SJUSWDIRYS JRIDURULY
ayy juaAaid ‘pauLRIqo SIUSPLAD JIPNE U} UO pIseq ‘suoljoesue.) pue sdiysuoiieial Aled pajelas 2yl Jo 33332 Ayl JSSyM pue paso)ostp
pue ‘1oj pajunodde ‘payljuspl Aajeudoldde uasq aaey suoljdesuely pue sdiysuorieial Aled patelal payliuapl Sy} JSYIayM PIjen|BAS SARY ETN

salysed pajelal
s/A1D 2yl UM UOoLDRuUUoD UL Jpne Ayl
Suunp SulsLIe Sanssi pue SSULpUL) JUBRDLLUBLS

*sajdiound Burjunodoe
pajdaade Ajjesauas jo uonedidde syy uc sjueIUNCIOR ongnd juspuadspul Jaylo woly juswaeuew AgQ paulelqo suoluido jo aieme am 3le JON
“s3uRIUNOIOE J1gnd Juapuadapul JaYI0 puB JUILITLURW UIIM]A] SIa13RW SuLjlpne Jo SuljuNo3de INOQe SUOLRIINSUOD AUR JO 3JBME J0U aIe M

©
~
-

SJURIUNOIIR JDYIO YILM SUCLIRI|ITSTO]

*$HsU JURDYLUBLS 0] PaIR|aJ SHINS3L JLPNE 3JBN|RAS
4o saunpadoid 3ipne pauueld ayl wJiopad 01 ‘wea) juawadesus 8100 3y} JO APLSINO ‘papasu 93pajmouy JO SIS PIZLeLads OU aam 43yl

Sy{SLI JUeDLLUBLS 01 paje)al
papasu  a8paimouy oSS pazijeldads
JO JU9IXe pue  aunjeu ‘91qeondde  j|

*20URLISACS YIm pasleyd asoy) jo Aunbul uno Jo nsal
e Se JO SJemE SPBW 3J9Mm aMm Jey] Suyiodas jeroueul) 5,410 dY3 SuipJe§a. sjurejdwod Jo sdiy 4o sysU pnely Sulpn)ouL ‘Juawlelssiu JeLsjew
10 SysU {suoLIRINBa. 1O SME] JO SUOLIRIOIA 21q1ssod 10 SUOLIRIOLA 103 Pajlwl) J0uU INg “SULpNoUL “}pNE 9y} 0} JUBAS]|3J PAIOU S1911BW OU 3I3M 319yl

1pNe 2y} 0} JUBAS]S SOUBUISACS
yim pasieyd 350y} WOJ) uolewIouL ulelqo

*SUOITEILUNWILIOD SUlUUR]d JLPNY Ino o Jued se 20UBUIBACE YIm paBieyd
5 Asnotaald pue paijiauapt Ajeliul sysu juedLLusts Jo ASajens Jipne pauueld ay) 03 sagueyD juedLUBLS ou aJam UYL

350y} 0] pajedlunuuwo

julod uolssnasig

paLyuapL ANRLILUL SYSU JURDLIUSLS 10
£8a3ea35 Jpne pauue)d 03 saBueyd JuedLIUBLS

juawaainbay

K31y ay3 03 ureniad Asyj se sjulod uoLssnsLp Jy10ads yjwm Suoje ‘swajl paiinbal 19y3o 4o Adewiwns e st Sulmo) o4

suoljeslunwwo?) paitnbay 4aylo




Section X, Item F.

SL /*9°d ‘¥sn 0ad / TZOZ L€ ¥3aWII30 LYOITY dN-dVAM LAV 3N93ZLOM 40 ALID

Juawaseuew

-19339] uolyeIuasaIdal JuswaBeuRwW Y] 01 J9Ja) 358 Wol) pajsanbau suoyejussalday

sJoj3RewW Suipne Jo sully
SulpseSal suiaduod Jo sjureidwod Buy
‘pajesunwwod  ‘ssadoud Surpodas  Jeueut) s AND

177

Asnolasud uaaq jou aAey Jeyy ssadoud Bulllodal TerdueUL s,A119 3Y1 10 1YBISISA0 DU} 03 JUBDYLUSLS JIPISUOD aM JRY] SI7TRW JBYI0 OU ale 919Ul 4O JYSISI9A0 B} 01 JuRIYLUBLS SIBJIRW J3YI0

wea) Juawassesus

*ssan0.d Sulodad JeiouRULY 3Y) JO JYBISISA0 JL1aY3 SulpJeSal 9JURUISA0S UIlmM paseyd Is0ul 0] JUBASIRI 3q Ay} SPISING pPaynsuc> Jolpne a3yl ydtym
waSeSua Y] SPISING SIBYI0 YILM PIIINSUOD 3M 1BY] SIS3RU SNOLUSUOD 4O 1NDLILP OU 39M S19YL  JOj SNOLIUSIUOD 4O YNOLYLP 2B JBY] SISNEW

0} poULLLIISP A|qRUOSEa] 3M Jey} ues) Jud

:angazioy Jo A1) /Y

upne a3

“Jipne ay] SULNP PaJAIUNOIUD SILINDLLP JUBILILUBLS OU BI9M 31941 SuUnp PaJajunooud SSNILILP JURDLLUBLS

JUL0d UOLSSNISd Juswaiinbay

1 03 urepad Asyy se syutod uolssnasLp Jy1oads Yim Suoe ‘swayt palinbau Jayjo jo Arewwns e st guimon o4

suolyealunwwo) paitnbay 19ylo




Section X, Item F.

91 /°9°d ‘¥SN 048 / ZZOT'LE ¥3aW3D3Q LYOdIY dN-dVim LIaNY INSIZLON 40 ALID

*Uo1IRWLIOUL
134Ny 10} 433313] 1By} 03 J9)al 3seald “A1LD 8y Aq 03 paaJSe se souapuadapul 01 10adsal yIim
K1) ayy jo sauljiqisuodsal ay} saje|ndlys os|e 193313) Syl "SDIAIS UNo JO aouewopad ayl
pue aouspuadapur 0} pledal yim saljioyine AI0IRINSAI UIRLI3D pUB SPIEpURIS |2U0ISS340.d
UILM 9DURPIOIDE UL $3LIL|IQIsuodsal Jno SIQLIDSIP pajep noA 031 193319 juswesesua JInQ

3ouspuadapu




Section X, Item F.

L1 /°D°d ‘¥Sn 0ad / TZOZ )€ ¥3aW3D3Q L¥0d3N dN-dYIM LIdNY 3NFIZLON 40 ALID

191197 cosmu‘cwmm‘_awﬂ



DocuSign Envelope ID: D9899CF5-6D7C-4C53-BE19-9DBDAGBB1A82 Section X, Item F.

CITY OF

September 29, 2023

BDO USA, P.C.
3601 C Street, Suite 600
Anchorage, AK 99503

Ladies and gentlemen:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit(s) of the financial statements of the
City of Kotzebue, Alaska (the City), which comprise the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial
statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation in the financial statements of financial position, changes in net
position, and cash flows in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Items are considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that
the judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced
by the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of this representation letter,
as entered on the first page, the following representations made to you during your audit(s):

(1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated December 23, 2022, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

(2) We have fulfilled our responsibility, as set out in the terms of the aforementioned audit
engagement letter, for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

(3) The financial statements include all properly classified funds and other financial
information of the primary government and all component units required to be included
in the financial reporting entity by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. All funds required to be presented as major funds are identified and
presented as such.
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BDO USA, P.C.
September 29, 2023

Page 2 of 9

(4)

(5)

(6)

We have made available to you:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

All financial records, and related data and federal awards (including amendments, if
any, and any other correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities
relevant to federal programs and related activities), including the names of all related
parties and all relationships and transactions with related parties, as agreed upon in
the terms of the aforementioned audit engagement letter.

All additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

Minutes of the meetings of Kotzebue City Council that were held from January 1,
2022, to the date of this letter, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance
with or deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting
records underlying the financial statements or schedule of expenditures of federal awards

SEFA.

The financial statement misstatements relating to accounts and disclosures

identified and discussed with us in the course of the audit that are listed immediately below
have been corrected. We have evaluated the propriety of the corrected misstatements
based on a review of both the applicable authoritative literature and the underlying
supporting evidence from our files and confirm our responsibility for the decision to correct
them.

Corrected Misstatements

ltem # | Account Name and Adjustment Debit Credit

Description

AJE1 Adjustment of retainage payable amount

Accounts Payable Other 442,558

Construction 442,558

Water Treatment Plant-Const 442,558

Grant Receivable-Other 447 558

AJE?2 Adjustment of jail contract revenue

amount

State of AK Receivable 48,965

DOC Jail Contract 48,965
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BDO USA, P.C,
September 29, 2023
Page 3 of 9

(7) You have identified and discussed with us in the course of the audit the deficiencies in our
internal control over financial reporting listed immediately below.

Significant Deficiencies
Financial Statement Closing Process:
Several accounts were not fully reconciled or presented in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. These accounts include accounts payable, capital outlay expense, jail
contract revenue, and the related receivable.

Congressionally Mandated Projects - Procurement and Suspension and Debarment:
1. The City executed several small purchase transactions without obtaining price
or rate quotations from an adequate number of qualified sources.
2. Documentation that vendors are not debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded
were not retained in the City’s procurement files and thus, auditors were not
able to test that the relevant internal controls were operating effectively.

Control Deficiencies Other Than Material Weaknesses or Significant Deficiencies
Segregation of duties:
IT Control Deficiency: Super user access noted within Caselle for the City Manager,
Finance Director, and Controller. This may raise risks that unauthorized information
be entered and posted.

(8) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud or noncompliance. We have disclosed to you
the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud or noncompliance. We have no knowledge of any:

(@) Fraud or suspected fraud involving management or involving employees who have
significant roles in internal control, whether or not perceived to have a material
effect on the financial statements.

(b) Fraud or suspected fraud involving others where the fraud could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

(c) Allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Government received in
communications from employees, former employees, regulatory agencies, law
firms, predecessor accounting firms, or others.

(d) Instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements.

(9) We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification
of assets, liabilities, or equity.

(10) The following, where applicable and material, have been properly recorded or disclosed in
the financial statements:

(a) The identity of all related parties and all related party relationships and transactions
of which we are aware, including revenues, expenses, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties.
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BDO USA, P.C.

September
Page 4 of 9

(b)

(€)

(e)

29, 2023

Arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other
arrangements involving restrictions on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar
arrangements.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liable.

Significant estimates and material concentrations known to management that are
required to be disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. In that regard, all accounting estimates that could
be material to the financial statements, including key factors and significant
assumptions underlying those estimates, have been identified, and we believe the
estimates are reasonable in the circumstances The methods, significant assumptions,
and the data used in making the accounting estimates and the related disclosures are
appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, and disclosure that is in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and other liabilities or
gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, including:

e Pending or anticipated tax refunds, other potential or pending claims, lawsuits by
or against any branch of government or others;

e Written or oral guarantees, endorsements, or unused letters of credit;
e Unusual guarantees; or
e Labor claims or negotiations.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require loss
contingencies to be accrued if it is probable an asset has been impaired or a liability
incurred at the statement of financial position date and the amount of loss can be
reasonably estimated. Such contingencies must be disclosed, but may not be
accrued, if the loss is reasonably possible (but not probable) or the loss is probable
but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated.

Commitments, such as:
e Major capital asset purchase agreements;

e More-than-one-year employment arrangements or contracts with suppliers or
customers, or one-year-or-longer term leases;

¢ Deferred compensation, bonuses, pensions plans, or severance pay; or
e Pending sale or merger of all or a portion of the business or of an interest therein
or acquisition of all or a portion of the business, assets or securities of another

entity;

Joint ventures or other participations, the detailed transactions of which are not
carried on our books.
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(11) There are no:

(a) Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws or regulations and
provisions of contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt
covenants whose effects could be material to the financial statements whose effects
should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for
recording a loss contingency.

(b) Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of
assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

(c) Side agreements or other arrangements (either written or oral) that have not been
disclosed to you.

(d) Restrictions of net position that were not properly authorized and approved, or
reclassifications of net position that have not been properly reflected in the financial
statements.

(12) Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors
for transactions arising on or before the statement of financial position date and have
been appropriately reduced to their estimated net realizable value.

(13) The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

(14) We have appropriately disclosed the City’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net position are available and have determined that net position is
properly recognized under the policy.

(15) We have complied with all aspects of contractual agreements, including debt covenants,
that would have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of
noncompliance. We have also complied with the SEC disclosure rules for reporting annual
financial information and material events to repositories in accordance with SEC Rule
N.240, 15c2-12.

(16) No discussions have taken place with your firm’s personnel regarding employment with the
City.

(17) We are responsible for compliance with laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws,
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.

(18) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted)
and classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned) are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.
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(19)

(20)

(21)

(23)

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program
revenues, contributions, and general revenues. Expenses have been appropriately
classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of activities, and
allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

In regard to assistance in the preparation of the financial statements and related footnote
disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2022, services performed by you, we have:
(1) assumed all management responsibilities, (2) designated an individual (within senior
management) with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the services, (3)
evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed, and (4) accepted
responsibility for the results of the services.

We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America
and we believe it is fairly presented. The methods of measurement and presentation of
the supplementary information have not changed from the prior period and we have
disclosed to you any significant assumptions underlying the measurement and presentation
of the supplementary information.

We have not presented management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. All other required supplementary information is measured
and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines.

With respect to federal award programs:

(a) We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with,
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance), including requirements relating to the preparation of the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA).

(b) We have, in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, identified and disclosed to you
in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA), expenditures made during
the audit period for all government programs and related activities provided by
federal agencies in the form of federal awards, grants, federal cost-reimbursement
contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus property),
cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
appropriations, and other direct assistance.

(c) We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the SEFA and related notes
in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and we believe the
SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance. The methods of measurement or presentation of the SEFA have
not changed from those used in the prior period.

(d) We have notified you of federal awards and funding increments that were received
for awards received before December 26, 2014, and differentiated those awards from
awards received on or after December 26, 2014, and subject to the audit
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
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(e) We will include the auditor’s report on the SEFA in any document that contains the
SEFA and that indicates you have reported on such information.

(f)  If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the
audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the SEFA no
later than the date we issue the SEFA and the auditor’s report thereon.

(g) We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with in
all material respects, the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of federal awards related to each of our federal programs and have
identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and
the terms and conditions considered to have a direct and material effect on each
federal program.

(h) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and
maintained, effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that
provides reasonable assurance that we are managing our federal awards in
compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions that
could have a material effect on our federal programs. We believe the internal control
system is adequate and is functioning as intended. Also, subsequent to the date of
the auditor’s report as of which compliance was audited, no changes have occurred
in internal control over compliance or other factors that might significantly affect
internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance as reported
in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

(i) We have made available to you all federal award contracts and grant agreements
(including amendments, if any) and any other correspondence with federal agencies
or pass-through entities relating to each major federal program and related activities
that have taken place with federal agencies or pass-through entities.

(j)  We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific
programs as a major program.

(k)  We have complied, in all material respects, with the direct and material compliance
requirements (except for noncompliance disclosed to you), including when
applicable, those set forth in the OMB Compliance Supplement, relating to federal
awards and have identified and confirmed that there were no amounts questioned
and no known noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements
of federal awards. We also know of no instances of noncompliance occurring
subsequent to the end of the period audited.

() We have disclosed to you any communications from federal awarding agencies and
pass-through entities concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material
compliance requirements, including communications received from the end of the
period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

(m) Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant
guidelines in the Uniform Guidance.

(n) We have disclosed to you our interpretations of compliance requirements that are
subject to varying interpretations, if any.
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(0) We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the
direct and material compliance requirements, including information related to
federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

(p) We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional
evidence with respect to conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period
that affect noncompliance during the reporting period.

(q) Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are
supported by the books and records from which the basic financial statements have
been prepared, and are prepared on a basis consistent with the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards.

(r)  The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the
reports submitted or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or
pass-through entity, as applicable.

(s) We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost
principles.

(t) We are responsible for, and have accurately completed, the appropriate sections of
the Data Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance. The final version of
the applicable audit reporting package, which includes your signed auditor’s reports,
that we will submit to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) will be identical to the
final version of such documents that you provided to us.

(u) We have identified and disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective
actions taken for previous audits, attestation engagements, internal or external
monitoring, and other studies directly related to the audit objectives of the
compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from the
end of the audit period covered by the compliance audit report to the date of the
auditor’s report.

(v) We have provided views on your reported findings, conclusions, and
recommendations. We are responsible for taking corrective action on audit findings
and we are responsible for preparing and implementing a corrective action plan for
each audit finding that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

(w) We are responsible for, and have accurately prepared, the summary schedule of prior
audit findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance, and we have provided
you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, including all management
decisions.

(x) We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain
protected personally identifiable information.

(24) There have been no known or suspected breaches of sensitive information (e.g., personnel
files) caused by cyber-attack or other means, or other cybersecurity incidents, where the
breach or other incident could have a material effect on the financial statements.

(25) In connection with any electronic presentation of the financial statements and your audit
report thereon on our web site, we acknowledge that:
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e We are responsible for the preparation, presentation, and content of the financial
statements in the electronic format.

e If your audit report is presented on our web site, the full financial statements upon
which you reported and to which you appended your signed report will be presented.

e We will clearly indicate in the electronic presentation on our web site the financial
information that is subject to your audit report. We will clearly differentiate any
information that may also be presented by us on or in connection with our web site that
was contained in the published version of the financial statements and other
supplementary information, but which is not part of the audited financial statements
or other financial information covered by your audit report.

¢ We have assessed the security over financial statement information and the audit report
presented on our web site, and are satisfied that procedures in place are adequate to
ensure the integrity of the information provided. We understand the risk of potential
misrepresentation inherent in publishing financial information on our web site through
internal failure or external manipulation.

o If the electronic financial statements are generally made available to the public on
our web site, we will include a notification to the reader that such financial statements
are presented for convenience and information purposes only, and while reasonable
efforts have been made to ensure the integrity of such information, they should not be
relied on. A copy of the printed financial statements will be provided on request.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, no events, including instances of noncompliance, have
occurred subsequent to the statement of financial position date and through the date of this
representation letter, as entered on the first page, that would require adjustment to or disclosure
in the aforementioned financial statements or in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Very truly yours,

DocuSigned by:

Koaur Kouse (M 9/29/2023

Chief Roger Rouse, Acting City Manager

DocuSigned by:

| (lsea Sicl 9/29/2023

Chelsea Sieh, Finance Director

I Mike Wetsel 9/29/2023

Mike Wetzel, Contract Accountant
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